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 1           CARSON CITY, NEVADA, TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2022

 2                                  -o0o-

 3

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Good morning, everybody.  I'd

 5   like to call the meeting to order.  I will start with roll

 6   call.  Mr. -- Executive Director Ingram, please.

 7                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Thank you, Madam

 8   Chair.  We'll start with Chair Tammy Nixon.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Here.

10                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Board Member Tim

11   Bezick.

12                MEMBER BEZICK:  Here.

13                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Board Member Rick

14   Brown.

15                MEMBER BROWN:  Here.

16                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Board Member

17   Katherine Cortez.

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Here.

19                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  And Board Member

20   Robert Gronauer.

21                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Here.

22                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  We do have a quorum

23   and we're ready to proceed.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  This is the
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 1   portion where we allow for public comment.  Members of the

 2   public may comment on matters appearing on the agenda and may

 3   bring up matters not appearing on the agenda to the attention

 4   of the board.

 5                The Board may discuss the matters not appearing

 6   on the agenda, but may not act on the matters at this meeting.

 7   If the Board desires, the matters may be placed on a future

 8   agenda for action.

 9                Public comment may be limited to five minutes per

10   person at the discretion of the chair, but will not be

11   restricted according to viewpoint.

12                Is there anybody down south that would like to

13   make public comment?

14                Okay.  Seeing no one down south, is there anybody

15   up north who would like to make public comment?

16                MEMBER BROWN:  We don't have anybody present,

17   Madam Chair.  This is Board Member Brown.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  Seeing there's no

19   public comment, we'll move to the next Agenda Item.

20                Board, executive director announcements and

21   reports and updates, please.

22                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Thank you, Madam

23   Chair.  Kevin Ingram for the record.

24                First of all, I'd like to start by introducing
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 1   our staff that we have present.  We'll start with the north.

 2   In the north, we have our court reporter, Shellie Loomis, with

 3   us.

 4                So I will ask that when providing testimony,

 5   state your name, spell your last name and speak clearly and

 6   concisely so that she can capture everything that's being

 7   said.

 8                We have Investigator David Hubber on the screen

 9   down here who's to your far left.  We have Investigator Ricky

10   Diaz.  He's the next individual over from the left.  You've

11   already met the Board.

12                The chief investigator in the south farthest to

13   my left is Vincent Saladino, and to his right is Zachary

14   Swarthout.  We have our licensing specialist in the back,

15   Stephanie Rosso, who -- to whom most of you have been

16   speaking, and our legal counsel today is Chricy Harris.  And

17   my name is Kevin Ingram.

18                I have provided some stats to the Board to kind

19   of give you a quarter-by-quarter overview.  This is our first

20   true quarter to quarter, and you'll see that the license

21   applications for second quarter from the June board meeting,

22   you can see that we had a total of 41 applications, a total of

23   36 approved, and a total of five either withdrawn or denied,

24   compared to last year same quarter of 38 applications, 31
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 1   approved and seven withdrawn or denied.  So we're pretty

 2   consistent in our licensing application throughout the year.

 3                When it comes to work hard applications -- excuse

 4   me, for April of 2021, we received 722 applications to the --

 5   April of this year 1389.

 6                In '21, 654 -- I'm sorry, 645 were made active

 7   and April of this year, 1170 were made active.  Last year 57

 8   were withdrawn and this year 142 were withdrawn.  April '21,

 9   there were 20 denied, and this year in April, 77.

10                Generally speaking, when you see an increase in

11   the number of applications received, you will see an increase

12   obviously in the approvals and the denials.

13                For May of '21, we had 756 to '22 of 1618.  May

14   of '21, there were 681 made active to May of '22, the 1,284,

15   51 withdrawn in 2021 -- excuse me -- and 244 withdrawn in May

16   of 2022.  Denied in '21 were a total of 24 and denied in May

17   of '22 were 90.

18                In June, last year, we received 1,040.  This year

19   in June, we received 936.  Now, you see the uptick in April

20   and May over last year and then a downslide for June,

21   mostly due to Electric Daisy Carnival being moved forward in

22   the year last year.  It was a little bit later.  They delayed

23   it, so that's the answer for the number of applications

24   decreasing.
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 1                In June of '21, we made 941 active.  In June of

 2   '22, we made 733 active.  There were 65 withdrawn in 2021, 169

 3   withdrawn in June of '22 and there were 34 denied both years.

 4   So the Quarter 2 total for 2021 was 2518 applications

 5   received; for 2022, 3,943.  So you can see the staff is very

 6   busy throughout the year.

 7                The withdrawals normally are individuals that

 8   were either missing information on their application.  When

 9   they were contacted, they failed to follow through or they

10   just decided not to proceed.

11                On complaints and investigations for second

12   quarter of 2022, we didn't have a true reading for '21 because

13   OnBase wasn't tracking it.  But we'll be tracking moving

14   forward.

15                Complaints for second quarter, we received ten

16   complaints for PBO.  Nine of those were closed, one is still

17   open, investigation, a recent one, and of those ten

18   complaints, two violations were issued.

19                For private investigator, there was one received

20   and one closed.  No action.  Process server, one received, one

21   closed, no action.  Repossessors, two received, two closed, no

22   action.

23                And for work card, there was one received and it

24   was closed due to the licensing company taking action against
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 1   the individual.  So a total of 15 complaints were received for

 2   second quarter, 14 were closed, there's one open and so far

 3   two violations have been issued.

 4                As far as unlicensed activity citations, 2021

 5   versus 2022, second quarter, 2021, six unlicensed activity

 6   citations were issued.  2022, four were issued and we have a

 7   breakdown there for first, second subsequents.

 8                This quarter, this year have been all new

 9   citations.  They haven't been reoccurring.  Of the citations

10   that were written this year, all four were for private patrol

11   unlicensed activity.

12                Does the Board have any questions on the

13   statistics?

14                Hearing -- sorry.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  For the citations that were

16   written, have they been paid?

17                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Yes.  The next thing,

18   I provided the Board with the profit and loss statement for

19   last year, last fiscal year.

20                Does the Board have any questions on that?

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  I do.  This is Board Member

22   Cortez.  I was looking at the profit and loss for this year.

23   I just want to make note for the record, I was overlooking,

24   obviously there is a line -- itemized line for every category.
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 1                Noticing that in the salary of wages, it's

 2   incredibly low for the amount of work that you guys provide.

 3   I do want to let the public know that because when you look at

 4   numbers, it's very easy to assume that, wow, this company is

 5   getting a crap load of money when, in actuality, when you look

 6   at the breakdown, the employees aren't getting paid for the

 7   amount of work that's going on.

 8                So I just want to make you guys clear or anybody

 9   else reading the minutes unless -- I just want to make that

10   noted for the record because I am also noticing -- I don't

11   know if we've gotten there or I might be jumping ahead --

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah, you are.

13                MEMBER CORTEZ:  -- for the budget.  Okay.  Sorry,

14   that's it.

15                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Thank you, and I

16   agree.  You know, I think everybody present today knows that

17   State of Nevada employees make, on average, about one-third

18   less than county and city positions in a public sector.

19                You know, I'm fortunate to have the team that I

20   have and they stick it out with me, because they could go

21   other places and make a lot more money.  We try to make it a

22   healthy working environment.

23                I have a fantastic team that works hard every day

24   and those of you that have been licensed for a while, you know
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 1   what I'm talking about.  So we appreciate your support as

 2   licenses holders as well, and thank you for the kind words.

 3                So on the profit and loss, I'm not going to go

 4   through line item by line item with you, but I will tell you

 5   that we were able to -- after all expenditures paid, based on

 6   some salary savings of a restructure of our agency.

 7                I have two vacant positions that I'm not

 8   intending on filling because with our structured streamline

 9   processes, we're becoming more efficient in the way we're

10   doing our jobs and we have no backlog at all.  So I'm happy to

11   say that.

12                Due to that, we were able to add an additional

13   $275,760 to our reserve account.  For those of you that aren't

14   aware of what a reserve account is for state agencies, we're a

15   self-funded agency.  100 percent of our revenues come from

16   licensing fees and backgrounds and applications for work

17   cards.  We do not get money from the legislature.

18                So if we don't have revenues coming in, I can't

19   pay expenditures including our rent, our electricity, our

20   salaries and everything there.  We're required by law to have

21   six months worth of expenditures in our reserve account at all

22   times.

23                That means at all times, I have to have about

24   $900,000 sitting in my checking account.  That way, if our

Capitol Reporters



Page 12

 1   revenues stop, we can continue to sustain our expenses for a

 2   six-month period of time.  I'm happy to say right now, we have

 3   1.3 million in there.

 4                So we've been able to incrementally increase

 5   that.  We're getting close to a year of reserve now, and that

 6   doesn't happen very often.  So I'm pretty proud of our efforts

 7   there.  And that's all I have on the profit and loss.

 8                Are there any questions?

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So I'd just like to echo

10   Board Member Cortez.  I work with other states and licensing

11   in my position outside of this board, and it is a challenge

12   working with other boards.  They're oftentimes short-staffed

13   and/or they lose their staff to internal positions to the

14   State and other positions they get paid higher.

15                So these guys do do a fantastic job and I want to

16   make sure in the upcoming budget that we do recognize that so

17   we can work on retention.

18                So that being said, we'll move on to -- yeah, go

19   ahead.

20                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Board Member Gronauer.

21   I have a comment to follow up to that.  When we talk about

22   staff, all the people we see who are coming on and knowing

23   everything, I want to make sure when we talk about the staff,

24   we also add our executive director in there as part of staff.
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 1   Sometimes I think we just think of all the other employees and

 2   put their executive to the side.

 3                Well, to herd all these cats is a deal, it's a

 4   real big job.  And just for the volume alone, we spoke about

 5   this a little earlier, and the depth and breadth of their

 6   investigations as investigators, I just want to make sure that

 7   the executive director, no matter whom he or she may be, now

 8   or later, gets the recognition.  Thank you.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Absolutely.  And he's been a

10   great big help for me in reaching out to other states in

11   showing how they've streamlined their systems and how to make

12   it work better.  So there's been great progress in that, so I

13   do appreciate that support.

14                Anything up north on this current subject?  Okay.

15   Seeing there's no comment, we'll move on.  So then we will

16   look for Agenda Item 4, review and approve the transcripts for

17   the June 14th and 15th, 2022 board meeting for possible

18   action.

19                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I

20   motion to approve the transcripts of June 14th, 15th, 2022 as

21   written.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I have a -- I have a motion.

23                Do I have a second?

24                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I will
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 1   second.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  A motion and a second.

 3                All in favor say, "aye."

 4                (Motion carries.)

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.

 6                Okay.  Agenda Item Number 5, review and --

 7   wowzers.  Review and approve FY, fiscal year 2023 budget for

 8   possible action.

 9                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Thank you, Madam

10   Chair.  I've provided the proposed budget to the Board.  This

11   is the first year that we've all -- that we're going to be

12   speaking about our budget in open session for approval.

13                Some of you may know that last legislative

14   session, our board originally was set up under the Attorney

15   General's office.  So we were under their umbrella and we were

16   part of the state financial system.

17                When that bill passed a few years ago, we became

18   an independent board and commission just like all the other

19   boards and commissions.  We were set up very uniquely

20   different and now we are truly a state board.  Because of

21   that, in an open meeting, we are to discuss the budget and

22   have the Board approve it for the first time.  So that's why

23   nobody's heard of us before.

24                So I've prepared the budget, I've provided that
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 1   to you, and you can basically see that what I did is I took

 2   last year's profit and loss statement and based on the uptrend

 3   of the number of applications we were seeing increasing, I

 4   adjusted the budget accordingly.

 5                The good thing about a self-funded budget is it's

 6   not really that difficult to adjust because it's based on last

 7   year's revenues and expenditures.

 8                So that trend tends to increase about 3 percent

 9   every year and, therefore, this year's budget, total budget

10   proposed is just under 2 million.  If the Board has any

11   questions, I'd be happy to answer any of those for you.

12                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez and

13   this is the area where I was referencing for those reading the

14   minutes, where you see the amount being proposed, and like

15   Executive Director said, 2.2 -- just under 2.2 million, which

16   is a little more than this last year.

17                As indicated also in the increase of work being

18   distributed in the IOP.  So it -- where I'm looking at it, it

19   makes perfect sense, and yet I want to reiterate the salary

20   wages don't really truly reflect that 2.2 million.

21                THE REPORTER:  Can they speak in the mic more?

22                (Discussion off the record.)

23                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  Our

24   stenographer is asking if the Board members down south can
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 1   speak up or move closer to the microphone, please.

 2                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Thank you.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So the only thing that I

 4   would ask in this, so that it doesn't look like such an

 5   increase from actuals to proposed, is that if we could do an

 6   estimated budget based from where we are right now to the end

 7   of the year and so it looks more in line.

 8                It doesn't need to be this year, but maybe going

 9   forward, that's something that we look at since this is our

10   first year because I think, you know, when I look at it, a lot

11   of times when we do our budgets, we look at what the

12   estimated -- what we estimate the rest of the year would

13   entail, costs and everything else so that there's a better

14   sense of a jump.

15                When you look at FY '23, it looks like a big jump

16   in revenues and expenditures and it's not really if you had

17   taken it out all the way through the year.

18                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  And that's a great

19   point that you make there.  In FY '23, we had to go ahead and

20   incorporate three months worth of being on your budget system

21   still.  So that accounts for that increase.

22                And also with the increase, we're looking at

23   about, again, a 3 to 5 percent uptick in the number of

24   applications we're receiving.  So with that happening, our
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 1   revenues jump significantly, which obviously offsets and

 2   brings our expenses up that much, too, because for every

 3   dollar that comes in for applications, that adds an expense of

 4   background investigations for those additional people as well

 5   as my costs for fingerprinting jump up dramatically.

 6                I mean, every month we're paying close to -- it

 7   depends on the month, anywhere from 40 to $65,000 a month just

 8   in fingerprinting expenses to the Department of Public Safety

 9   to run the fingerprints for us.  But that's why.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.

11                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Is that extra three

12   months.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.  And so when you look

14   at that delta between --

15                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Yes.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  -- June -- January and June

17   to the 2023 budget, it looks like a huge delta between the

18   two.  And it's not really because you're not spending all the

19   way through the year.  So that was the only -- yeah, thank

20   you.

21                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  I'll take that in

22   account for the next year.  Thank you.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So any further questions from

24   the Board?  Okay.  Hearing no further questions, I'll
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 1   entertain a motion.

 2                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I'm

 3   motioning to approve the FY '23 budget as proposed.

 4                CHAIR NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do we have a

 5   second?

 6                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I will

 7   second.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion and a

 9   second.

10                All in favor say, "aye."

11                Motion passes.  You good?  Okay.

12                (Motion carries.)

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we'll move on to

14   Agenda Item Number 6, please, review and discuss, approve

15   increase board staff pay.

16                As discussed in previous statements today, and I

17   think you heard probably Bobby talk about in the past, the

18   amount of work that the individuals do, our staff does, that

19   it's not always commiserate with the pay that they receive.

20   And so we wanted to bring that up.

21                Thank you, Executive Director, for bringing that

22   up for our approval.  So if you could go with that.

23                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  A brief overview.

24                So as has been stated over and over again, for
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 1   several board meetings now over a year, year and a half, board

 2   members have suggested pay increases for staff.  And, you

 3   know, being in the state, being under the umbrella of the

 4   Attorney General's office, there were certain classification

 5   and pay scales that had to be followed and adhered to

 6   100 percent.

 7                Now that we're an independent board, class are no

 8   longer -- staff are no longer considered classified.  We're

 9   all at will employees now and, therefore, pay scale -- payroll

10   can be adjusted by the Board with their approval.

11                Traditionally, the State of Nevada employees

12   receive a 3 percent cost of living per year.  With the last

13   several years, there's been no cost of living raise.  A lot of

14   that was attributed to COVID expenses, layoffs and things of

15   that nature.  So no cost of living has been given since 2019.

16                However, expenses have increased, inflation has

17   increased.  Our medical benefits for every state employee have

18   increased by 9 percent, and yet no pay increases for staff.

19                So I put together some stats and some, you know,

20   dollar amounts for the Board to consider based on the Board

21   members have been giving -- given to me.  I really had to wait

22   and see where our budget fell when we became an independent

23   board because a lot of our expenses increased dramatically

24   when we became an independent board by having to hire an
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 1   accounting firm, by having to pay all the fringe directly,

 2   instead of it being through the State of Nevada.

 3                And so I wanted to make sure that we were still

 4   going to have enough money in reserve, which as I mentioned

 5   earlier, we have plenty of money there.

 6                So the initial proposal that I wanted to make was

 7   for board staff to receive a 5 percent increase.  That would

 8   impact the personal budget that was just approved by an

 9   additional $43,000.  By the time you incorporate in the salary

10   increase and the fringe benefits, it would be an impact of an

11   additional 43,000.

12                The Board had asked me -- several board members

13   had asked me to bump it up a little bit and maybe look at a

14   7 percent increase.  In doing so, that would impact our

15   personnel expenses by $60,000, just under $60,000.  And if the

16   Board so chose to go to a 10 percent increase, that would

17   impact the personal expenses by an additional $86,000 and,

18   again, fringe is included in that.

19                So those would be the numbers we're looking at.

20   Again, based on the fact that we carried over an additional

21   275,000 --

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Excuse me, excuse me.

23                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Yes?

24                MEMBER GRONAUER:  What was included in that?

Capitol Reporters



Page 21

 1                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  That would be salary

 2   increases, plus the fringe benefits.

 3                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Across the board?

 4                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Correct.

 5                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.

 6                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  And so that would

 7   include, you know, all the costs of retirement costs and --

 8                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Exactly.  Okay.  Thank you.

 9                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  You're welcome.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I do have a -- I do have a

11   question.  When you have board staff in here, does that

12   include yourself?

13                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  That would be -- that

14   would be up to the Board to decide.

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez for

16   the record.  Who all would that be?

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Everybody but him.

18                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Yeah, I propose it is

19   everyone except for me.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So if we did add you

21   to that, what -- could you give us that, what that would look

22   like?

23                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  It -- well, actually

24   on the 10 percent, that's me included.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Oh, that's you included?

 2                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Correct.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  That's really...

 4                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Board Member Bezick.  Did

 5   I hear you say previously that the past couple years, there

 6   was no cost of living increase for staff?

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You're breaking up really

 8   bead.

 9                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Board Member Bezick.  Did

10   I hear you say previously that the past couple years, there

11   was no cost of living for staff?

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  That was correct, sir, yes.

13                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  One

14   more time, Mr. Ingram.  What did -- when was the last time an

15   increase was awarded?

16                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  The State of Nevada

17   cost of living increase, the last one was awarded to staff in

18   2019.

19                MEMBER CORTEZ:  And that was because they were

20   under the State --

21                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Correct.

22                MEMBER CORTEZ:  -- Correct?

23                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Correct.  I believe

24   this year -- well, I know this year, July 1, the Governor gave
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 1   all state employees that were non-union a 1 percent increase.

 2   That did not include us.  And anyone that was part of the

 3   union received 3 percent increases.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So as I'm looking at the

 5   budget, I just want to make sure.  So currently you're

 6   proposing 2000 -- FY 2023, that your gross profit would be 2

 7   million -- 2.1 million, almost 2.2 million.

 8                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  That would be revenue

 9   gross profit, yes.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So with that, you're

11   seeing that if we did the 10 percent, it would decrease by

12   80,000, so basically 2.117?

13                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Right.  You can see

14   on the budget, the net income for the year, last year, was

15   275,000.  This year it's proposed at 482,000.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

17                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  So basically the

18   86,000 would come off of the 482,000.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Got you.

20                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  And still putting

21   almost $400,000 additional dollars in reserve.

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I appreciate the numbers you've

23   got and the information -- this is Gronauer, I'm sorry.  The

24   numbers you put out there, and it gives a bright line and
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 1   clear view of what we need to do and how it should be done.

 2                Again, to reiterate, the work they really do is

 3   amazing.  All you have to do is look at our packets and

 4   everything we get.  So -- and then we get a 50 percent raise,

 5   right, as the Board?

 6                (Laughter.)

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Wait.  We do.

 8                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Strike that, strike that.  We

 9   don't get paid.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We get paid?

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  So 50 percent of nothing is

12   nothing.

13                Anyway.  So, again, I think you did a yeoman's

14   job of putting that stuff together so we understand where

15   we're at and what we're doing, and I could see that with the

16   increase.  And, you know, it sounds like a lot if we say

17   10 percent.

18                It sounds like a lot except we go back 3, 4,

19   5 years and realize it really isn't.  And then the Board -- in

20   the future, whatever Board members are around, can do whatever

21   they want, you know, if it comes up again.

22                So I'm ready to make a proposal whenever you're

23   ready for that.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So...
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  I -- so this is Board Member

 2   Cortez, I do have one last question.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

 4                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Are we proposing -- this might

 5   open up a can of worms, but I am a previous --

 6                THE REPORTER:  Can she repeat that?  I'm having a

 7   hard time hearing her.

 8                (Discussion off the record.)

 9                BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Excuse me, this Board Member

10   Brown.  Excuse me, the court reporter is having trouble

11   hearing you, Board Member Cortez.  If you can start over

12   again, she couldn't hear most of that.

13                MEMBER CORTEZ:  So this is Board Member Cortez.

14   I'm -- my question is:  Are we motioning to -- or are we

15   considering this an annual increase, a one-time increase?  Do

16   we want to discuss that from a union contract perspective?

17   That's what I'm looking at and I know the -- some contracts, I

18   know with the State, the county, we do either three-year,

19   two-year, whatnot.

20                Again, that's -- that might be a discussion for

21   the investigators, whether they want to entertain unionizing

22   or if we just want to leave that within the Board.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So I guess my question

24   since -- and I don't know, that's kind of open, but just to
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 1   kind of narrow it down a little bit.  Typically, there's the 3

 2   percent increase when we were underneath the State; right?

 3                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Well, with the

 4   exception of when the Governor --

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Right.

 6                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  -- and the

 7   legislature did not approve the increases for the last three

 8   years.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Right.  So going forward,

10   since we're not underneath them, what would that look like?

11                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Salaries can be

12   adjusted at any time by the Board now.  This proposal is a

13   one-time.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So this proposal would be one

15   time and we -- and I don't know if we need to speak to you,

16   but would we propose that we would review this annually?  You

17   know, that be part of the motion, I guess?

18                MS. HARRIS:  That could be part of the motion.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Because I think --

20   does that answer your question?

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Yes.  Would the Board be inclined

22   to consider cost of -- wait, annual cost of living increase?

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  That's called COLA.

24                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Yes, thank you.  Like an annual
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 1   cost or COLA, only an annual at that time.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So that's the one time --

 3                (Simultaneous speaking.)

 4                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Correct.  The one time ten

 5   percent today, right?

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Right.

 7                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Every year COLA increase is to

 8   be --

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So that would be part -- you

10   need to -- the next step is to make a motion.  The motion

11   would be both parts if you would like.

12                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Right.  I just want to hear from

13   the Board what they feel about that.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I don't think we would need

15   to make -- can we have open discussion about that?  Okay.  Got

16   you.

17                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer in the open

18   discussion.  Good points brought up by Board Member Cortez.

19   The annual, to me, is -- not important right now is 10 percent

20   one time at this moment, okay?  Now, you want to look at COLA

21   increases and stuff like that, again, now we have the figures

22   put in front of us without that, they've said.

23                So, to me, I would rather leave all that out

24   until another time because COLA increases come by the years.
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 1   We'll see what happens, we don't know what's going to happen,

 2   what's not going to happen.

 3                I believe we're doing a very frugal job by Kevin.

 4   What I mean, he's cheap.  So he watches the money very well,

 5   and with that, what we haven't discussed with the COLA

 6   increase and cost and all this other cost.  So, to me, I would

 7   rather -- my part of the discussion is I'd rather leave it as

 8   it is today, 10 percent across the board for all our

 9   employees, including our executive director, one time now.

10                And in the future, if pay raises come up again,

11   anything can come up, I mean, COLA can go out of the roof.

12   Who knows what we're going to do with the politics we live in

13   now and later, who knows.  So the best thing to me, I mean,

14   that was part of my -- again, not to be redundant, but as an

15   annual -- not an annual increase, it's a one-time increase.

16   That increases now for ten percent for all employees,

17   including Kevin.

18                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Madam Chair, if I

19   may.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.

21                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Kevin Ingram for the

22   record.  The -- kind of in line with what Board Member

23   Gronauer is saying, with us being a self-funded agency, it's

24   hard to really establish a pay increase every year because
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 1   it's going to be based on revenues.  If we take a hit during

 2   this year, a proposed $484,000 that's going to go into

 3   reserves could be negative.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Right.

 5                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  And we can pull in

 6   from the reserve.  So more of a guideline might be to

 7   review --

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Review.  That's what I --

 9                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  -- no later than

10   September.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.

12                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Of every year.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Correct.

14                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  To see whether or not

15   that can be justified or not just because of us being

16   self-funded.  I understand what Board Member Cortez is saying

17   and that would -- that normally works when you have an

18   established budget with money coming from the legislature.

19   We're a little bit different.

20                And as far as unionization, all state

21   employees -- in fact, we have a notice up in the break room

22   that we're required to have.  At any time, any state employee

23   can choose to join an AA and be part of the union.  I

24   discussed it with my staff, told them it was up to them.
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 1                I gave them the overview that we're required to

 2   do as leaders to say here's the benefits, here's some of the

 3   downfalls, what say you.  And all of them collectively said,

 4   we don't want to be a union.  So that's where they stand right

 5   now and that could change at any moment, also.  Thank you.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So, Bobby, that would be

 7   my -- is the one-time 10 percent, I agree.  But I would like

 8   to agendize the review of the budget at this time and

 9   salaries.  I think we kind of forget about it.  We mention it,

10   but then we forget about actually putting it on the agenda

11   maybe, and I'd like to make sure we don't do that.

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer again, yes.  Now, so I

13   understand, we can make this motion.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yep.

15                MEMBER GRONAUER:  And then also part of that

16   motion can be reviewed every September.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yep.  And not put a cap on it

18   or CVI, just review salaries --

19                MEMBER GRONAUER:  -- yeah, because it could be

20   plus, it could be minus.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Right.

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Because I can't promise

23   self-funding the agency myself and you have to be careful how

24   you know your money because you're responsible for all your
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 1   money.

 2                This is -- mommy state is not out there to give

 3   you money and when mommy state was out there, they wouldn't

 4   give you money.  So you have to make your own money, you have

 5   to do your own work and so that's -- yearly review is fine.  I

 6   think it catches everybody's --

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.

 8                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Whatever you want to do in the

 9   future.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yep, yep.

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Who knows who the board members

12   may or may not be at that time.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I got you.  Any comment up

14   north?  Okay.  Hearing there's no comment up north, we'll

15   entertain a motion on Agenda Item Number 6 to discuss and

16   approve increase on board staff for possible action.

17                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I'll make a

18   motion to approve a one-time 10 percent pay raise.  I'm going

19   to stop one second here.  We have to discuss something else.

20   If you try to do it that way -- when does the meet begin?

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  When would it be effective?

22                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  It would be effective

23   the next pay period.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I was just going to say the
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 1   next pay period --

 2                MEMBER GRONAUER:  -- I just want to make sure

 3   that -- once again, Gronauer.  I make a -- whatever I'm

 4   making.

 5                I'll make a motion to approve a one-time 10

 6   percent increase for all staff members, which that means --

 7   that includes Executive Director as a staff member, and for

 8   this to be reviewed annually in September.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Effective?

10                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Effective immediately.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Next meeting.

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Which would be...

13                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I'll

14   second.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

16   second.

17                All in favor say, "aye."

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Motion passes.

19                Congratulations.  It's well deserved, appreciate

20   it.

21                (Motion carries.)

22                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Thank you very much

23   to the Board.  Thank you for the kind comments and I'll be

24   sure and pass those along to all the staff that were not
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 1   present today, as well.  I'm sure they'll be greatly

 2   appreciative of the increase.  Thank you.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  All righty.  So, Counselor

 4   Harris, would you mind swearing everybody in?

 5                MS. HARRIS:  For anyone in the audience,

 6   including up north, who's on the agenda or plans on

 7   testifying, can you please stand and raise your right hand.

 8                (Multiple people sworn.)

 9                MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we now are into the

11   potential block vote -- potential block vote, sorry.  Not

12   enough coffee.  So we have Agenda Item Number 8 through 20

13   that are -- we have the option to block a vote on.

14                Are there any concerns or any pull-outs that the

15   Board would like to do -- to question the individuals within

16   this block -- potential block vote?

17                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I'd just

18   like to abstain from voting on Number 9, pull it from the

19   block votes.  I -- a metro police officer that I might believe

20   might at one time been in my chain of command.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Anyone else?

22                Okay.  So we have a potential block vote.  I'll

23   look for a motion.  The block vote would include Agenda Item

24   Number 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19 and 20.
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 1   Agenda Item Number 9 would be removed so that Board Member

 2   Gronauer can recuse himself from that vote.

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I'm

 4   motioning to approve consent Items Number 8 and Number 10

 5   through 20.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.  Do

 7   we have a second?

 8                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I will

 9   second.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion and we have

11   a second.  All in favor say, "aye."

12                (Motion carries.)

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So that agenda -- that

14   potential -- that block vote is approved.

15                Anybody that's in the audience that was

16   underneath those agenda items, you are welcome to leave now if

17   you would like.  We're not going to call you forward.  If you

18   would like to stay, you're more than welcome to join us.

19                Agenda Item Number 9, Thomas Riesselmann is

20   applying for an individual private patrolman license.  This is

21   subject to all statutory and regulatory requirements.  I'm

22   looking for a motion on that particular agenda item.

23                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

24   move that we approve the license for Mr. Riesselmann as an
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 1   individual private patrolman.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.  Do

 3   we have a second?

 4                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

 5   I'll second that motion.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion and have a

 7   second.  All in favor say, "aye."

 8                All -- sorry, all abstain?

 9                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Board Member Gronauer.

10   I abstain.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So the motion passes three --

12   I'm sorry, 4 to 1.  Thank you, Mr. Riesselmann.  You're here.

13   Thank you.  Congratulations.  You're free to go if you would

14   like.

15                (Motion carries.)

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So now we're on Agenda

17   Item Number 21, Dan E. Taylor of DTA Security Services, LLC,

18   License Number 1067.

19                Are you here, sir?  Good morning.

20                THE APPLICANT:  Good morning.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Good to see you again.  It's

22   that time of year.  Okay.  So, Mr. Taylor, you're asking for

23   an exemption.  Would you please explain to us what we would

24   need to consider?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

 2                So DTA Security Services is asking the Board for

 3   an exemption to bring in six active duty police officers from

 4   out of state to support the security operation at the annual

 5   CES event coming in January of '23.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Is there any questions from

 7   the Board?

 8                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  Hi,

 9   good morning.  Out of what state?

10                THE APPLICANT:  They're various states, New York,

11   Texas, Louisiana.

12                MEMBER CORTEZ:  And what kind of leave would they

13   be using?

14                THE APPLICANT:  I'm sorry, what kind of what?

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  What kind of leave?  Is it

16   personal leave?  Any disciplinary action pending,

17   investigations?

18                THE APPLICANT:  It is personal leave, so it's not

19   in conjunction with any of their departments.  They're not

20   being --

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Not planning any --

22                THE APPLICANT:  -- contracted through their

23   Department.

24                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Thank you.
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 1                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good morning, Board Member

 2   Gronauer.  You know I'm not a fan of this, okay?

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

 4                MEMBER GRONAUER:  You know we have Metropolitan

 5   police department here and Las Vegas police.  We have Nevada

 6   highway patrol, many police departments that would love to be

 7   part of this, and I'd rather take home grown people and have

 8   them make money here.

 9                Also, when you say many departments, metropolitan

10   police department would never allow this to -- to their

11   officers to go somewhere else and do it.  There's a policy.

12   Now, you have a policy for all these many police departments

13   you're talking about that says they can do this.

14                THE APPLICANT:  We do.  And so just to address

15   those, we do contract with Las Vegas metro police, the special

16   events department.  We -- and again, this year, those

17   schedules have already been submitted, working with Justin

18   White, the officer within that department that is going to

19   coordinate the police services for CES this year, that

20   invoices will -- right now, we're projecting to be at $146,000

21   for the Las Vegas metro, a portion of the security operation.

22                So that -- you know, that includes a dispatcher,

23   a lieutenant, a couple of captains, the sergeants, the command

24   post relief officers.  You know, it's a very thorough program
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 1   that we bring in from the metropolitan police department.

 2                So it is something that we're -- and we're very

 3   happy to do that, and we actually increase that each year with

 4   the volume that we contract through there.

 5                The other departments that these officers come

 6   from, they are aware of that.  In the past, we have required

 7   letters from their department to authorize them, to

 8   acknowledge and authorize that they're coming to Las Vegas to

 9   work in an unarmed security role for the CES event.

10                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Do you have letters?

11                THE APPLICANT:  I don't, no, because we haven't

12   asked them to participate yet pending the Board's approval.

13                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I end up with some angst, okay?

14   And the angst is very subtle with me.  One of the officers --

15   if I was charging the police department in Las Vegas, New

16   Mexico, okay, and my officer came here to do part-time work

17   where other officers are, and that officer -- my officer got

18   hurt here.  Where does that liability go?

19                I'm just trying to figure out how that happens

20   because this is why we are so hard on licensing here.  We've

21   had, many times, people come here, do work, their personnel

22   get hurt, they leave and the State of Nevada gets stuck with

23   the liability or the workman's comp.

24                I don't understand how that works and I'm -- you
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 1   have to understand, I'm very -- I'm all for it.  You can spend

 2   100 -- $400,000 on -- or $186,000 on all the other things here

 3   for Las Vegas.

 4                Why can't you spend another six people here?  I'm

 5   not getting it.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.

 7                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Why do you need them (sic)

 8   officers?  Our officers are just as well trained, if not

 9   better trained, especially in Las Vegas.

10                THE APPLICANT:  Absolutely.  I agree with you

11   100 percent with regard to we -- even though we're licensed

12   here and we're based here in Las Vegas, Nevada, we do this

13   type of work all across the country, and there's absolutely --

14   and I'm not just saying that because we're based here, but

15   there's no comparison.  And, in fact, I had this conversation

16   with Justin White a couple weeks ago.

17                There's no comparison with the police departments

18   that we work with to the Las Vegas metro police department

19   across the country, and these are major cities from Dallas to

20   Chicago to LA.  There's just -- there's no other department I

21   would rather work with.

22                With regard to the insurance during this time, in

23   the past when this waiver has been approved, this -- those

24   individuals are direct employees of DTA Security Services.  So
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 1   they are covered by our insurances that we carry.  So that

 2   would be -- if there was an injury, fortunately we've not had

 3   that in the past, but if there were an injury, it would be --

 4   we would cover that just like we would for any of our other

 5   employees on the roster.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So can I ask, sir, real

 7   quick?  This is Tammy.  As far as the actual individuals, are

 8   they the same individuals that have come in or the same

 9   officers that come in every year?

10                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And why are those specific

12   officers chosen year after year?

13                THE APPLICANT:  So what that gives us, which was

14   the other kind of answer to Board Member Gronauer's question,

15   it gives us that consistency.  It gives us that experience and

16   the history that they have with the functions that we assign

17   to them during that event.

18                Probably the biggest difference here with that is

19   that these individuals are able to come in.  They're in for,

20   on average, six days.  It could possibly be up to eight days.

21   But that consistency with the background experience that they

22   have for the event in that security function makes the

23   difference in that, yes, we do have a large schedule with

24   metro, Las Vegas metro police, and they supply officers every
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 1   day.

 2                But we don't -- they're not able to supply that

 3   consistency, the same officer every day in the same role.  So

 4   that's the reason that these six individuals are called out

 5   and --

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are they basically requested

 7   by client because of that consistency, or is it just something

 8   that you guys are used to?

 9                THE APPLICANT:  It's our operation.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

11                THE APPLICANT:  So they're not coming out to work

12   for somebody else.  They're coming out to work, you know, for

13   DTA in support of the CES security operation.  But they are

14   placed in the same role each year up to this point.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  The client's familiar with

16   those people then?

17                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

19                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Mr. Taylor, are --

20   have you identified these six to still have a current active

21   work card with us?  Because I don't -- in the past, what we've

22   done is these individuals have gone through our background,

23   they have registered work cards with us, and basically what

24   board staff does, if the Board approves it, we'll turn their
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 1   card on for that 6 or 8 days and immediately turn that card

 2   off again so they cannot continue to use it, other than the

 3   time frames, if you so choose to approve it.

 4                Are they all still -- do they still have active

 5   work cards that we could turn on?

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Correct.  That's correct.

 7                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Okay.  Thank you.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

 9                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I'm

10   not comfortable with making a decision if I don't have a

11   confirm.  I mean, I appreciate your word and all that, but I

12   would need some confirmation.  I heard that they weren't yet

13   on board, so they haven't actually said yes.  I mean, they

14   haven't signed any kind of legalities of what's going to

15   happen over here.

16                So I'd like to have names of the officers just so

17   we can have that.  I definitely agree with activating the work

18   cards if they're still there just during that time frame.

19   Other than that, I mean, I'm just going off your word saying

20   I've got active peace duty police officers.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum.  Yeah, and we can provide

22   that information.  We don't make an offer to them or ask them

23   to come out until we have the approval or the waiver from the

24   Board, so...
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Right.  Understood.  But you can

 2   imagine my situation, I'm just saying, oh, okay, well, so, you

 3   know, a P.O. who's really not that great of a P.O., yep,

 4   approved that I don't know who it is.  So I'd like some kind

 5   of verification that the individual is legit and he is

 6   approved to work out here.

 7                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  For the record, Kevin

 8   Ingram.  Traditionally, what's happened is if the Board

 9   approves -- because, again, they can't hire them or go into

10   contract with them --

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Right.

12                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  -- until you guys

13   approve them.  Traditionally, what happens is once the Board

14   has approved it, Mr. Taylor will provide work staff, the names

15   of the individuals.

16                Again, we have to go in and activate the card

17   to -- for them to be able to be placed on his roster for that

18   period of time.  So once he provides us those dates, we

19   activate the card.  So we are in control of whether that

20   persons gets approved or not.

21                So the Board, in their motions, could say upon

22   final approval of board staff, that they do have an active

23   work card that can be activated for this short period of time.

24   Does that answer your question?
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Yes, it does.  Thank you.

 2                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Perfect.  Thank you.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are there any further

 4   questions?  Hearing there's no further questions, I'll

 5   entertain a motion.  Sorry.

 6                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm not doubting your

 7   integrity.  I'm not doubting your company, your licensing,

 8   licensee, which is in very good standing.  I have no problem

 9   with that at all.  I just don't like people from foreign

10   states, not -- making money that our officers can make a week,

11   this is Las Vegas.  Do you know how many events we do?  So I'm

12   just not comfortable.  So apparently I've been talked out of

13   this somehow, but I want you to hear the comments.  And just

14   understand, it's not against you, it's not a personal thing.

15                THE APPLICANT:  I understand.

16                MEMBER GRONAUER:  It's definitely a business

17   thing to me because our officers deserve that in different

18   places, and they have just as much experience, if not more

19   from somebody from a foreign place that don't even know our

20   rules.  So I really have a problem with that.  Unless you're

21   at every one of them six people and why six?  Why not 20?  I'm

22   just at a point -- I cannot get comfortable with -- and I'm

23   sorry, but I want to make sure you understand --

24                THE APPLICANT:  All right.  I understand.
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 1                MEMBER GRONAUER:  -- my point of view.  I was a

 2   cop 30 years and I'd rather see our people get taken care of.

 3   I don't care what department as long as they're Nevada

 4   department.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Uh-huh.

 6                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.  That's the end of

 7   my comments.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

 9                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown --

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions or

11   comments?

12                MEMBER BROWN:  Yes.  This is Board Member Brown.

13   I have a couple questions for Mr. Taylor.

14                Mr. Taylor, these six individuals have worked for

15   you in the past and they're going in the same positions.  Are

16   they supervisory positions?

17                THE APPLICANT:  Not -- no, not supervisory.  They

18   don't have any direct reports or --

19                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  But they are six people

20   that have done this for you before?

21                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

22                MEMBER BROWN:  And they have registered work

23   cards, they've been through our background process and have

24   been approved?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

 2                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  And have the local

 3   agencies, Las Vegas Metro, North Las Vegas, Henderson, whoever

 4   you pull from, have they given you all that they can give you?

 5   They basically said this is it, this is the number, and then

 6   you need these six individuals on top of that?

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.  No, I feel like they would

 8   be able to provide additional, over and above what we

 9   currently have on schedule, and our -- really our only source

10   for law enforcement is the Las Vegas metro police with the

11   exception of what we've had approved in the past for these six

12   individuals.  But I do feel like they could certainly

13   accommodate additional requests.

14                Again, the reason that we come in and request a

15   waiver each year is just the background that these individuals

16   have with the event and the function that they perform, and

17   the fact that they're able to work in that role all the way

18   through the event for the 6 to 8 days that we have scheduled

19   that position.

20                MEMBER BROWN:  Whereas the officers that you get

21   from Las Vegas metro, they could be different each day based

22   on who signed up for the over time or whatever?

23                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

24                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  They are different every day.

 2                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions from

 5   the Board or comments?  Okay.  Hearing no further questions,

 6   I'll entertain a motion.

 7                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

 8   move to grant the exception and allow these six individuals to

 9   activate their work cards and work for the CES convention.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do we have

11   a second?

12                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

13   I'll second the motion.  However, upon clearance of all

14   workers being cleared.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we have a motion to

16   approve the exception for Dan E. Taylor Security Services,

17   Dan E. Taylor DTA, as long as they have -- the officers have

18   cleared all PILB requirements, and we have a second.

19                All in favor say, "aye."

20                All opposed?

21                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, no.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So the motion passes five

23   to -- 4 to 1, sorry.  Thank you, sir.

24                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you, ma'am.  Thank you,
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 1   Board.

 2                (Motion carries.)

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Next agenda item is

 4   change of license status, corporate name change, Integrity

 5   Support Services, Inc., DBA Employment Screening Services,

 6   License Number 1703.

 7                Is James Crockett here and Chad Parodi and

 8   Matthew Peace?

 9                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Madam Chair, for the

10   record, Matthew Peace has withdrawn his application.  So

11   you'll just be hearing on the --

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  The two.

13                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  The two individuals

14   today.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Good morning,

16   gentlemen.

17                (All say good morning.)

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Good morning.  Tell us a

19   little bit of about yourselves and the intention with the

20   change.

21                (Simultaneous speaking.)

22                (Discussion off the record.)

23                THE APPLICANT:  Nicholas Dufour, general counsel

24   for ClearStar.
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Chad Parodi, chief executive

 2   officer for ClearStar.

 3                THE APPLICANT:  James Crockett, Nevada PI.

 4                THE APPLICANT:  On December 2021, ClearStar

 5   acquired Integrity Support Services, doing business as ESR.

 6   It was an asset purchase and it purchased basically

 7   essentially all of the contracts and all -- everything that

 8   goes with the purchase agreement.

 9                So as a result, ESR already had a license, PI

10   license through Jim, and what we're requesting is just to be

11   allowed to have Jim transfer the license to -- well, to be

12   able to use it for ClearStar instead of ESR.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Board, are there any

14   questions?

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

16   Mr. -- did you say Parodi?

17                THE APPLICANT:  Parodi.

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Parodi.  What college did you go

19   to?

20                THE APPLICANT:  Sorry?

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  What college did you go to?

22                THE APPLICANT:  Georgia Southern University.

23                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  And I'm asking because of

24   the 1991 incident, I can remember.  Thank you.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions for the

 2   Board?

 3                I have one.  Does this mean since you have the

 4   asset purchase, that the -- was it -- the other company, ESR,

 5   will be no longer -- be dissolved and you'll be just be

 6   working under ClearStar?

 7                THE APPLICANT:  That's correct.  That's correct.

 8   The seller basically still owns the ESR.  They changed the

 9   name, but he's retiring and they're just waiting.  There's

10   an -- how do you call it, an earn out, you know, at the

11   one-year end.  And once that's done, it's going to dissolve.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Got you.  Okay.  Do you have

13   everything, Executive Director, to close that out on my end?

14                Okay.  Any further questions?

15                Hearing no other -- no further questions, I'll

16   entertain a motion.

17                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I

18   am motioning to grant the corporate name change from Integrity

19   Support Services, Inc. to ClearStar, Inc. DBA Employment

20   Screening Resources.  James Crockett will remain the

21   qualifying agent.  Member to approve are Nicholas Dufour and

22   Chad Parodi, all subject to statutory regulatory requirements.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.  Do we have

24   a second?
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 1                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I'll

 2   second.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

 4   second.

 5                All in favor say, "aye."

 6                (Motion carries.)

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  The motion passes.

 8   Congratulations.  Good luck to you.

 9                (Motion carries.)

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Agenda Item Number 23, we're

11   now into the changing of license status, qualifying agent and

12   new corporations.  The agenda item is Agenda Item Number 23,

13   IsraGuard Security Services.  Is Mr. Steven Ketter in the

14   audience, please?  Come forward, please, sir.

15                And then do you have Moshe Benabou?  Please come

16   forward, sir.  Thank you, gentlemen.  Please tell us a little

17   bit about yourselves and the intentions with the change.

18                THE APPLICANT:  Well, I'll start, and hello

19   again.  I saw you guys last month.  There was a specific

20   reason why Mr. Benabou was not here last month.  There was a

21   positive COVID test that prohibited him from flying.

22                If you recall, when I asked to ask a question,

23   the question, I wanted to do -- go off the record so we didn't

24   make that public.  But regardless, we're here today.  He's
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 1   able to make it.  Both of us flew in from different parts of

 2   the world.  We were both overseas yesterday and we flew in

 3   just for this.

 4                So just to kind of reiterate, I've been in the

 5   security industry for nearly three decades.  I've worked in

 6   multiple states.  I was -- also, like you guys, I was on a

 7   licensing board for about four years, two of which I was the

 8   chairman of the board.  So I can respect and understand your

 9   positions here.

10                I've done work with a number of clients.  I've

11   been licensed in different states, including Maryland and Utah

12   and now Nevada since approximately, I think, 2016.

13                As of 2018, I was the qualifying agent for a

14   company called Premier Risk Solutions for which I was there

15   for about two years, and subsequent to that, I changed over

16   and became the qualifying agent for Next Gen Watchmen where I

17   was at up until June of this year when we put somebody else in

18   that position, and I was hoping to become the qualifying agent

19   for his regard.

20                I've known Mr. Benabou for probably seven or

21   eight years now.  I've worked directly for him on projects for

22   maybe the last four years or so.  Many of the projects we

23   worked together are out of the state and he has an interest in

24   his company of -- beginning to do business here, getting
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 1   clients in the State of Nevada, and he approached me and asked

 2   if I would be willing to transfer or come from my previous

 3   qualifying agent and be the qualifying agent for him.  And

 4   I've decided to do that and so that's where I am today.  Thank

 5   you.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  Mr. Benabou.

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.  First of all, sorry about

 8   last time when I didn't make it.  It was hard to communicate

 9   with that.  My background is about 30 years in the security

10   industry.  I'm retired from the Israeli government.  I moved

11   to Nevada about 2013 and traveling all my life, so this is the

12   time for me to come and settle down and bring my experience to

13   Nevada.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  What are the -- so my

15   question is:  You intend to provide security guard services?

16                THE APPLICANT:  Security guard and training.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Do you currently have

18   business in Nevada?

19                THE APPLICANT:  I have a corporation in Nevada.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  But no services?

21                THE APPLICANT:  No, no.

22                THE APPLICANT:  We're -- as of right now, we're

23   prepared to do that if need be, because I've reactivated my

24   PPO after the last meeting was in abeyance, paid the fee,
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 1   reactivated it, got liability insurance, put the people on in

 2   the event.  But up to this point, we haven't had any.  But we

 3   anticipate.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.

 5                Board, are there any questions?

 6                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown,

 7   question for Mr. Benabou.  I see that you've had some

 8   financial difficulties, 2010, real bad year in 2011 and up

 9   2014.  Have those all been settled?

10                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir, everything has been

11   sorted.  Been long time ago, yeah.

12                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  Do

13   you have any proof that everything has been sorted, because

14   according to the notes that I have, you were unaware of this

15   judgment question, and it's a pretty substantial amount of

16   money and they were all IRS linked.  You took care of all of

17   that?

18                THE APPLICANT:  Everything has been cleared a

19   long time ago, yeah.

20                MEMBER CORTEZ:  It was cleared?

21                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

22                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  So it was not cleared when

23   you were asked?

24                THE APPLICANT:  I've been -- sorry?
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  It was not cleared when you were

 2   asked from the investigator?

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, it was cleared.  Yes, ma'am.

 4                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  And again -- okay.  So my

 5   next question is to Investigator Diaz:  When you questioned

 6   the applicant, according to your notes, he was unaware of the

 7   judgment when questioned.  Now he's standing before the Board

 8   saying that everything's been cleared, and I just want to

 9   reiterate for the record because, according to you,

10   Mr. Benabou, you've paid everything off.  In 2014, 82,000;

11   2012, 75,000; 2011, 17,000; 2011, 15,000; 2011, another one,

12   10,000; 2011, 1,000; 2011, 121,000.

13                Let's see.  What else?  Civil judgment and then a

14   final judgment was for a total amount of 13,000.  It was a

15   rental property, you took care of all of those financials?

16                THE APPLICANT:  Everything has been cleared and

17   you guys can check directly with IRS, yeah.

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Investigator Diaz, do we have any

19   more information about that?

20                INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:  This is Investigator Diaz.

21   Last that I have checked, I believe they're -- like he said,

22   he did not know about any of this, and I believe it all still

23   stood.  I believe we had an IRS report for one to two of

24   these, but not all.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So just so I'm clear, because

 2   you broke up a little bit, he was unaware when you spoke to

 3   him, but you do -- as far as paperwork wise, you have an IRS

 4   report stating that there are still some settlements or liens

 5   against him active?

 6                Okay.  Sorry, Investigator Swarthout.

 7                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  This is Investigator

 8   Saladino for the record.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Saladino, sorry.

10                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  I'm currently on Bay

11   County circuit court and the case is now matching the case

12   numbers that we have on file.  The status has all been closed

13   now.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  And what about the

15   IRS?  Is that the same?

16                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  That is the IRS.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Got you.  So let me --

18                THE APPLICANT:  I'd like to clarify something.

19   The last time you'd asked me --

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Please hold.  Please

21   hold.

22                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  So the next one

24   that is the Bow Cat, Inc. (sic.).  Is that taken care of?
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 1                (Pause in proceedings.)

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Will that one take a little

 3   bit more time, Investigator?

 4                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

 5   the record.  I apologize, the writing is super small on the

 6   website.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  While we're letting

 8   him read through that, are there any other questions for the

 9   gentlemen?

10                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  My concern

11   was the one you just asked about because that's a civilian

12   type thing.  It's all from the IRS, has something to do with

13   rental property or something.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So I guess I would have a

15   follow-up question:  Even if they are taken care of, sir,

16   what -- because it's concerning when we're going to allow a

17   business to open, we want to make sure that payroll is going

18   to be met.  That's always my concern, right?  So how did you

19   get into this situation?

20                THE APPLICANT:  So what's when I moved back to

21   the U.S. in 2003, I moved to Palm Beach, Florida, opened a

22   business there and then oils crashed completely all the

23   businesses.  We tried to sell down with IRS and everything, no

24   comments, no nothing, just going and going and going.
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 1                So -- and when I shut down the company,

 2   everything is right after we completely -- so we settled down

 3   slowly, slowly and then my business manager disappeared till

 4   everything is canceled.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  May I add something?

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Sure.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.  So for the last four years

 9   that I've worked with different projects of -- probably in the

10   range of 30 to 40 different events that I've worked, I have

11   never experienced a problem.  I've always been paid for

12   everything.  So that's a snapshot of what has been over the

13   last four years.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.

15                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

16   the record, The Bow Cat (sic.) is closed.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any further

18   questions from the Board?

19                Okay.  Hearing no further questions, I'll

20   entertain a motion.

21                (Discussion off the record.)

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  No, he said it's closed.

23                Do you have any other questions?  Okay.  So I'll

24   entertain a motion.
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 1                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown for the

 2   record.

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

 4                MEMBER BROWN:  Go ahead, Board Member Cortez.

 5                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Go ahead, Mr. Brown.  Go ahead.

 6                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  This is Board Member Brown

 7   for the record.  I move that we approve the corporate private

 8   patrolman license for Mr. Ketter who will place his individual

 9   license in abeyance and become a qualifying agent, and I also

10   move that we approve Moshe Benabou as a corporate officer

11   for IsraGuard Security U.S., Incorporated.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we have a motion.

13   Do we have a second?

14                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez, I

15   second the motion.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

17   second.

18                All in favor say, "aye."

19                (Motion carries.)

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Motion passes.

21   Congratulations, gentlemen.

22                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you very much.

23                MEMBER GRONAUER:  (Microphone off.)  I appreciate

24   you showing up for this because it's very important --
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 1                THE COURT REPORTER:  I can't hear.

 2                (Discussion off the record.)

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  It was really good.

 4                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I just reiterating again --

 5   reiterating -- can you hear me now, Mr. Brown?

 6                MEMBER BROWN:  Yes, sir.  Thank you.

 7                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Here's the deal:  I want to

 8   make sure that everybody is for -- everybody is good.  The

 9   comment I want to make is:  I appreciate you returning here

10   for this series.  Last time you didn't come.

11                THE APPLICANT:  I didn't want you to catch the

12   COVID, so --

13                MEMBER GRONAUER:  If you don't show up, any

14   licensee -- anybody looking for a license in the State of

15   Nevada, they don't want to show up, I don't want to give them

16   a license.

17                THE APPLICANT:  A hundred percent.

18                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay?  So thank you.

19   Appreciate it.  Good luck.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  Thank you,

21   gentlemen.

22                Okay.  Next, Agenda Item Number 24, we'll take

23   this last one, 24, and then take a ten-minute break.  We'll go

24   to 25.  If it goes past the time -- I'm telling you --
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Let's go, let's do this.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So Agenda Item Number

 3   -- huh?

 4                MEMBER CORTEZ:  We're going to do 24 and 25 just

 5   to keep it in there.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Her OCD is kicking in and

 7   kicking my butt.  So let's -- yeah.

 8                Okay.  Agenda Item Number 24, Retail Security

 9   Services is applying for a new corporate private patrolman

10   license.  Do we have Quentin Goins?  Please come forward.  And

11   Kathleen Larmour, Larmour.  Okay.  And Danielle Procida.

12                (Discussion off the microphone.)

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We wanted to see the baby.

14                THE APPLICANT:  Do you want to see it?

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Amanda Fredette.

16                THE APPLICANT:  She's not here either.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

18                THE APPLICANT:  She's at home with four kids.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So Retail Security

20   Services applying, please tell us a little bit about

21   yourselves and your intentions with the licenses.

22                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, good morning.  My name is

23   Quentin Goins, private patrolman 1425.  I've had a business

24   and a license about 15 years here and I want to change the
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 1   status to be QA.

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Good morning, I'm Kathleen

 3   Larmour.  I'm the owner of Retail Security Services.  I have

 4   been providing security guard services nationally for retail

 5   stores and restaurants for about 20 years.

 6                We did -- I have two other companies, so when we

 7   first started Security, we did it for professional retail

 8   services.  But it grew so much, I needed to move it to a

 9   separate entity because there were different insurances and

10   requirements.

11                We -- I am based in New York.  We do -- we were

12   doing quite a bit of business here, about $900,000 a year,

13   until we just got stopped.  We didn't -- I didn't know when

14   Kurt stopped being our QA, he introduced me to Quentin and we

15   did the contract.  We thought -- or heard that that was all we

16   needed to do.  We didn't know that we had to come before the

17   Board again and reapply.  So we were working for two years

18   with Kurt as our QA.

19                We do not bring in our own people.  We hire local

20   companies here in Nevada and Las Vegas to perform the work.

21   We make sure we have copies of all their insurance, their

22   workers' comp and we pay all the taxes.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So basically subcontract to

24   local companies?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Got you.  Any other

 3   questions for Retail Services Group?

 4                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  What is your

 5   name, ma'am?

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Kathleen Larmour.

 7                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Where is Amanda?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Amanda is home.  She has four

 9   children under the age of ten and school just started for her

10   back in New York, so she wasn't able to make it.

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  She's back in New York?

12                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.  Her husband is a marine and

13   so he is --

14                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Semper fi.  I still have

15   questions.

16                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.  I'll answer them.

17                MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Well, Amanda has

18   some things on here on -- you know, that I'd be a little more

19   concerned about.  So with the business, how is -- Retail

20   Security Services, is that what you are now?

21                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And doing business

23   without license?

24                THE APPLICANT:  No.  Well, we have -- we were
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 1   asked to provide -- Nevada is the only one, State of Nevada

 2   asked us when we applied a couple years ago, to provide

 3   business licenses for the other states that we do work in.

 4                And we have submitted -- I believe we were asked

 5   to submit ten notifications, emails, letters from the other

 6   states that we work in.  And because we subcontract, we're not

 7   required to be licensed in those states.

 8                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Which states are they?  If I

 9   can just...

10                THE APPLICANT:  Almost all of them.  I mean, I

11   don't know.  Do you want me to give you the letters that I

12   have?

13                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Let's get Swarthout.  Can you

14   explain some things on that?  The lady is not here, so I can't

15   figure it out.

16                MEMBER CORTEZ:  It's her --

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  -- so -- yeah, so the fine or

18   the license -- unlicensed work was done by this entire group,

19   not just that one lady.  They were -- so they get jobs from,

20   say, Ross's and they subcontract to local companies.

21                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I get what they do.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.

23                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I didn't know -- it's written

24   on -- that one is written on --
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah, it's on two.  I

 2   think -- you're new, right, sir?

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So you're new, you're now

 5   trying to become a qualifying agent, and then you're the

 6   owner.  And the other two ladies, are they out of New York as

 7   well?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, just -- they're both my

 9   children, my daughters.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Oh, okay.  So they're both

11   your children.  So you will then get the work still.

12                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And then it will be sent to

14   him to subcontract to other companies?

15                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, we have a list of companies

16   that we use that are in good standing here.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Got you.  And then I'm

18   sorry, Bobby, on your question, this is a little bit different

19   than what I'm used to.

20                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Madam Chair, if I

21   may.  Kevin Ingram for the record.  We did list the states in

22   the body that they provided information on.  Alaska, Iowa,

23   Missouri, Nebraska, Rhode Island, South Dakota and Wyoming

24   both regulate on subcontracting like we do.
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 1                The other ones -- Minnesota, Connecticut would

 2   not provide input unless we applied for licensure and, you

 3   know, when they became before the Board originally, they paid

 4   their own license recitation.  And the Board, at that time,

 5   felt that they hadn't made an attempt to get licensed in any

 6   other states and they were asking Nevada for a license.

 7                And so we sent the -- well, the Board sent it to

 8   them saying, look, prove to us that you're making an effort to

 9   get licensed in other states, and then we'll reevaluate your

10   application here in Nevada, if that helps.

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Well, I read through it --

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And I think there's two

13   different -- we had another company that had the same problem.

14   They were subcontracts like Walgreen's and stuff.

15                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Sir, what's your name?

16                THE APPLICANT:  Quentin Goins.

17                MEMBER GRONAUER:  May I call you Quentin?  Here's

18   the deal, Quentin.  This is Gronauer.  You've been a QA for

19   how long -- or you're trying to be a QA, but you've been in

20   business how long?

21                THE APPLICANT:  About 15 years.

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah.  Well, your license

23   number, I can tell.  Okay.  Now, you understand what a QA has

24   to do?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 2                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm listening.

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Well, I mean, in short, it would

 4   be assuring the compliance of everything that goes through

 5   detail that operates in the State of Nevada.

 6                MEMBER GRONAUER:  And all the people that is

 7   hired have licensing and everything else, right?  You

 8   understand?

 9                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, I understand it.

10                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I understand there was a lapse

11   the last two years you've been working with her.  Is that what

12   I heard?

13                THE APPLICANT:  No, sir.  Kurt was our qualifying

14   agent.  When that contract was up, he introduced me to

15   Quentin.

16                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Right.

17                THE APPLICANT:  And so we've hired him in

18   February of this year.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So since we -- since your

20   actual November 2019, have you guys been providing services?

21                THE APPLICANT:  We were up until -- I think it

22   was May of this year.  Was it May?

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So how are you providing

24   services if you didn't have a license?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Because we were working with Kurt

 2   who was our QA, so we were able to work with him.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So was Kurt licensed?

 4                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  So for clarification,

 5   Kevin Ingram, a previous license holder had gotten a DBA.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Um-hum.

 7                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  And was working as if

 8   they were a company under his DBA, and at least, on the

 9   surface, made it semi-legal.  Once that was found out and that

10   person was told, wait, what are you doing.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

12                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  You can't do that.

13   So they broke service with that QA and that QA, through our

14   investigation, had given them very erroneous information.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Got you.

16                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  That got them into a

17   predicament.  We gave them a cease and desist immediately, and

18   once I contacted them to give them a cease and desist, that,

19   no, it can't work that way, then they partnered with Mr. Goins

20   to try to do things the right way.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So in 2019 when this

22   fine originally came down, that has nothing to do with what's

23   going on right now?

24                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  That's correct,
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 1   totally separate.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So two -- okay.

 3                MEMBER GRONAUER:  So we're semi-legal that way,

 4   as you say.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.

 6                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  With them cease and

 7   desisting immediately, they complied with the direction of the

 8   Board and then are moving forward with a legitimate QA.

 9                MEMBER GRONAUER:  (Microphone off.)  I'll be --

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I'm sorry?

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  (Microphone off.)  I love to

12   hear it, but I'm confused.  That's okay.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are there any further

14   questions?

15                MEMBER BROWN:  Yes, this is Board Member Brown

16   for the record.  On Ms. or Mrs. Fredette's application, she

17   doesn't list a position that she's going to hold in your

18   company.  What would her position be?

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  What would your position be,

20   ma'am?

21                THE APPLICANT:  Mine?

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yes.

23                THE APPLICANT:  I'm the chief executive office.

24                MEMBER BROWN:  You're Mrs. Fredette?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  No, no, no.

 2                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Amanda's position?

 4                MEMBER BROWN:  Amanda's position, yes.  On her

 5   application, she did not list what position or corporate

 6   officer she is going to be.

 7                THE APPLICANT:  She's basically an admin for the

 8   company.  She doesn't -- she's not involved in the day-to-day

 9   activities of the company.  She's an internal administrator.

10                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.

11                THE APPLICANT:  She goes over contracts from the

12   clients, she has a big part in keeping all of our licensing up

13   to date every year.

14                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.

15                THE APPLICANT:  You're welcome.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So am I -- in this request,

17   she's becoming a corporate officer?

18                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  (Nodded head.)

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So is she your CEO or --

20                THE APPLICANT:  She's actually listed as a

21   secretary.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Got you.

23                THE APPLICANT:  So she --

24                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  I'm sorry, for the
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 1   record --

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  -- him --

 3                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Right.  The corporate

 4   officers, anyone that is on the Secretary of State licensing,

 5   those are the individuals, the top three principals who are

 6   required to apply for corporate officer status.

 7                So they're corporate officers of the company and

 8   as far as duties and responsibilities they can assume whenever

 9   the company deems fit.  She wasn't listed as secretary on

10   Nevada Secretary of State.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Does that help?

12                MEMBER BROWN:  Yes, it does.  Thank you.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  It's a little

14   confusing.  Sorry, it's a little difficult where you stand.

15                THE APPLICANT:  No, I understand.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So are there any further

17   questions from the Board?  Okay.  Hearing no further

18   questions, we'll entertain a motion.

19                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick, Board Member

20   Bezick.  I make a motion that Retail Security Services be

21   approved for a new corporate private patrolman license.

22                And that if approved, Quentin Goins, License

23   Number 1810, his license be held in abeyance so he may become

24   the qualifying agent for Retail Security Services, and that
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 1   corporate officers could be approved are Kathleen Larmour,

 2   Danielle Procida and Amanda Fredette.  This is subject to all

 3   statutory and regulatory requirements.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we have a motion.

 5                Do we have a second?

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez, I'll

 7   second that motion.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

 9   second.

10                All in favor say, "aye."

11                All opposed?

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, no.

13                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, nay,

14   no.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we have no, 4 -- 3 to 2.

16   You messed up my math.  Brown.

17                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Who said no?

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we have -- do we -- could

19   we please put a reason for the nays on the record?

20                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  My nay is

21   because I don't quite understand what happened between 2019

22   and 2022, where we are right now.  I'm still confused with the

23   whole situation.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Board Member Brown.
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 1                MEMBER BROWN:  I echo that, and also I wasn't

 2   present for the last meeting, but we denied an application

 3   because one of their applicants did not come.

 4                We've required them to come from overseas, we

 5   just saw them, and now we have an applicant that hasn't come

 6   also.  So those are my reasons.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  So the motion

 8   passes 3 to 2 and you are approved.  Please, you know, make

 9   sure that you dot all the I's and T's and all that stuff

10   because it is going to be watched.

11                (Motion carries.)

12                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you so much.  Have a great

13   day, people.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  No, she wanted --

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  One more -- we got one more --

16                (Simultaneous speaking.)

17                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Just one more.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Please note we're fighting

19   amongst ourselves.

20                MEMBER CORTEZ:  One more in this block and then

21   we can take all the breaks.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Agenda Item Number 25,

23   Agenda Number 25, General Security Response Services, LLC.

24   Corinthia Yancey, are you in the audience?  Please come
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 1   forward.

 2                Okay.  I just want to put on the record that I

 3   will have to recuse myself from this particular decision.  I

 4   have worked with Ms. Yancey in the past and so I feel it's

 5   appropriate for me to recuse myself.

 6                Please tell us a little bit about yourself,

 7   Ms. Yancey and your intentions with the license.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  My license was approved this past

 9   January as a sole proprietor.  I would like to change it to an

10   LLC as advised by some of my supporters.  I've connected with

11   P-Tech, so they've been kind of helping me with growing a

12   business, learning it and overall the credibility of my

13   company.  I'd like to protect it, limit my personal

14   liabilities.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any

16   questions for Ms. Yancey?

17                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

18   just want to check on the status of the Secretary of State

19   business license.

20                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  For the record, Kevin

21   Ingram.  I had sent them an updated email late yesterday

22   afternoon, you may not have received.  Ms. Yancey came into

23   the office and met with me yesterday, and Secretary of State

24   had messed up some paperwork when she applied.
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 1                She's been working with them, trying to amend the

 2   documents and correct that.  It's kind of a slow process,

 3   amending the paperwork with the Secretary of State.  She was

 4   able to provide documents that shows that it was approved and

 5   accepted.

 6                Now she's about two weeks out of receiving the

 7   actual Secretary of State business license.  She is aware that

 8   if approved today, until board staff has the actual license in

 9   our hands, we will not be able to activate it.  She's aware of

10   that and accepting of that.  Thank you.

11                MEMBER BROWN:  Thank you, Director Ingram, for

12   putting that on the record.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions from

14   the Board?  Okay.  Hearing no further questions, we'll

15   entertain a motion.

16                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez

17   motioning to approve General Security & Response Service, LLC,

18   a new corporate private patrolman license.

19                If approved Ms. Corinthia Yancey, License Number

20   4028, the license to be placed in advance so she can become

21   the qualifying agent.  All of this is statutory -- subject to

22   all statutory and regulatory requirements.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.

24                Do we have a second?
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 1                MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown, I will second.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

 3   second.

 4                All in favor say, "aye."

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And I'm recused, so 4 to 1.

 6   Congratulations.  Please make sure you get with the licensing

 7   board -- or they'll get with you to close out everything else

 8   that you need, okay?

 9                THE APPLICANT:  All right.  Thank you.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.

11                (Motion carries.)

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Now we're going to take a

13   ten-minute break.  Thank you all for your patience.  We'll be

14   right back at 45 after, a little over ten minutes.

15                (Recess.)

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we are now on

17   Agenda Item Number 26, the corporate officers.  Do we have

18   North Star Defense, License Number 3052, Michael Loria?

19                Please come forward, sir.  Thank you.  Please

20   tell us a little bit about yourself and your request.

21                THE APPLICANT:  I'm requesting to be president of

22   North Star Defense.  I've been in the towing business for

23   about ten-plus years now.  We started at zero and up to about

24   16 employees right now.  I'm looking to take over North Star
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 1   Defense and do the same.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any

 3   questions from the Board?  Okay.  So I'll start then.

 4                I'm looking at your background and you have a

 5   somewhat extensive background.  Investigator Hubbell, have all

 6   of these been resolved?

 7                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  Yes, ma'am, they have.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  And so I'm

 9   understanding, currently you're in the car towing -- you're in

10   the towing business?

11                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And you're going into -- this

13   new company would be a security company?

14                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Okay.  Any further

16   questions from the Board?

17                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  Sir,

18   what background or what qualifications do you have in the

19   security industry?

20                THE APPLICANT:  So in a security industry itself,

21   I only have about six months.  But our vice president, which

22   is also our QA, has 30-plus years, and the two captains that I

23   did hire both have about 15 years each.

24                So my background will be in business, running the
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 1   company, making sure all employees are paid, making sure the

 2   company is growing and then learn the security industry as I

 3   go on by the people that I hire.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And do you understand the

 5   qualifications of a QA?  I know that you're not applying for

 6   the QA, but you understand the QA process?

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And what the requirements

 9   are for --

10                THE APPLICANT:  -- yes, ma'am.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And work cards?

12                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any further questions

14   from the Board?

15                Hearing no further questions, I'll entertain a

16   motion.

17                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I

18   motion to approve Mr. Loria to serve as the corporate officer

19   director for North Star Defense, and that is License Number

20   3052, be placed in abeyance with all -- and subject to

21   statutory and regulatory requirements.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.

23                Do we have a second?

24                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick, I'll second.
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 1                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  A little side bar

 2   here for just a minute.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Side bar.

 4                (Side bar conference.)

 5                MEMBER CORTEZ:  For the record, we're striking my

 6   comment to be placed in abeyance.  That was made in error.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we have a motion.

 8                Do we have a second?

 9                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick, I'll second.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we have a motion,

11   we have a second.

12                All in favor say, "aye."

13                Okay.  Motion passes.

14                (Motion carries.)

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations, sir.

16                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Agenda Item Number 27,

18   Griffin Investigations.  Is that you, sir?  Please come

19   forward.  Please tell us a little bit about yourself and the

20   request for the license.

21                THE APPLICANT:  I work for Griffin

22   Investigations.  December 2015, I think I started.  The owner

23   recently died and the company is transferred over to the new

24   ownership.  The previous vice president is now president of
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 1   the corporation and vice president and I'm the person

 2   selected.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are there any questions for

 4   Mr. Ludwig?  Okay.  Hearing there are no questions, I'll

 5   entertain a motion.

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez,

 7   motioning to approve Mr. Ludwig as corporate officer to

 8   Griffin Investigations, Inc., License Number 74, subject to

 9   all statutory and regulatory requirements.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do I have a

11   second?

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

14   second.

15                All in favor say, "aye."

16                Motion passes.

17                (Motion carries.)

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations, sir.

19                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  That was the original

21   license, Number 74.

22                (Discussion off the record.)

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we're now onto private

24   patrolman section.  We have Agenda Item Number 28, Live Guard
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 1   Tech, LLC, who's applying for a new corporate private license.

 2   Antonio Perez-Vargas, are you here, sir?  Thank you.

 3                Are you the only one?

 4                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So tell us a little

 6   bit about yourself and your intentions with the license.

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, good morning.  Good morning,

 8   Mr. Ingram, and congratulations and thank your kind staff.

 9   They were very helpful in guiding us through this process.

10   And, Board, respectfully, thank you for being here.

11                Can you hear me okay?  I'm sorry, I just noticed

12   that I was -- probably not being heard by -- my name is

13   Antonio Perez-Vargas, about -- back in 2013, started a

14   technology based company to try to do live monitoring of video

15   surveillance systems that allow us to provide what we describe

16   as casino grade monitoring in outdoor areas like in a

17   construction site or so.

18                We were successful after some challenges and we

19   manufacture our equipment in Phoenix, Arizona.  And one of our

20   clients, this -- asked us if he could bring his equipment

21   here.

22                And we did what we thought was correct back then,

23   which was to register with the corporation commission and try

24   to find out, you know, if there was anything else that we
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 1   needed to do at the time, because at the time, we didn't have

 2   anymore employees or anything else.

 3                And from there, we later learned that maybe I

 4   should have done a little more diligence work and we got a

 5   citation from the Private Investigator Licensing Board.  We

 6   tried to resolve it and then we got caught a little bit with

 7   COVID and it was a little bit challenging.  But here we are,

 8   and I appreciate the opportunity to be here with you.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any

10   questions from the Board?  Okay.  No questions from the Board,

11   I'll entertain a motion.

12                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

13   move that we grant Live Guard Tech, LLC, a new corporate

14   private patrolman license with Antonio Perez-Vargas, also

15   being approved for a private -- an individual private

16   patrolman license, which if approved, will be placed in

17   abeyance so that he may become the qualifying agent.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.

19                Do we have a second?  Member to be approved, can

20   we add that?

21                MEMBER BROWN:  Oh, yes, I'm sorry.  And we also

22   grant Antonio Perez-Vargas member status.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  We have a motion.

24                Do we have a second?
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez, I'll

 2   second that motion.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion, we

 4   have a second.

 5                All in favor say, "aye."

 6                (Motion carries.)

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations, sir.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.

10                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you again.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Stratum Risk Advisors, Inc.

12   is applying for Agenda Item 29.  Good afternoon -- or good

13   morning, sir, Michael Vaness.  And you must be Mitchell

14   McAlister.

15                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Tell us a little bit

17   about yourself, the intentions with the licenses.

18                THE APPLICANT:  So I'm Mitchell McAlister.  I'm

19   an Australian Army veteran and I spent ten and a half years in

20   our military.  Most of that, we did special operations,

21   several combat tours overseas.

22                Also the chief executive for the Saline

23   Corporations Group, License 2240.  We've been licensed here

24   since December 1, 2016, headquartered here in Las Vegas, but
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 1   we separate all over the U.S.

 2                We're applying for essentially the second license

 3   to split some of services in the company, separate the

 4   physical security from the consulting and risk management

 5   side.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any

 7   questions from the Board?  Okay.  Hearing there are no further

 8   questions, I'll entertain a motion.

 9                Do you have a question?  Okay.

10                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Who's the other gentlemen?

11                THE APPLICANT:  Mike Vaness.

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Can you speak?

13                THE APPLICANT:  Absolutely.

14                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Tell us about yourself.

15                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.  So I've been in the

16   security world since about 2007.  In 2008, I joined the Army,

17   went to the 82nd, did that for about six years and then came

18   back into the security world ever since I got out.

19                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  So when you had the

20   problem with the IRS, apparently that was somebody else's

21   problem, not yours?

22                THE APPLICANT:  That was -- yes, that was for a

23   tax claim.  We had a CPA firm that handles everything and

24   there was missed fee that they needed to pay on the tax
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 1   extension.  So I provided the documentation to the

 2   investigator as far as the admission from our CPA firm as well

 3   as the release of that --

 4                (Admonishment by court reporter, cannot hear.)

 5                MEMBER GRONAUER:  (Microphone not on.)  Okay.

 6   And you had some --

 7                (Admonishment by the court reporter.)

 8                (Discussion off the record.)

 9                MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Sir, you had some

10   other problems with the unlicensed work?

11                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.  So about -- I think it

12   was 2018, I was living in Phoenix at the time.  One of my good

13   friends worked for the UFC, so he asked if I wanted to help

14   him do some EP work in Phoenix, and after that, my -- Zuffa

15   reached out and asked if I would want them to help out over

16   here and, unknowingly, that I had to have a security license

17   to do it by myself as a 1099.

18                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  You understand that a

19   license and a work card are two different things?

20                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

21                MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  You worked with a

22   licensee who worked with a work card?

23                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

24                MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  And if you're a
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 1   licensee, you have people with a work card that work for you.

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

 3                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  So I understand.  Thank

 4   you.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are there any further

 6   questions from the Board?  Okay.  Hearing no further

 7   questions, I'll entertain a motion.

 8                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

 9   move that we grant Stratum Risk Advisors, Incorporated a new

10   corporate private patrolman license and we grant Michael D.

11   Vaness an individual private patrolman license, which if

12   approved, he will place in abeyance so that he may become a

13   qualifying agent.

14                Corporate officer, I move that we grant corporate

15   officer status to Mitchell J. McAlister, subject to all

16   regulatory requirements -- statutory and regulatory

17   requirements, I'm sorry.  And since Mr. Gronauer gets to do

18   his, I'll say mine, go Army, beat Navy.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we have a motion.

20                Do we have a second?

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez, I am

22   seconding the motion.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

24   second.
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 1                All in favor say, "aye."

 2                (Motion carries.)

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations, gentlemen.

 4   Good luck to you.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Agenda Item Number 30,

 7   Elijah Muhammad.  Are you here?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Good morning, everyone.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Good morning.  Okay.  So I'm

10   sorry, sir, please tell us a little bit about yourself and the

11   intentions with the license.

12                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.  I'm the current -- I'm the

13   owner of Preventative Measures Security.  I've been the owner

14   of the company since we opened in 20 -- ten years ago.  So our

15   QA, one of -- a friend of mine, 73 years old, is having some

16   health issues.  He had a couple of bouts with cancer a couple

17   of years, beat the cancer.

18                Some things came back that are convalescing.  Had

19   another QA in mind because I really didn't want to do it and,

20   you know, he offered me 50 percent of the business.  So I

21   said, you know, I can do it myself.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  On your way, right?

23                THE APPLICANT:  That's ridiculous.  So I've just

24   decided to step in.  A little bit about us, we're -- we
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 1   operate in five states, in the State of Nevada, California,

 2   Michigan, Washington and Florida, and I also own other

 3   businesses as well.

 4                But, you know, over the last three years, just

 5   for COVID, I've kind of focused on the Nevada market because

 6   this is our stronghold.  You know, we do well in the other

 7   states, but not like Las Vegas.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Do you currently

 9   reside in Las Vegas?

10                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  All right.  Are there

12   any further questions from the Board?

13                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Board Member Cortez, question for

14   Investigator Saladino.  Where are we at with the Rapid Cash

15   outstanding balance?

16                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  So the applicant --

17   Investigator Saladino for the record.  The applicant has

18   provided court documents to show that he is paying it.

19                MEMBER CORTEZ:  What's the balance owed at this

20   time?

21                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  I believe it was paid in

22   full, correct?

23                THE APPLICANT:  It's not my debt.

24                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Regardless, I understand you're
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 1   going through --

 2                THE APPLICANT:  But it -- yes, it was --

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  -- civil litigations through it,

 4   but what's the final amount.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  It was paid in full.

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Paid in full.

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

 8                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Thank you.  No further questions.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions from

10   the Board?

11                MEMBER BROWN:  Yes, this is Board Member Brown.

12   Question for Investigator Hubber, I want to make sure that I

13   understand, the scope returned positive results.  Were those

14   for the citations for the pedestrian on the highway?  Is that

15   where that comes from?

16                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  That is correct and those

17   were taken care of, I believe, with just paying a fine.

18                MEMBER BROWN:  Thank you.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any further questions

20   from the Board?

21                I do have one.  Investigator Saladino, on your

22   thing here, it says that there was another lien, looks like

23   maybe two, and that you had spoken to the applicant about the

24   civil judgment.
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 1                And it was stated that he owned all the vehicles

 2   and he did -- he didn't know where this was coming from.  Have

 3   we resolved all that?  Has that all been closed out.

 4                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

 5   the record.  City Financial Auto is no longer in business.  So

 6   the applicant had tried reaching out to everyone he could to

 7   find out what's going on with this and there's nobody

 8   available to even speak to.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  What do you think,

10   that it's court or it's just closed out since they're no

11   longer in business?

12                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  I'm not really sure.

13                (Discussion off the record.)

14                (Board was advised of the microphones being off.)

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  My apologies.  This is Board

16   Member Cortez.  My question is:  How can you provide

17   clarification to the question --

18                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Your microphone has

19   completely cut out now.

20                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  My

21   question was for Mr. Muhammad, if he could provide some

22   clarification as to -- as far as the liens go.

23                THE APPLICANT:  I've never once heard of City

24   Financial until Investigator Hubbell reached out to me.  I put
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 1   houses in Texas, I own property here.  Everything I have, I

 2   own.  I don't believe in debt.  I believe that is slavery.

 3                I've never heard of City Financial, whatsoever.

 4   When I spoke to Mr. Hubbell about it, I thought it was a dead

 5   issue.  When I spoke with Mr. Saladino about it, I decided to

 6   reach out to them.  They're not even in business.  They

 7   haven't been in business for a long time.  Again, I've never

 8   heard of them.

 9                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Understood.  Thank you.

10                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

11                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Madam Chair, Investigator

12   Saladino for the record.  According to the Court documents out

13   of Clark County, the balance due as of August 18th of 2022 is

14   zero.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  That's what I

16   wanted.  Okay.  Thank you.  Any further questions for

17   Mr. Muhammad?  Okay.

18                Hearing no further questions, I'll entertain a

19   motion.

20                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

21   move that we grant Elijah Muhammad an individual private

22   patrolman license and allow him to place that in abeyance upon

23   approval so that he may become a qualifying agent for

24   Preventative Measures Security firm, LLC.
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez, I

 2   motion -- or I second the motion.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion, we

 4   have a second.  All in favor say, "aye."

 5                (Motion carries.)

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations.  Thank you.

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.  Have a good day.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You, too.

 9                Okay.  Agenda Item 31, John T. Davis is applying

10   for an individual private investigator's license.  Thank you,

11   sir.

12                THE APPLICANT:  Good morning.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Private patrolman, sorry.

14   Private patrolman license.  Please tell us a little bit about

15   yourself and your intentions with the license.

16                THE APPLICANT:  Sure.  I've been involved with

17   security for the past 25 years or so.  We started Southwest

18   Protective Agency about six years, licensed through Michael

19   Conte.  He's my business partner.  He is the qualifying agent

20   now.  He's getting married and moving to northern California.

21   He's going to expand operations into California and northern

22   Nevada and we need somebody who has to have a qualifying agent

23   status.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any
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 1   questions of Mr. Davis?

 2                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I

 3   do have a question for Investigator Saladino.  Do we have

 4   results of the background and fingerprints of Mr. Davis?

 5                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

 6   the record.  As of currently this morning, we do not.

 7                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So as noted by Investigator

 9   Saladino, we still don't have the fingerprints back for

10   Mr. Davis.  Thoughts?

11                Okay.  So according to counsel, we can do a

12   contingent approval based on fingerprints, so just put that

13   in, you know, your thought process as we go through this.

14                Are there any other questions for Mr. Davis?

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I

16   do have a question for you, Mr. Davis.  Any issues or any

17   contact, regardless of disposition, any contact?

18                THE APPLICANT:  Aside from just daily operations?

19                MEMBER CORTEZ:  No, like, hey, how's it going?

20   Any potential criminal --

21                THE APPLICANT:  No, none.

22                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions from

24   the Board?  Okay.  Hearing no further questions, I'll
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 1   entertain a motion.

 2                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I'm

 3   motioning to make a contingent approval for Mr. Davis to grant

 4   an individual private patrolman license, that it be placed in

 5   abeyance so that he can become a qualifying agent for

 6   Southwest Protective Agency, License Number 2194, subject to

 7   all authority --

 8                (Audio feed from Las Vegas cut off.)

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.

10                Do we have a second?

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

13   second.

14                All in favor say, "aye."

15                (Motion carries.)

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations, sir.  Now,

17   remember, that's contingent on the fingerprints coming back.

18   So please stay in contact or they'll contact you if there's

19   anything adverse.  If it comes back adverse, then it is not

20   approved.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you very much.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  All right.  Thank you.

23                Now that we've gone to break and come back, I see

24   some new faces, some shiny new faces, which is fantastic.  I'm
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 1   glad you're here, but I would like to have you all sworn in,

 2   just --

 3                MS. HARRIS:  For those on the agenda or for

 4   anyone who plans to testify, can you please stand and raise

 5   your right hand.

 6                (Prospective people sworn.)

 7                MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Now we're on Agenda

 9   Item Number 32, Coleman Security.  Mr. Troy T. Coleman, are

10   you here, sir?  Okay.

11                THE APPLICANT:  Good morning.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And it's just you, good

13   morning still, yeah.

14                THE APPLICANT:  Oh, yeah.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.  Tell us a little bit

16   about yourself and the intentions with the license.

17                THE APPLICANT:  So I'm a security officer of a

18   security company and a private investigator in the State of

19   California for the past 18 years or so.

20                And my intentions for -- were to be in compliance

21   with the State of Nevada if I have a client that comes here

22   and -- for entertainment and...

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So if I could ask,

24   you're mostly entertainment security?  Is that what it is?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Personal security.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Personal security.  Okay.

 3   Any further questions from the Board?

 4                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, this is Gronauer.  Is it

 5   armed?

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Some is armed, some is not.

 7                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you have an armed card?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  I'm a firearms instructor and I

 9   do have -- not for Nevada, I do not have it.  I was going to

10   get it after this process.  I will get my CCW.

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  It's nice that you want

12   to get it.

13                THE APPLICANT:  Well, it depends on -- yeah.

14                MEMBER GRONAUER:  You understand what you mean?

15                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, yes, I understand.

16                MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Because personal

17   security whether or not its to bear arms, I was just trying to

18   figure it out.

19                THE APPLICANT:  No problem.  I have both licenses

20   in California and I plan on here.  I just wanted to get

21   through this process first.  This is a long process.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yes.  Any further questions

23   from the Board?

24                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown for the
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 1   record.  Mr. Coleman, what did you do for work from 1991 to

 2   2004?  You didn't list it on your application.

 3                THE APPLICANT:  I was part -- I'm part of law

 4   enforcement as well.  And then once I got injured, that's when

 5   I started my security company.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So from '90 -- what was it,

 7   Mr. Brown?  From 90 --

 8                MEMBER BROWN:  Well, I -- he shows -- in the

 9   background, it shows that he was employed by the Alameda

10   County Sheriff's Office in California from May 29th, 1990, to

11   May 4th, 1991.  On his application, he lists his job starting

12   in 2004.

13                What did you do from 1991 to 2004, sir?

14                THE APPLICANT:  Law enforcement, sir.

15                MEMBER BROWN:  And who is that law enforcement

16   with?

17                THE APPLICANT:  It started off, my first agency

18   was Alameda County Sheriff's Office, went through the academy,

19   starting working the jails.  That wasn't my cup of tea.  So I

20   moved over to San Jose Police Department and then I spent the

21   rest of the time there until I was injured.

22                MEMBER BROWN:  And you were injured in -- around

23   1991?  Is that when you ended your law enforcement career?

24                THE APPLICANT:  '93, somewhere around '93.
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 1                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.  Well, now

 2   I'm -- I'm still confused.  So you stopped being a law

 3   enforcement in '93.  What did you do from '93 to 2004?

 4   There's nothing on your application for jobs prior to 2004.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.  I also own a construction

 6   company as well, so...

 7                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  So you were running your

 8   construction company after you were injured in law enforcement

 9   until you --

10                THE APPLICANT:  Right.

11                MEMBER BROWN:  -- began this corporation?

12                THE APPLICANT:  Correct.

13                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.

14                THE APPLICANT:  Correct.  Yes, sir.

15                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  How long did

16   you spend in law enforcement?

17                THE APPLICANT:  About seven years, I believe, or

18   5 to 7 years.  '90 to '95, so about five years.

19                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I can understand being in

20   corrections is not for you.  I get that, you know.  Why did

21   you leave law enforcement?

22                THE APPLICANT:  I snapped my ACL in half and just

23   started a security company.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So you started the security
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 1   securities or you started the construction?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Started them both about the same

 3   time while I was going through -- while I was doing rehab, I

 4   had started doing some -- so when I started -- when I left law

 5   enforcement, I started doing water damage restoration and then

 6   in the process of doing the water damage restoration, made a

 7   fairly good amount of money.  And so on the restoration, you

 8   can only -- without a license, you can only remove drywall,

 9   dry things and whatnot.

10                I looked at it, I said, hey, I'm losing money on

11   the other half putting it back in.  So I went and got my

12   construction license as well.  So that's how I ended up doing

13   that.  So I have -- and then I have my security company at the

14   same time.  I still do both now.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Um-hum.  So Investigator --

16   I'm not caught up.

17                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Saladino.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Saladino, is his license in

19   California in good standing?

20                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

21   the record.  It is.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any further

23   questions?

24                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  How did you
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 1   wreck your ACL?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Playing basketball.

 3                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Oh, so it wasn't on duty

 4   injury?

 5                THE APPLICANT:  No, it wasn't.

 6                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And then you tried to go

 7   back, you couldn't go back?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Couldn't go back.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions from

10   the Board?  Okay.  Hearing no further questions, I'll

11   entertain a motion.  And if I could -- just for the record, do

12   we -- in the application, do we ask for just last ten years?

13   Is that for the background because it seems like there's a big

14   gap there, and I think that bothers a lot of us.  But I'm not

15   sure if that's because we only asked for the last ten years.

16                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  There's no limit on

17   the number of years.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we ask for the entire

19   background?

20                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  (Nodded head.)

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So did we ask for the

22   rest of the background because there is a big gap there.

23                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

24   the record.  When the applicant initially started the process,
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 1   he was dealing with Shelly McDonald.  He stated that the

 2   licensing information that he had from California should be

 3   enough, that the law enforcement -- it was too difficult to

 4   get the letters and stuff from the agencies.

 5                I did get confirmation from Alameda County that

 6   he was employed or San Jose.  We didn't get any information

 7   with regards to that.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So, Investigator

 9   Saladino, did they give you just a reason for separation?

10                THE APPLICANT:  No, it didn't.  He's looking it

11   up.

12                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.

13   It just says that he was -- they confirmed his employment.

14   That was it.

15                THE APPLICANT:  That's what he had asked for,

16   just confirmation of employment.  And then so it was a pain

17   trying to get that.  But they said -- they wrote me a letter.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

19                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

20                MEMBER GRONAUER:  One more question, please.

21   This is Gronauer.  So the domestic violence in 2015 had

22   nothing to do with your separation from --

23                THE APPLICANT:  No, had nothing to do it.

24                MEMBER GRONAUER:  And when did you last work in
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 1   the police department?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  '90, '94, I believe '94.

 3                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Just seems like you got a lot

 4   of little gray areas in there.  Okay.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Go ahead and ask.  I'm open.  I'm

 6   open to answer questions.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I guess my question would be

 8   why you didn't go all the way back to the beginning of

 9   employment and include the law enforcement, because it is --

10   it just seems like there's a huge employment gap.

11                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.  I didn't want to answer it

12   because it wasn't my place.  But I believe it did ask for ten

13   years.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Um-hum.

15                THE APPLICANT:  And then it asked -- then it

16   said -- on the application, it says qualifications.  And if

17   I'm a security private investigator for 18 years, I was like,

18   why do I want to go through the hassle of trying to get all my

19   law enforcement stuff when I already meet you guys'

20   qualifications?  I have 18 years of security.  It was more

21   than enough, and I was thinking, why go through the hassle.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

23                THE APPLICANT:  That's why I didn't list it.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  I understand.
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 1                MEMBER BROWN:  Madam Chair, Board Member Brown.

 2   The employment section of the application says list all jobs,

 3   starting with the most recent.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  That's what I remember, too.

 5                MEMBER BROWN:  It doesn't say list all jobs that

 6   you think, you know, you've got enough to satisfy us.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any further

 8   questions from the Board?  Hearing no further questions, I'll

 9   entertain a motion.

10                One final question.

11                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Investigator Saladino, his

13   fingerprints came back clear, right?  I think we -- this

14   wasn't one of the ones where we had fingerprints or anything

15   like that?

16                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

17   the record.  We've received his fingerprints, yes.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

19                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I'm

20   going to motion to approve Coleman Security a new corporate

21   private patrolman license, Mr. Troy Coleman to be awarded the

22   private patrolman license, and if approved, requesting that it

23   be placed in abeyance so that he can become the qualifying

24   agent.  Corporate officer to be approved is Mr. Troy E.
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 1   Coleman, subject to all statutory and regulatory requirements.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.

 3                Do we have a second?

 4                Call again for a second?

 5                So if there's no second, I'll entertain another

 6   motion.

 7                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I'll make a

 8   motion to deny Coleman Security Investigation Incorporated a

 9   corporate private patrolman license and also deny Troy E.

10   Coleman his applying for his private patrolman license.  If

11   approved, and make a new motion to deny it.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Could I ask the reason?

13                MEMBER GRONAUER:  A reason?  Yeah.  The reasons

14   are too many gray areas and he decided what he wanted to put

15   on the application, rather than just filling out the

16   application, so saying this is just enough.  It's just the

17   kind of attitude that I don't know where a license would go

18   with an attitude like that.  Thank you.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  I have a motion.  Do I

20   have a second?

21                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

22   will second for the same reasons.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion and a

24   second.  All in favor say, "aye."
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 1                All opposed?

 2                So four ayes and one nay.

 3                Sir, I think, you know, go back -- you can come

 4   back and apply, use your same license -- or your same

 5   application, but fill in the blanks.  There's a huge gap and

 6   we just don't know what that is, right?

 7                And so that makes a lot of us uncomfortable,

 8   especially those of us that are in the industry because we've

 9   had some bad licenses in the past.

10                THE APPLICANT:  I understand.  It was my

11   understanding and maybe I misread it, the -- Mr. --

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Gronauer.

13                THE APPLICANT:  Gronaur.  It's not -- that's not

14   -- I'm not trying to avoid anything.  If -- my understanding,

15   the application, that it only asked for ten years and I will

16   definitely go back and look at it.

17                I thought I read it through thoroughly.  And then

18   the investigator even asked me, he says, well, what about back

19   here?  And then that's where the subject came up.  I said,

20   well, it only asks for this many hours.  It asks for this.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Understood.

22                THE APPLICANT:  And so that's what I put.  It

23   wasn't that I was trying to evade or to avoid any --

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We appreciate that.
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  So...

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So understood.  And I think,

 3   again, just reapply, make sure that you're thorough in your

 4   application and go back through your history.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Is there a timeline after

 6   applying?

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  The -- I think it's a year.

 8   Is it a year with the -- okay.  So you can apply for the next

 9   meeting.  Okay?

10                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.  Can I use the same

11   applications, just fill in the little blanks?

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.  And they're very

13   helpful, so, you know, ask those very specific questions, they

14   will get you through it.  Absolutely.

15                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, he was very helpful.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you,

17   sir.

18                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Just a comment, Mr. Coleman.

19                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

20                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer again.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  See, the importance of previous

23   employees --

24                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum.
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 1                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Why did you leave?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum.

 3                MEMBER GRONAUER:  It could have been for a theft,

 4   it could have been for a lot of different things or you were

 5   just completely fed up.  We don't know that.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum.

 7                MEMBER GRONAUER:  So there's gaps in there

 8   that -- there's a reason that you didn't say where -- or you

 9   didn't do something these years.  You can say, well, I have my

10   own construction company, bring all the tax records, bring

11   everything.

12                You have to back it up because, again, we've had

13   people who skip stuff and found out, well, they left because

14   they shot their boss.  Good reason to leave, you went to

15   prison.  You spent ten years in prison.  So there's a ten-year

16   gap already right there.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.

18                THE APPLICANT:  And I also looked at it as a

19   background investigator myself for agencies, I -- when I

20   pulled the fingerprint records --

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.

22                THE APPLICANT:  -- I'm a licensed life scanner as

23   well.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Unfortunately, we have to
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 1   keep moving.

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We're really behind.  There's

 4   a crowd behind you.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you, Ms. Cortez.

 8   Appreciate you.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We're on to Agenda

10   Item Number 33, private investigator licensing.  Alex -- I'm

11   going to try, Alexandros.

12                THE APPLICANT:  Nikoloudakis.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah, what she said.  So

14   sorry.  Alex.

15                THE APPLICANT:  Alex Niko.

16                THE APPLICANT:  Good morning, Board.  How are you

17   doing.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  Tell us a

19   little bit about yourself and the intentions with the

20   licensing.

21                THE APPLICANT:  I recently retired from the Drug

22   Enforcement Administration as a diversion investigator.  I

23   spent 17 years.  I figured there's a lot of opportunity to do

24   financial investigations as well as with the Controlled
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 1   Substance Act investigations, and that's why I'm applying for

 2   the private investigators license.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any

 4   questions for Mr. Alex?

 5                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Sir, this is Gronauer.  Did you

 6   work for DEA?

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

 8                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  DEA federal or DEA

 9   Nevada?  We've got a couple different ones.

10                THE APPLICANT:  The United States Drug

11   Enforcement Administration.

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And how many years did

13   you spend there?

14                THE APPLICANT:  17 years.

15                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Why did you leave?

16                THE APPLICANT:  I retired July 1st of this year.

17                MEMBER GRONAUER:  That's a nice reason.  Okay.

18   And what have you been doing since July 1st to September,

19   retired?

20                THE APPLICANT:  Well, I'm enjoying quietness, but

21   it's getting boring.

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  No, no, I understand.

23   What are you going to do with your license?

24                THE APPLICANT:  Well, one of the things that I
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 1   see is opportunities for financial investigations as well as

 2   with the Controlled Substance Act violations that when I was

 3   working for the Drug Enforcement Administration, to help and

 4   assist in the private sector and working directly with

 5   attorneys as well as with clients.

 6                MEMBER GRONAUER:  You have a wealth of

 7   information, I mean, a wealth of experience.  There's no doubt

 8   in my mind in that certain area.

 9                THE APPLICANT:  I'm very blessed.

10                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Which is needed by a lot of

11   places.

12                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

13                MEMBER GRONAUER:  So good luck to you as far as

14   I'm concerned.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You forgot.  You missed his

16   marine.  He's a marine, too.  Thank you for your service.

17   He's normally semper fi.  His candle is semper fi.

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Yes, I'm disappointed.

19                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah.

20                THE APPLICANT:  That's right.

21                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Semper fi, for sure, sir.

22                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any further questions

24   from the Board?  If there's no further questions, I'll
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 1   entertain a motion.

 2                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown --

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez --

 4   oh, go ahead, Mr. --

 5                MEMBER BROWN:  Go ahead.  Go ahead, Member

 6   Cortez.  You got it.

 7                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez,

 8   motioning to approve Mr.  Alexandros Nikoloudakis.

 9                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am, perfect.

10                MEMBER CORTEZ:  For an individual private

11   investigator license, subject to all statutory and regulatory

12   requirements.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.  Do we have

14   a second?

15                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I'll

16   second.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

18   second.

19                All in favor say, "aye."

20                Congratulations, sir.  Good luck to you.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you, thank you.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you for your service.

23                (Motion carries.)

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Agenda Item Number 34,
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 1   Red Rock Intelligence Services, LLC.  DBA Stealth Zero is

 2   Mr. James Artherton.  Looks like that's the only one.  Okay.

 3   Thank you, sir.

 4                THE APPLICANT:  Good morning.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Good morning.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  So one quick question.

 7   Investigator, is his fingerprints in?

 8                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

 9   the record.  We have received them and they are negative.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Fantastic.  Please tell us a

11   little bit about yourself and then intentions of your license.

12                THE APPLICANT:  Sure.  James Artherton.  My

13   specialty is a counterespionage book suite, intelligence and

14   protective intelligence that kind of stuff.  I do cyber

15   security as well.  I've got some qualifications over the last

16   couple of years.  So kind of the PI license gives me the

17   official to conduct my work.

18                I've been in America for about a year and a half

19   now with my wife and kids, so been getting client's advice to

20   life here.  But, yeah, I'm an ex-police officer.  I was in

21   London, Metropolitan police and I've been a UK PI for the past

22   four years.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  All right.  Any further

24   questions for -- or any questions for Mr. --
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Artherton.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Artherton.

 3                MEMBER GRONAUER:  English.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  No questions.  I'll

 5   entertain a motion.

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez,

 7   motioning to approve Mr. James Artherton for an individual

 8   private investigator license, that it be placed in abeyance to

 9   become the qualifying agent and the member, subject to all

10   statutory and regulatory requirements.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.  Do we have

12   a second?  Oh, we need to finish it.

13                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez

14   again, for the company name Red Rock Intelligence Services,

15   LLC, DBA Stealth Zero.

16                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

18   second.

19                All in favor say, "aye."

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you, sir.

21   Congratulations.

22                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you, ma'am.

23                (Motion carries.)

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  The last one for
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 1   private patrolman and private investigator is Jonathan

 2   Sullivan.  Good morning, sir.  Still morning.

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Good morning.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Tell us a little bit about

 5   yourself and your intentions with your license.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  I was a former United States

 7   marine, former law enforcement officer, and most recently

 8   worked for the United States Department of State overseas.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  What's your intention

10   with the license?

11                THE APPLICANT:  To conduct business in Nevada as

12   a PPO holder.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Do you currently have

14   a clientele here?

15                THE APPLICANT:  I do not.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  All right.  Any

17   questions from the Board?

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

19   Mr. Sullivan, any law enforcement contact, adverse contact?

20                THE APPLICANT:  Negative.

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Since 2809?

22                THE APPLICANT:  Negative.

23                MEMBER CORTEZ:  No further questions.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions from
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 1   the Board or do we need time on this one?

 2                Okay.  Hearing there's no questions, I'll

 3   entertain a motion.

 4                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

 5   move that we deny the application for license for Mr. Jonathan

 6   M. Sullivan for his private patrolman and private

 7   investigator's license due to integrity issues based on his

 8   background report.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.

10                Do we have a second?

11                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick, I second.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I have a motion, I have a

13   second.

14                All in favor?

15                Do you need a moment.

16                All opposed?

17                MEMBER CORTEZ:  I'm going to go aye.  Also

18   didn't --

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

20                MEMBER CORTEZ:  I'm not opposing.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

22   second.  All in favor say, "aye."

23                So the motion is unanimous.  We're declining your

24   application due to character in your background.
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Can I -- can you tell me what it

 2   is?

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah, your background that

 4   you have in there.  You were denied from the 2009 board

 5   meeting and then even though you were denied, you conducted

 6   business because you received an unlicensed activity citation

 7   in 2011 for your work with the Saudi Royal family.

 8                And so -- and you have a sealed portion of your

 9   record history.  I'm not sure if you want us to go into that

10   in public, but there is that portion of it as well.

11                So with all of that said, the Board is now

12   denying you the second time for your application.

13                THE APPLICANT:  So the first time that was in

14   2009 was not for a license.  It was for a work card.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

16                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Sir, you've been denied.

18                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  If you have any questions,

20   feel free to go to the Board -- or the office later.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  Okay.  So we are

23   now going to go into the work card registrations.  And so just

24   because, again, I think I see bright new faces, if you have
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 1   not been sworn in previously, could you please stand up and

 2   get sworn in this time?

 3                MS. HARRIS:  Please raise your right hand.

 4                (Discussion off the record.)

 5                (Multiple people sworn.)

 6                MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Okay.  Let's get

 8   started.  Is Justin Bipialaka -- is Justin down south?

 9                Okay.  Board up north, do you guys have anybody

10   in the audience?

11                MEMBER BROWN:  We do not, Madam Chair.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  All right.  So it's

13   Justin Bipialaka.  Okay.  We will trail that.

14                Daniel Cisneros.  Okay.  Thank you, sir.

15                THE APPLICANT:  Good morning.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Good morning.

17                Investigator Hubbell, could you tell us a little

18   bit -- or why we're here, Mr. Cisneros.  Sir, I'm asking the

19   investigator.

20                THE APPLICANT:  I'm sorry.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

22                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  Investigator Hubbell for

23   the record.  The applicant was denied for a 1995 felony

24   conviction out of California for drug possession and sale.  He
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 1   was put on probation, given three years prison time after his

 2   probation was revoked.  This arrest was not disclosed on the

 3   original application.

 4                He also has a 1996 felony conviction out of

 5   California for the same charge, was given three years prison

 6   time.  It also was not listed on the application, and in 2009,

 7   out of California, he had a misdemeanor conviction for

 8   obstruction of the public officer, resisting arrest and under

 9   the influence of a controlled substance.

10                He was given three years probation, six days jail

11   time and for the under the influence, 12 months probation.

12   This arrest was also not listed on the application or the

13   updated arrest history form.

14                The applicant did not disclose his arrest history

15   at the time of his initial application on June 3rd, 2022.  The

16   applicant submitted an updated arrest history that listed

17   arrest Number 1 and Number 2, but Number 3 was not listed.

18   The applicant was denied for having the felony convictions and

19   is here today to appeal.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Sir -- are there any

21   questions from the Board?

22                MEMBER BROWN:  Yes, Madam Chair.  This is Board

23   Member Brown for the record.

24                Sir, you updated your arrest record and listed
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 1   two felonies, but failed to list a misdemeanor.  Why?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  I didn't have my correct dates on

 3   them.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You didn't have what?

 5                THE APPLICANT:  I didn't have the correct dates

 6   posted on the paperwork.

 7                MEMBER BROWN:  You didn't have the correct dates?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 9                MEMBER BROWN:  So you didn't submit it; is that

10   what you're saying?

11                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

12                MEMBER BROWN:  No further.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are there any further

14   questions?  Why didn't you list any of these in the beginning?

15                THE APPLICANT:  Because I didn't have the correct

16   dates on the -- actually, it asked for felony.  It didn't ask

17   for misdemeanors.  So I didn't --

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  But you didn't list it in the

19   initial --

20                THE APPLICANT:  Right.  I didn't do that

21   correctly.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Why is that?  Okay.  So when

23   you fill out an application, if you don't have the correct

24   dates, at least just put it down so that we can find out the
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 1   dates for you.

 2                THE APPLICANT:  I know they were '95, '96.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So, sir, do you

 4   understand?

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  If you don't have the dates,

 7   we can pull and wait for that.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  But to put the information,

10   that needs to happen.

11                THE APPLICANT:  Right.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay?  Because you went in

13   and it made it look like you had nothing on your record.

14                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And, indeed, you do, right?

16                THE APPLICANT:  Right.  It's way behind me now.

17   It's been 25 years.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Understood.  Any further

19   questions?

20                THE APPLICANT:  No.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Hearing no further

22   questions from the Board, I'll entertain a motion.

23                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez,

24   motioning to uphold the denial based on no information
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 1   provided on the criminal history.

 2                Mr. Cisneros, I do need to caution you.  You need

 3   to read the application process in full.  I don't know if

 4   there's a copy there.  I have provided it.  It states

 5   specifically what you need to do for your background.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

 7                MEMBER CORTEZ:  And all criminal contact.

 8   Regardless of disposition, regardless of what year, even if

 9   you did not know, you knew, you just stated, sometime in the

10   90's.  You could have put that down.

11                THE APPLICANT:  Right.

12                MEMBER CORTEZ:  You could have also reached out

13   other board members just for future reference.  At this time,

14   I am going to motion to uphold the denial.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.  Do we have

16   a second?

17                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I'll

18   second.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

20   second.

21                All in favor say, "aye."

22                (Motion fails.)

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So you will not get your work

24   card today, sir.  You can reapply in a year.  When you
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 1   reapply, you can use your other application and ask that the

 2   office to help you.  They'll help you get all your information

 3   on there.  You need to make sure, like she said, every contact

 4   is on there.  Law enforcement contact.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  I got you.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  Good luck to

 7   you.

 8                Jason Cousins.  Is Jason Cousins here?  Good

 9   after -- good morning still, sir.

10                THE APPLICANT:  Good afternoon is all I'll say.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  There you go.  Investigator

12   Hubbell, could you please let us know why we're here with

13   Mr. Cousins.

14                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  Investigator Hubbell for

15   the record.  The applicant was denied for a 2012 felony arrest

16   out of California for the purchase, possession and sale of a

17   narcotic controlled substance.  The judgment was a PC 1203.4

18   out of California.  He was given three years probation,

19   365 days jail time, a fine.  The imposition of sentence was

20   suspended.

21                This arrest was listed on the application.  There

22   were originally three charges, drug charges with this, and two

23   of the other charges were dismissed.  He also had a 2004

24   misdemeanor conviction out of California that was not
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 1   disclosed for the theft of personal property -- excuse me,

 2   shoplifting.  He got three years probation and one day of jail

 3   time.

 4                At the time of this arrest, he was also charged

 5   with a false ID to specific peace officers, and that charge

 6   was dismissed for the plea to shoplifting.

 7                In 2004, he had a non-disclosed felony arrest out

 8   of California for grand theft from a person in California.

 9   This charge is a wobbler.  He received probation, jail and a

10   fine.  This arrest was also not disclosed on the application.

11   It was listed on the fingerprint report and that's how we came

12   across it.

13                The original charges were -- started off with

14   robbery, battery, grand theft from a person and the robbery

15   and battery were dismissed.

16                The applicant disclosed some of his arrest

17   history and filed his appeal at the time of his application.

18   He was denied for having a felony drug arrest.  The applicant

19   was not made provisional and is here today to appeal.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any

21   questions from the Board?

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  You can see

23   by the last two people that we've already spoke with.  Why

24   didn't you list everything on here?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Well, what I list on there is

 2   basically what was recent, which was the narcotics felony

 3   charge that was expunged.  Basically, to the best of my

 4   knowledge, just coming in from San Diego to Nevada, I just

 5   felt like that was the basic to go to, to apply.

 6                But I didn't know that when you do get

 7   expungement, in the fine print, it states that certain things,

 8   they're not qualified for you.  I wasn't aware of that at the

 9   time.

10                So when I went to go do the fingerprints and do

11   everything that needs to be processed, the young lady that

12   worked there told me, hey, put your felony down anyway just in

13   case anything like kicks back.  So that's why I did what I

14   did.

15                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I understand, and unfortunately

16   too many applicants go, you know, sometimes there's time and

17   distance on here that, you know -- and you report your stuff

18   and you go, and here's what I'm doing in the future, what I'm

19   doing now, what I'm doing in the future.  And we can -- we'd

20   rather see you work than not work.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  I mean, everybody,

23   not just you.  So the problem is, though, following the rules

24   is very important as far as putting on paper.  It says your
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 1   criminal history.  It doesn't say the most recent.  It doesn't

 2   say no -- the longest time or whatever.  It just says list it.

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 4                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Again, earlier it was said even

 5   if you don't know the date, you can put 2004, 1999, whatever.

 6   So -- and it gives the investigator something to work with.

 7   Because otherwise this is the reason the volume of work gets

 8   so heavy on them because they have to go and recheck

 9   everything.

10                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  And when you -- and I'm just

12   saying, for your good and for the good of everybody in the

13   audience and everybody that might be on the phone and everyone

14   in the future, please read the directions and follow the

15   directions.

16                THE APPLICANT:  You know, I definitely agree

17   about that, that anybody that's had a past history as a young

18   adult into adult now, to go back and get your paperwork in

19   order.

20                Not only that, read carefully about your

21   expungements.  Doesn't matter what state you from, Nevada,

22   California, anywhere, because that could basically hinder you

23   from your future.

24                And as of today, you know, I just flew in from
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 1   San Diego because I'm getting a -- I'm trying to get the

 2   approval to get a pardon so it wouldn't hinder me from my

 3   future career in law enforcement as a probation officer with

 4   gang unit.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are there any further -- oh,

 8   we're not done yet.  Are there any further questions for

 9   Mr. Cousins?  Okay.  Hearing no further questions, I'll

10   entertain a motion.

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I

12   am going to motion to uphold the denial based on failure to

13   report criminal history.  I think we've all made it pretty

14   clear on what the requirements are as well as the application,

15   stating it full clear.  That's it.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.  Do we have

17   a second?

18                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

20   second.

21                All in favor say, "aye."

22                (Motion fails.)

23                MEMBER CORTEZ:  And if I could make one last

24   comment.  You mentioned it a couple times about your
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 1   expungement, your expungement, your expungement.  It doesn't

 2   matter.  Regardless of the disposition, you need to list it.

 3   Court papers, no court papers, you need to list it.

 4                I encourage you to reread it.  I thought I had a

 5   copy up there, but I also pull it up here and I literally look

 6   at it every single time I get somebody up here that says, no,

 7   it was closed.  It's no longer available.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, that's understandable and

 9   I'm up to speed with --

10                MEMBER CORTEZ:  That's all I need to say.

11                THE APPLICANT:  Oh.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah, we're good, sir.  Thank

13   you.

14                THE APPLICANT:  All right.  Thank you.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yep.  So we're on Agenda Item

16   Number 39, Cameron King.  Cameron King, are you in the

17   audience?  Okay.  We'll trail Cameron.  Who is Item Number --

18                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  I'm sorry, I'm

19   sleeping.  For the record, Madam Chair, Kevin Ingram.  Cameron

20   King asked to postpone.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Oh.

22                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  To the next board

23   meeting.  My apologies.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Item Number 40, Luis

Capitol Reporters



Page 128

 1   Lopez.  Mr. Lopez, thank you.

 2                Investigator Hubbell, could you please tell us

 3   why we're here with Mr. Lopez.

 4                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  Yeah.  Mr. Lopez was

 5   denied for a 2010 felony arrest out of California.  I believe

 6   he was also denied in 2021 for this same felony arrest and he

 7   appeared in front of the board meeting at that time.  The

 8   denial was upheld.

 9                The charge was possession of a firearm by a

10   convicted felon or a person with a prior conviction,

11   misdemeanor.  The disposition was jail time of one year with

12   credit for 54 days served and three years of formal probation

13   and to pay a restitution.  The applicant did list this on his

14   application and the case was dismissed under 1203.4 on

15   March 1st of 2013.

16                He also has a 2009 felony conviction out of

17   California for vandalism.  This was disclosed.  He had

18   180 days in jail that was suspended and three years probation.

19   Probation was set to expire on 11/4 of 2012 for this case from

20   the court docs that were provided by the applicant.  The

21   applicant did list this as a misdemeanor on the application

22   where it showed as a felony.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any further --

24                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  And -- I have one more.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Sorry.

 2                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  2008, misdemeanor arrest

 3   out of California that was disclosed for disorderly conduct

 4   with prostitution.  The disposition was ten days in jail and

 5   two years probation.  This was disclosed by the applicant.

 6   These arrests were all out of California.

 7                In 2021, the applicant was not made provisional

 8   and he appeared in front of the board meeting and he's here

 9   again today to appeal.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any

11   questions from the Board for Mr. Lopez?

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  Mr. Lopez,

13   from what I understand previously, you were denied because you

14   didn't disclose.

15                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.  Last year, I believe,

16   from what I recall, it was the juvenile record I didn't

17   disclose --

18                MEMBER GRONAUER:  -- okay, so you didn't --

19                (Simultaneous speaking.)

20                THE APPLICANT:  -- correct.

21                MEMBER GRONAUER:  You went back and did your

22   homework, put it all down there.

23                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.  There were --

24                MEMBER GRONAUER:  -- that's what we're requesting
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 1   people to do.  If you did that in the beginning --

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.

 3                MEMBER GRONAUER:  -- you may have already been

 4   work card approved.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.

 6                MEMBER GRONAUER:  So just give an example to

 7   people that are there the audience.  It's the idea that once

 8   you do it and then you learn what you had to do, and you go

 9   back and do it, I commend you for that.  It's a year later and

10   that's pretty darn good.

11                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, correct.  I mean, the

12   juvenile record, I didn't realize I had to put that in there

13   as -- you know, I was a juvenile.

14                MEMBER GRONAUER:  That's okay, sir.  Thank you.

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

16   Mr. Lopez, you don't -- do you -- this was out of California?

17   You were on probation in California?

18                THE APPLICANT:  Correct.

19                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Perfect.  Nothing else.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any further questions

21   for Mr. Lopez?  Okay.  Hearing there's no further questions,

22   I'll entertain a motion.

23                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

24   move that we grant the appeal for Mr. Lopez so that he can get
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 1   his work card based on time and distance and doing what we

 2   asked, going back, waiting a year and reapplying.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.  Do

 4   we have a second?

 5                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

 7   second.

 8                All in favor say, "aye."

 9                (Motion carries.)

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  It's approved, sir.

11   Thank you.  Congratulations.

12                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you very much for your

13   time.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Item -- Agenda Item

15   Number 41, Deana Manning or Deana Manning.  Okay.  We'll trail

16   that until the end.

17                Norris -- Agenda Item Number 42, Norris McDonald.

18   Good -- one minute until the afternoon.  Good morning still.

19                Mr. Hubbell, could you please tell us a little

20   bit about why we're here with Mr. McDonald.

21                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  Mr. McDonald was denied

22   for a --

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  It's okay.  Sorry.

24                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  Mr. McDonald was --
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Go ahead, Mr. Hubbell.

 2                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  He was denied for a 2000

 3   felony arrest out of Nevada.  It was disclosed on his

 4   application.  The charge was battery with a deadly weapon.  He

 5   was incarcerated as a result.  This arrest was disclosed on

 6   the application.

 7                At the time, I checked court documents on

 8   July 7th, according to this report, and again on yesterday,

 9   and he still owes a $25 fine on this case from 2000.  He also

10   lists a 2003 arrest out of Nevada.

11                The SCOPE shows it is October 17th and his

12   application shows it November 19th as the date of occurrence.

13   It was disclosed on his application.  It was a felony.  SCOPE

14   lists it as a battery with a deadly weapon and the Court

15   documents list it as a simple assault.  He was incarcerated

16   for this one also.

17                The dates listed on his application is

18   November 9th, SCOPE lists the 17th of October.  It was listed

19   on the application.  At the time of checking on these again

20   yesterday, there is still a fine of $158.54 due on this case.

21                In 2008, he had a November felony arrest out of

22   -- I'm sorry, September felony arrest out of Nevada for

23   trespass, possession of burglary tools.  On the application,

24   it's listed as malicious destruction of property with
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 1   incarceration.

 2                SCOPE, it doesn't show an outcome, so I don't

 3   know what the final disposition was.  This arrest was listed

 4   on the application, and as of yesterday, there's $175 owed on

 5   this one as well.

 6                In 1989, he had a felony conviction -- or arrest,

 7   rather, out of Nevada for possession of a controlled substance

 8   with intent to sell.  The offense was reduced to possession of

 9   a controlled substance and he got four years probation.  This

10   arrest was listed on the application, and again, as of when I

11   checked court documents yesterday, there's a $75 fee owed.

12                And last, in 2018, he had a misdemeanor arrest

13   out of Nevada that was not disclosed.  He got a suspended

14   90-day jail sentence.  This arrest was listed on the

15   application.  It was found on SCOPE as a bench warrant type of

16   arrest.  Supporting court documents show that this arrest was

17   stemming from a July 17th, 2017, incident.

18                The applicant listed all four felony arrests on

19   his application and omitted the last one, the domestic

20   battery.  The applicant is a registered convicted person from

21   Nevada SCOPE.  The applicant was denied for having the felony

22   convictions and is here today to appeal.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So do we have any

24   questions for Mr. McDonald?
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 1                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

 2   have a question for investigator Hubbell.

 3                Investigator Hubbell, in your report, you list --

 4   at the bottom, you listed three felony arrests and omitted one

 5   felony and one domestic battery.

 6                Arrest Number 3 in 2008, under disclosed, it

 7   shows yes, but in the description down at the bottom, it says

 8   as of July 7th, 2022, there's $175 balance due on this case.

 9   This arrest was not listed on the application.

10                So was it disclosed?  Was it not?  I'm confused.

11                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  Yes.  It was disclosed,

12   but the charge was actually listed as something different than

13   what the court document said.  So that was an error on my

14   part.  So it was a disclosed arrest.

15                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.

16                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  For the

17   investigator, are the fines still outstanding, the balance

18   dues as of July 7th?

19                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  Yes, sir.  I actually

20   checked yesterday afternoon, at about 1:30 in the afternoon,

21   and they were still outstanding at that time.

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you.

23   Mr. McDonald?

24                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.
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 1                MEMBER GRONAUER:  How much time have you been in

 2   prison?

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Six years.  I wasn't aware of the

 4   fines.  In fact, I can take care of the fines today.  I wasn't

 5   aware of it.  I thought I did everything and it's been

 6   12 years, no trouble.  But I didn't know about the fines.  No

 7   warrants or anything.

 8                MEMBER GRONAUER:  What do you do now for --

 9                THE APPLICANT:  I've been doing landscaping for

10   12 years and I just want to change careers, you know.  I've

11   still got people doing security work, it's easy, sit behind a

12   desk, help the crowd or whatever.  And so I just don't want to

13   do landscaping anymore.

14                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Understand.  Thank you.

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

16   Mr. McDonald, why did you fail to report the 2018 incident?

17                THE APPLICANT:  2018?  What was that?

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  The meeting.

19                THE APPLICANT:  Oh, because when I called the --

20   when I called you guys, they was like, just disclose felonies.

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  That is not what --

22                THE APPLICANT:  I didn't know -- huh?  Oh, it was

23   my mistake.  But, yes, it's a misdemeanor.  I didn't know.  I

24   thought I disclosed all felonies.  That's what I did.  I
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 1   didn't know.  It was a mistake.  But they said felonies can

 2   prevent you, so -- but make sure you --

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  One more time, who said

 4   felonies?

 5                THE APPLICANT:  The PIB Board.  I called them.

 6   They said you've got to disclose all your felonies because if

 7   you try to leave something out, then they can deny you.  So I

 8   put all the felonies down, but instead of that misdemeanor.  I

 9   just thought that you all wanted to see the felonies, not the

10   misdemeanors.  But I already disclosed it.

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  I'm going to

12   go ahead and reiterate what the application states, and it

13   states everything regardless of disposition.

14                THE APPLICANT:  Oh, I --

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Felony, misdemeanor, dropped,

16   expunged, happened, didn't happened.  There is actual

17   documentation that you --

18                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

19                MEMBER CORTEZ:  -- that's what being asked for

20   you.  So it looks a little suspicious when you listed 2000, 18

21   years ago -- or well over 18 years ago, 2003, 2018 -- 1989,

22   situation, but not 2018.

23                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, I went and paid the $25 to

24   get the packets of all my arrests, and so I went off that.
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 1   But then I should have just included the whole package and

 2   statement together.  I'm sorry.  I'm sorry.

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  That's what I needed.  Thank you.

 4                MEMBER BROWN:  This Board Member Brown.  Another

 5   question for Investigator Hubbell.  Based on what Mr. Manning

 6   (sic.) has said, with the outstanding fines that he's not

 7   aware of, have any warrants been issued?

 8                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  Not that I can see on the

 9   any of these cases, no, sir.

10                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

12   You're -- it's saying that there is nothing being found as an

13   active ventry (phonetic), but the arrest was found on SCOPE as

14   a ventry.  What's the status of the ventry?  Is it quashed?

15   Is it -- was it denied?

16                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  I believe it shows the

17   case as closed, but these are fines that are still

18   outstanding.

19                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Got it.  Thank you.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are there any further

21   questions?  I'll just state a concern.  These are a long time

22   ago, but with the outstanding balances, that's a little bit of

23   a concern for me.  So I think that's just -- that's one of my

24   concerns.  I'll leave that out there.
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 1                Any further questions from the Board?  Okay.

 2   Hearing no further questions, I'll entertain a motion.

 3                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick.  I move to uphold

 4   the denial based on nondisclosure and based on outstanding

 5   fines.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we have a motion.  Do we

 7   have a second?

 8                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I'll

 9   second.  And I also want to apologize to Mr. McDonald.  I

10   referred to you as Mr. Manning.  I had it wrong in my notes.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  We have a motion,

12   we have a second.

13                All in favor say, "aye."

14                (Motion carries.)

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So I think the most

16   concerning part is the outstanding fines just because you're

17   not closed out.  You're not whole, right?

18                So if you could go down to the courthouse and

19   take care of those, and then when you're done and you're ready

20   to reapply, I mean, come back in one year.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  It's wintertime now.  By next

23   summer, you can almost be out of the heat, right?  And you

24   could --
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Can I get a piece of paper that

 2   states what --

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  They will absolutely take

 4   care of that for you, sir.  So we look forward to seeing you

 5   again.  Okay?

 6                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  And we'll be in contact

 7   with you, please.  Don't stop at the desk.  We'll contact you.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We'll contact you.  Okay.

 9   Thank you, sir.  Yeah.  Okay.  Is -- we're at Agenda Item

10   Number 43, Bernadette Murray.  Okay.  This is confusing.

11   Sorry.

12                Okay.  Mr. Hubbell, could you please tell us why

13   we're here with Ms. Murray.

14                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  Investigator Hubbell for

15   the record.  The applicant was denied for a 2005 felony

16   conviction out of Oregon for identity theft or theft.  She was

17   convicted, paid fines and had 18 months of probation.

18                The original charges were misdemeanor theft,

19   felony theft, felony fraudulent use of a credit card,

20   misdemeanor fraudulent use of a credit card, felony identity

21   theft and felony crimes against a person.

22                This arrest was disclosed on the application and

23   there were no other arrests listed on the fingerprint report.

24   The applicant was denied for the felony conviction and is here
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 1   today to appeal.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  Any

 3   questions from the Board?

 4                MEMBER GRONAUER:  It is -- good afternoon,

 5   Ms. Murray.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  I'm so embarrassed.

 7                MEMBER GRONAUER:  It's okay.  You know, everybody

 8   has something.  So what have you been doing for work?

 9                THE APPLICANT:  What was that?

10                MEMBER GRONAUER:  What are you doing for work?

11                THE APPLICANT:  I actually work for an

12   investigation office, Pyramid Investigation.

13                MEMBER GRONAUER:  What do you mean by that?

14                THE APPLICANT:  So I do all the admin work.  I

15   file all the cases, which I need to work card or I get

16   terminated.

17                MEMBER GRONAUER:  What company do you work?

18                THE APPLICANT:  Pyramid.

19                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I can't hear you.

20                THE APPLICANT:  Pyramid.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Is that here in Nevada?

22                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

24                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And how long have you been

 2   working for them?

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Eight months.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Eight months.  Okay.  Are

 5   there any further --

 6                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, I'd like to know what

 7   company that is.  I'm not familiar with that company.  Do you

 8   have a license number?

 9                THE APPLICANT:  It's Pyramid Investigations

10   Incorporated.  I don't know if that is helpful.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  No, yeah, they're looking it

12   up right now.

13                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  While they're looking that

15   up, were there any further questions?

16                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Is it Pyramid Investigations Corp

17   or LLC?  Ms. Murray, do you know?

18                THE APPLICANT:  Oh, I don't know.  I'm sorry.

19                MEMBER CORTEZ:  How long have you been working

20   there?

21                THE APPLICANT:  Almost eight months.

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do they have letterhead?

23                THE APPLICANT:  They do.

24                MEMBER GRONAUER:  They have letterhead.
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.  Sorry.  I only --

 2   everything I file is Pyramid Investigations Incorporated.

 3   It's also underneath -- they work -- he owns a couple of

 4   different companies, all-in-one bail bonds.

 5                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Do you know where the company --

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Oh, all-in-one bail bonds.

 7                MEMBER CORTEZ:  -- is based out of?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  It's also in that same building.

 9   I can give you that address.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Mr. Garcelli

11   (phonetic) does all-in-one bail bonds.

12                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  What's your

13   employer's name?

14                THE APPLICANT:  It's Andy Rendshaw.

15                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Andy?

16                THE APPLICANT:  Andrew Rendshaw.

17                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Rendshaw.

18   R-E-N-D-S-H-A-W?

19                THE APPLICANT:  Correct.

20                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Thank you.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Sorry, just...

22                MEMBER CORTEZ:  All in one.

23                MEMBER GRONAUER:  You get your work card, what do

24   you plan doing?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Continue working for his company.

 2   I just can't go forward as far as filing the -- I was hired to

 3   do investigation work.  I have to say that I actually -- all

 4   my cases were dismissed and expunged.  I know -- I thought

 5   back then, after all these years, I was able to get my jobs

 6   I've had and I've never had a holdup until they denied me.

 7                So I went back to check and they said everything

 8   was dismissed except my back one, I believe, and I was not

 9   aware of that.  But I work for an investigator and so I do all

10   her filing and it's confidential work.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So if you could, we're

12   going to take a quick five-minute break.  We're doing some --

13   looking up some stuff.  So we'll be right with you.  Okay?

14                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.

16                (Recess.)

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We lost Mr. Bobby G.

18   So give us two minutes.

19                (Short recess.)

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  We're

21   missing Board Member Gronauer.  Hopefully he'll come in.

22                Do we have any further questions for Bernadette

23   Murray?  Okay.  Hearing no further questions -- actually...

24                So you did -- Investigator Hubbell, just to bring
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 1   me back to present, she did admit to the felony or she did not

 2   on her original application?

 3                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  She did disclose it.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  She did disclose it.

 5   Okay.  Perfect.  So, Board, if there's no further questions,

 6   I'll entertain a motion.

 7                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I --

 8   excuse me, I move that we grant the appeal for Bernadette

 9   Murray to obtain her work card based on time and distance and

10   the fact that she did disclose.

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez, I am

12   going to second that motion.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we have a motion, we have

14   a second.

15                All in favor say, "aye."

16                (Motion carries.)

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations.  Good luck

18   to you.  Okay?  Thank you.

19                Item Number 44, John William Barns.  Good

20   afternoon, Mr. Barns.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Good afternoon.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Mr. Hubbell, please tell us

23   why we're here with Mr. Barns.

24                INVESTIGATOR HUBBELL:  The Applicant was denied
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 1   for a 2014 felony conviction out of California that was

 2   disclosed on his application.  The charge was brandishing a

 3   deadly weapon.  He received 36 months probation, six days jail

 4   time and 10 days community service work.

 5                In 2014, he had a misdemeanor arrest out of

 6   Nevada that was disclosed for burglary that was reduced to

 7   trespass misdemeanor and buy and possess/receive stolen

 8   property as misdemeanor.  He received three days jail time,

 9   $1,000 fines and had to attend the class.  This arrest was

10   disclosed on the application and it appears on SCOPE as well.

11                The applicant listed his arrest history at the

12   time of the application.  He was denied at the June 2021 board

13   meeting for failure to disclose his arrest history.  The

14   applicant was denied for having a dangerous weapons conviction

15   and is returning here today to appeal.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  Any questions

17   from the Board for Mr. Barns?

18                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Barns.

19                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

20                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Barns, this is Gronauer.

21   So you've been denied before?

22                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.  Actually, you were the

23   reason.

24                MEMBER GRONAUER:  We remember saying hello.
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 1   Okay.  And when you went back, you went, did all the stuff we

 2   requested of that we have you do.

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.  I completed every

 4   class that they told me to do, petty larceny classes,

 5   everything.  I've been clean since 2014.  I've done no type of

 6   crime.  I've been working, doing security, event staffing,

 7   deliveries, anything.

 8                I just recently became a foster father.  So I've

 9   just -- I'm doing my best to try to make myself part of the

10   community that I'm living in and just better myself.

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I commend you for getting it

12   all straightened out.  Thank you.

13                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

14   Mr. Barns, what do you plan to do with your work card?

15                THE APPLICANT:  I plan to further it and open up

16   my own security company.  I want to eventually help out people

17   who are not able to work as a guard and put them as events

18   staff.

19                That's something I started off with because I

20   didn't have no knowledge of having a guard card in Los

21   Angeles.  So I started off as an event staff and worked around

22   numerous felons that wasn't able to, you know, work.  So I

23   want to be able to help other people and, you know, do what I

24   can to --
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  So more of a training?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  No, just a security company.

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.

 4                THE APPLICANT:  A company.

 5                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Armed or unarmed.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Both.

 7                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Tell me the incident about the

 8   2014 brandishing.  What were the circumstances?

 9                THE APPLICANT:  What you mean?  With the case,

10   like with the court?

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Like what happened?  I'm a visual

12   girl, so I need to see the violation.

13                THE APPLICANT:  Well -- okay.  Well, my son's

14   mother and me got into it.  She basically was cheating on me.

15   I put her out.  Her mother and her brother showed up to my

16   door, arguing with me about her stuff.  She attacked me.  So

17   the police, they showed up, arrested her because I didn't

18   attack her.

19                So from there, they went to seek revenge, which

20   it was.  They said that I had a weapon in my house, which it

21   was a stick with nails in it, because prior to that, me and

22   her lived into another apartment in Palm Dale, California, and

23   our apartment got broken into.  And the police told us that

24   there was nothing they could do about it.  So --
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Understood.  I get the

 2   gist of that.

 3                THE APPLICANT:  I didn't have no money for a

 4   lawyer, and so I just took the deal.

 5                MEMBER CORTEZ:  All right.  Talk to me about the

 6   burglary where you're accused of trespass.

 7                THE APPLICANT:  They said that I had a debit

 8   card.

 9                MEMBER CORTEZ:  The said or did you?

10                THE APPLICANT:  They said because the debit card

11   had my name on it.  It had my name on it.  I filed for a

12   credit card around that time.  It came in the mail.  I woke up

13   to my roommate giving me my mail.  I didn't think nothing of

14   it.  I accessed it online.  I called it in to activate it and

15   everything.

16                They -- once I got to Vegas, they said that the

17   names were wrong, which I understood, because I have prior ID

18   and Social Security problems due to the fact that my mother

19   and my grandmother spelled my name wrong on both of those.  So

20   I grew up basically with two names.

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Understood.  Thank you.

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  One question for sure.

23                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

24                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you understand that -- I
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 1   heard you say you want to start your own business.

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

 3                MEMBER GRONAUER:  You understand a work card, you

 4   work for somebody that's licensed.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

 6                MEMBER GRONAUER:  If you have a work card, you

 7   can't hire people.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, I know.

 9                MEMBER GRONAUER:  You have to get a license to

10   hire.

11                THE APPLICANT:  I know.  I was going to further

12   it once I got this work card.

13                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  I just wanted to make

14   sure you understood all of that, sir.  I'm good.  Thank you.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  And, sir, I heard you

16   say earlier that you were -- some of the things that you were

17   doing to stay employed was in that security.  Are you doing

18   that here in Nevada?

19                THE APPLICANT:  No, ma'am.  I'm -- right now -- I

20   was working at the airport as customer service.  If -- I

21   have -- if you would like to see it?

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Well, you can submit it.

23                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.  Well, I've been working

24   customer service and doing deliveries as of right now.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

 2                THE APPLICANT:  I'm just trying to balance

 3   everything until I get back my work card.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  Any

 5   further questions for Mr. Barns?  Okay.  Just one comment from

 6   me.  It sounds like you're doing really good and great things

 7   for the community, so we appreciate you for that and your

 8   foster service.  Please keep up the good work and thank you

 9   for coming back.

10                Are there -- is there a motion for Mr. Barns?

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I'll make a

12   motion to overturn the denial and grant John William Barns his

13   card.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do I have a

15   second?

16                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick, I second.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I have a motion, I have a

18   second.

19                All in favor say, "aye."

20                (Motion carries.)

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations, sir.  Thank

22   you.  You're going to make us all cry.

23                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you for taking care of

24   business.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  No, thank you.

 2                Edwin Gonzalez, Agenda Item Number 45.

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Good afternoon.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Good afternoon, sir.

 5                Mr. Diaz, Investigator Diaz, would you please

 6   tell us why we're here with Mr. Gonzalez.

 7                INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:  Investigator Diaz for the

 8   record.  The applicant was denied for a weapons conviction out

 9   of Las Vegas, Nevada in 2019.  The applicant was charged with

10   the unlawful discharge of a weapon and received impulse

11   control counseling, 39 hours of community service and fines

12   and fees.

13                The applicant did disclose this arrest and

14   submitted a written letter from P.O. at the time of applying.

15   The applicant was not made provisionally and is here to appeal

16   today.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Board, are there any

18   questions for Mr. Diaz?

19                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.

20                Mr. Diaz (sic.), would you explain the incident

21   that led to this?  Am I breaking up?

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I'm sorry, this is Gonzalez.

23   I'm so sorry, but it's still the same background.

24                MEMBER BROWN:  Oh, I'm sorry.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So sorry.

 2                MEMBER BROWN:  Mr. Gonzalez, I'm sorry about

 3   that.  Would you explain your arrest to us, the 2019 arrest?

 4                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Bring the mic down.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  I made a mistake.  I inherit a

 7   weapon from my father in law, a former marine, and it comes

 8   with a tag light on it.  And it's a pretty big gun for my

 9   hands.  It's an H&K USP 40, comes with a tag light on it.

10                After work -- because I don't have a holster for

11   it, after work, what I do is I get it out of my compartment, I

12   take off that tag light off and I put it in my holster because

13   I'm CCW and also open carry.

14                And that particular night, I fired -- misfired on

15   the ground.  And I had basically told them myself by realizing

16   that I have committed a crime and I just patiently sat there

17   and waited for the cops to see if they will show up because I

18   was in the wrong.

19                I talked to many people, they're like, you should

20   have just run, you should have just took off.  But I'm like,

21   what if I just told the truth and what happened.

22                Because I told the truth and what happened, I got

23   arrested.  I spent the night in jail and the Court, you know,

24   basically asked me to do anger management classes and
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 1   everything like that.  They put me -- they give me a fine and

 2   I took care of all that.

 3                But that's all it was.  It was just a mistake.

 4   Being a CCW trainer, one thing is securing your gun and

 5   another thing is continuous training, and that's one of the

 6   things that I failed on.  That particular day, I did not

 7   handle my gun properly and here we are, you know.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So if I could please, real

 9   quick, are you under oath, sir?  Have you been sworn in?

10                THE APPLICANT:  Am I what?

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are you aware you're under

12   oath?

13                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Okay.

15                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I just needed to ask.  I see

17   new faces.  Okay.  Go ahead.  I'm sorry.

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

19   Mr. Gonzalez, where were you when you did the accidental

20   discharge?

21                THE APPLICANT:  This was after work on a --

22                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Where?

23                THE APPLICANT:  I believe it's Desert Springs

24   hospital parking lot.
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Was it on the grounds of a

 2   hospital?

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Parking lot, yes.  I -- my

 4   background is construction, so --

 5                MEMBER CORTEZ:  No, I understand that.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 7                MEMBER CORTEZ:  I just wanted to know where the

 8   discharge happened.  It was --

 9                THE APPLICANT:  Correct.  So it was not just out

10   in the field anywhere, it was in the hospital.  So I'm like,

11   you know, you need to -- like basically, you know, like I need

12   to face the consequences.

13                MEMBER CORTEZ:  And you reported it?  It wasn't

14   other people in the parking lot?

15                THE APPLICANT:  No, no, I just basically stood

16   there and waited patiently to see if anything, you know, would

17   happen and, well, it did happen.

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Board Member Cortez again

19   for Investigator Hubbell.  Do you have the police report?

20                INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:  This is Investigator Diaz.

21   No, Board Member, I do not have that police report.

22                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Diaz.  You do not.

23                Mr. Gonzalez, do you happen to have a copy of

24   your police report?  I can't imagine you brought it with you
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 1   today, but I was just curious.

 2                THE APPLICANT:  I did not.

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.

 4                THE APPLICANT:  I didn't think I was going to

 5   need it.

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  All right.  Thank you.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions for

 8   Mr. Gonzalez?

 9                MEMBER BROWN:  Yes, this is Board Member Brown

10   again.  Mr. Gonzalez, were there other people present when

11   this unintentional discharge occurred?

12                THE APPLICANT:  No, sir.  There was actually --

13   to my knowledge from the police officers that went ahead and

14   conducted the arrest, because of my incident, behind me, there

15   was construction going on and there was two individuals

16   committing illegal activity.

17                And because of the fire shot, they were --

18   basically were panicked and scared.  They also were

19   apprehended because of that.  But, no, this was -- a fence was

20   in between it, but there was no other innocent bystanders.

21                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  And this was completely

22   unintentional?  There wasn't -- I'm trying to understand the

23   impulse control classes.  I mean, if this is an accident, I

24   don't understand how --
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  That is correct.  This was an

 2   accident.

 3                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.

 4                THE APPLICANT:  And I take full responsibility

 5   for it.

 6                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions?  Okay.

 8   No further questions, I'll entertain a motion.

 9                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick.  I move to

10   reverse the denial and grant the work card for Mr. Gonzalez

11   based on the fact that he completed all requirements for the

12   misdemeanor.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do we have

14   a second?

15                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I

16   second.

17                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion, we

19   have a second.

20                All in favor say, "aye."

21                (Motion carries.)

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations, sir, your

23   request has been --

24                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  -- approved.

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you so much.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  They will give you a

 4   call, okay?  All right.

 5                Jennifer -- Agenda Item Number 46, Jennifer

 6   Goston.  Ms. Goston, it's G-O-S-T-O-N, just in case I'm saying

 7   it wrong.  Okay.  We'll trail that.

 8                Agenda Item Number 47, okay.

 9                Agenda Item Number 48, Rafael Martinez-Castillo.

10                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Madam Chair, just for

11   the record, for the stenographer, Agenda Item Number 47,

12   Shafyy Judd withdrew her appeal.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And Castillo.  Okay.  We'll

14   trail that.  David Roberson.  Roberson.  Okay.  Good

15   afternoon, sir.

16                Mr. Diaz -- or Investigator Diaz, why are we here

17   with Mr. Roberson?

18                INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:  The applicant was denied for

19   a weapons conviction out of Pleasant Hill, California in 2000.

20   The weapon charge was listed as the possession and

21   manufacture/sale of dangerous weapon and the applicant did

22   receive 36 months probation.

23                The applicant did disclose this arrest at the

24   time of applying.  He was denied in 2014 for the same offense
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 1   and did not disclose it then.  The applicant was not made

 2   provisional and is here to appeal today.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any questions for

 4   Mr. Roberson?

 5                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.

 6   Mr. Roberson?

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir.

 8                MEMBER GRONAUER:  It says on here that you

 9   received 36 months probation.  Are you still on probation?

10                THE APPLICANT:  I never served one day and I went

11   to court on it and it was thrown out.

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  It says convicted and it

13   says 36 months probation.  You can't get probation unless you

14   are convicted.  Probation doesn't mean you went to jail or are

15   staying time in jail.  It means they put you on a certain

16   program that says for the next 36 months, don't get in

17   trouble.

18                THE APPLICANT:  I never got any of that and I was

19   in constant contact with the Court.

20                MEMBER GRONAUER:  And you were what?

21                THE APPLICANT:  I was in constant contact with

22   the Court.

23                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.

24                THE APPLICANT:  I went to court on it and it was
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 1   all thrown out.

 2                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Diaz, can you help clarify

 3   that?

 4                INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:  I have a copy of the

 5   fingerprint report right here in front of me and it says

 6   possession/manufacture of sale of dangerous weapons,

 7   convicted, probation 36 months.

 8                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

 9   Sorry.  Mr. Roberson, you listed that you were convicted of

10   possession of manufacturing and selling drugs, dangerous

11   weapons back in 2000.

12                Do we agree on that much?  On your application,

13   you listed that arrest.

14                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, I listed.

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  We agree with that.

16                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

17                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  So back in 2000, you were

18   placed on probation for that violation; is that correct?

19                THE APPLICANT:  I guess, yeah.

20                MEMBER CORTEZ:  You don't recall having to call a

21   probation officer every so often?

22                THE APPLICANT:  None of that.  I never did.

23                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Out of -- what city?

24                THE APPLICANT:  It was Pleasant Hill.
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Investigator Diaz, do we have a

 2   name of a probation officer by any chance?  I mean, this was

 3   22 years ago.  I -- if an individual is placed on probation, I

 4   guarantee they're going to know, especially for 36 months, and

 5   you have to check in.  I used to be one.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

 7                MEMBER CORTEZ:  So if I didn't hear from you in

 8   36 months.

 9                THE APPLICANT:  I never --

10                MEMBER CORTEZ:  But okay.

11                THE APPLICANT:  -- heard a word.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So, Mr. Diaz, quick question:

13   Has this been closed out?  Is it still pending?  Is it open?

14                INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:  No, it looks like everything

15   is finished and closed out.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions from

17   the Board?  Hearing there are no further questions, I'll

18   entertain a motion.

19                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I'll make a

20   motion to overturn the denial and grant Mr. David Roberson his

21   card for some recent time and distance.

22                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I

23   am going to second that motion, aside from I'm pretty

24   impressed that you didn't know you were on probation.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

 2   second.

 3                All in favor say, "aye."

 4                (Motion carries.)

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So, sir, you'll work with

 6   the -- they'll contact you to help you get -- finish out the

 7   rest of your stuff.  Thank you for putting everything on your

 8   actual application so that that can be overturned so quickly.

 9   So thank you, sir.

10                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations.

12                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Agenda Item Number 50, Darryl

14   Scott.  Is there a Darryl Scott?

15                Sir, have you been sworn in?  You have?  Okay.

16                Mr. Diaz or Investigator Diaz, could you please

17   tell us why we're here with Mr. Scott.

18                INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:  The applicant was denied for

19   a felony conviction out of New Orleans in 2010.  The applicant

20   was charged with second degree battery and received 20 months

21   in prison.

22                The applicant did disclose this arrest and was

23   aware he will be denied.  The applicant was previously denied

24   in July of 2021 for failure to disclose.  The applicant was
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 1   not made provisional and is here to appeal today.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are there any questions for

 3   Mr. Scott?

 4                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.

 5                Mr. Scott, what are you plan on doing if you get

 6   a card?

 7                THE APPLICANT:  I plan on just a career in

 8   security.

 9                MEMBER GRONAUER:  You need to -- I'm sorry, try

10   again.

11                THE APPLICANT:  I plan on getting my card and

12   starting a career in security.  I currently do car detailing,

13   which doesn't pay enough.  I have three kids and I'm just

14   trying to better myself.

15                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you have a job lined up?

16                THE APPLICANT:  No, sir.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions from

18   the Board?

19                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

20                Mr. Scott, have you had any experience working in

21   security or law enforcement capacity?

22                THE APPLICANT:  No, ma'am.

23                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Why the sudden interest?

24                THE APPLICANT:  Everyone tells me my size and
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 1   security would be a nice career for me if I decide to do it,

 2   so...

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Understood.  My next question is:

 4   Are you going to look into armed or unarmed?

 5                THE APPLICANT:  I have --

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is why I'm asking.  I

 7   absolutely appreciate your stature and your size and all that.

 8   But being in that position, are you prepared to take the

 9   consequences that you may or may not have to do?

10                And for somebody -- just because somebody tells

11   you your size, that's a little concerning because it's going

12   to involve a lot of training and your mindset to being -- so

13   I -- that's why I was kind of curious as to where you're at.

14                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, maybe unarmed.  But I'm

15   willing to work, you know.

16                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Understood.  And it sounds like

17   you're definitely willing to work.  I just want you to be

18   prepared if you're going into this line of work, it's not just

19   your regular 9 to 5.  We carry a lot more responsibility than

20   the average person.  So just take that into consideration.

21                THE APPLICANT:  I understand.  I appreciate it.

22                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Madam Chair, for the

23   record, Kevin Ingram.  He is a convicted felon so he would be

24   unable to work card.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

 2                MEMBER GRONAUER:  And because you're a convicted

 3   felon, it limits you only in certain places, not every place.

 4   Okay?  You can still work as a security guard, okay?

 5                THE APPLICANT:  All right.

 6                MEMBER GRONAUER:  A security professional, all

 7   right?  And you can still work -- and it's up to the company

 8   who wants to hire you or not hire you.  What happened --

 9   you've been car detailing?  That's all you've been doing for

10   the last 12 years?

11                THE APPLICANT:  Well, I've been doing that since

12   I've been in Vegas because I came out here to help my father

13   during COVID.

14                MEMBER GRONAUER:  When did you come out?

15                THE APPLICANT:  2000 and, I believe, 19.

16                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  No problem.  You've had

17   no run-ins with the law?

18                THE APPLICANT:  No, no run-ins.

19                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions for

21   Mr. Scott?  Okay.  Hearing there are no questions, I'll

22   entertain a motion.

23                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

24   move that we grant the appeal and allow Mr. Scott to get his
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 1   work card.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez, I

 4   motion -- I second the motion, sorry.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

 6   second.

 7                All in favor say, "aye."

 8                (Motion carries.)

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations, sir.  Thank

10   you.  Thanks for documenting everything.

11                Agenda Item Number 51, Elvis Tuck.  Is Elvis Tuck

12   in?  Good afternoon, sir.  Sir, are you under oath?

13                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You swore in earlier?

15                THE APPLICANT:  No, but I signed it.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So if there's anybody out in

17   the audience who has just walked in and is not under oath,

18   please stand so we can swear you in.

19                MS. HARRIS:  Please raise your right hand.

20                (Multiple people sworn.)

21                MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  All right.  Thank you.

23   Investigator Diaz, why are we here with Mr. Tuck?

24                INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:  The applicant was denied for
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 1   the conviction of a felony out of Riverside, California in

 2   2011.  The applicant was charged with the participating and

 3   criminal street gangs plus a gang enhancement and received

 4   13 years in prison.

 5                The applicant also has a 2008 felony conviction

 6   for possession of a controlled substance and was sentenced to

 7   16 months in prison.  He also has a 2006 Conviction for street

 8   gang activity to threaten and terrorize, was sentenced to four

 9   years in prison.

10                And he also has a 2002 felony conviction to

11   obstructing and resist an executive officer and was sentenced

12   to 36 months in prison.  The applicant did disclose all

13   arrests and was aware he will be denied.

14                The applicant does have an extensive arrest

15   history with severe outcomes and serious charges, but the

16   applicant was not made provisional and is here to appeal

17   today.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Can I ask just for my own

19   understanding, what is the resisting of an executive officer?

20   Is that police?

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  A peace officer.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.

23                THE APPLICANT:  That was --

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Sir, hang on.  Are there any
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 1   questions from the Board?

 2                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This Board Member Cortez.

 3                Mr. Tuck, what -- are you still an active gang

 4   member?

 5                THE APPLICANT:  No, I'm out of California.  I

 6   changed my life and move out.

 7                MEMBER CORTEZ:  But are you still an active gang?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  No, just retired.

 9                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  And what gang was that?

10                THE APPLICANT:  Corona.

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Did you have some kind of

12   ranking?

13                THE APPLICANT:  No, just regular.  It was like

14   more of like a family thing, not like --

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  All right.  I'm well versed on

16   the gang life.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions from

18   the Board?

19                MEMBER GRONAUER:  What are you doing now, sir?

20                THE APPLICANT:  Right now, I was working at the

21   Raider Stadium.

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm sorry?  I didn't hear you.

23                THE APPLICANT:  I was working at the Raider

24   Stadium being a janitor, but the security guy wanted me to
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 1   resign there and get a job in security.  So I quit doing the

 2   janitor work and that's why I signed up for the PIL card.  And

 3   he said if I get it granted, I can work there to help him out.

 4                MEMBER GRONAUER:  How long have you lived in

 5   Las Vegas?

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Like a year and a half now with

 7   my dad and --

 8                MEMBER GRONAUER:  You have not been in any

 9   trouble?

10                THE APPLICANT:  No, over -- I haven't got in

11   trouble since 2011.

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Are you married?

13                THE APPLICANT:  Getting married.  My girlfriend

14   is right there in the back.

15                MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Thank you.

16                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

17                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.

18                Mr. Tuck, you're retired from the gang life, you

19   said.  Are you still in contact with any active gang members?

20                THE APPLICANT:  No, I'm not.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You have to get closer to the

22   mic.

23                THE APPLICANT:  Oh, no, I'm not, sir.

24                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  Are

 2   you currently on any hit lists that you are aware of?

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Oh, no, I'm being -- I mean, I

 4   just -- I did my --

 5                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Did you jump out?

 6                THE APPLICANT:  No, I did my time and I just

 7   left, like moved out, doing the family life now.

 8                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  Last question:

 9   Any known threats to you and/or your family members?

10                THE APPLICANT:  No, everyone respects me.  I'm

11   doing the family life.

12                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Can I hear from your fiancee,

13   please?  Could I have you approach?

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we'll have to swear you in

15   real quick.

16                (Sworn.)

17                MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  How

19   long have you guys been together?

20                THE APPLICANT:  Like almost a year.

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Could you give me some kind of

22   background?  Like what do you -- what are your morals and

23   values?  What's your opinion --

24                MS. MORRELL:  Mine?
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Um-hum.  What's your opinion of

 2   him?

 3                MS. MORRELL:  I don't -- I'm really nervous right

 4   now.

 5                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Do you think he should work in a

 6   security --

 7                MS. MORRELL:  I think so.

 8                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Why?

 9                MS. MORRELL:  He's a good person.  I don't know,

10   just share his life.  He already has.  He's takes care of my

11   kids with me.  He helps me out with them.  We have our own

12   place together.  We're doing, you know --

13                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Have you guys been into a heated

14   argument yet?

15                MS. MORRELL:  No.

16                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Are you a yeller?

17                MS. MORRELL:  (Shakes head.)

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  And the reason why I'm

19   asking you is because, again, when you're in a position and

20   you come -- and you know this.  When you have people who come

21   with an attitude towards you, you are going to come

22   aggressively.

23                And if you haven't really checked your anger and

24   your behavior and your mental state, you're going to place
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 1   yourself in a position of impropriety.  So that's why I kind

 2   of wanted to hear from you because you're going to know it

 3   before any of us will.

 4                MS. MORRELL:  Yeah.

 5                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Thank you.

 6                MEMBER BROWN:  Wait, just a minute.  Before you

 7   leave, ma'am, we need your name for the record.

 8                MS. MORRELL:  Jillian Morrell.  Jillian Morrell.

 9   M-O-R-R-E-L-L.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  Okay.  Any

11   further questions for Mr. Tuck?

12                Okay.  No further questions, I'll entertain a

13   motion.

14                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I'm

15   going to motion that we overturn the denial and grant Mr. Tuck

16   his work card.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Was there a question or -- up

18   north?

19                MEMBER BEZICK:  No, I was going to --

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we have a motion --

21                MEMBER BEZICK:  I was going to make the motion,

22   but Ms. Cortez did.  This is Bezick.  I will --

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a --

24                MEMBER BEZICK:  I will second the motion.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

 2   second.

 3                All in favor say, "aye."

 4                (Motion carries.)

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So the motion passes.

 6   You will get your work card, okay?  Make sure you keep on the

 7   up and narrow.  We want to make sure that we're doing the

 8   right thing.  So we appreciate you doing and changing your

 9   life.  We appreciate that, okay?

10                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you, guys.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  All right.  Thank you.  Okay.

12                Agenda Item Number 52, Daniel Brown.  Mr. Brown,

13   are you here?  Okay.

14                Mr. Saladino -- or Investigator Saladino, why are

15   we here with Mr. Brown?

16                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

17   the record.  The applicant was denied for disclosing in 2009 a

18   misdemeanor conviction out of California for possession,

19   manufacture or sale of dangerous weapon.  He was convicted and

20   received 12 months probation.

21                The applicant disclosed his arrest, provided

22   court documents, including his 1203.4 dismissal and now he's

23   here to appeal.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  First, thank you for
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 1   making sure you had all your documentation and putting it on

 2   your actual application.

 3                Board, are there any questions for Mr. Brown?

 4                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.

 5                Mr. Brown, good afternoon.  What are you planning

 6   on doing with a work card?

 7                THE APPLICANT:  I'm trying to switch jobs right

 8   now.  I work for the jail, a private company at the jail.

 9   They transferred me from California where I was driving, so my

10   brother works for Guarda in California.

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Move the microphone.

12                THE APPLICANT:  My brother works for Guarda in

13   California in Oakland.  So I'm trying to switching careers

14   pretty much.

15                MEMBER GRONAUER:  What jail are you working at?

16                THE APPLICANT:  Clark County jail, but I go to

17   Sloan County jail over there on Sloan Avenue and then downtown

18   jail on Stewart.

19                MEMBER GRONAUER:  What do you do there?

20                THE APPLICANT:  Well, they hired me.  They bring

21   me in as manager of the warehouse, but then I demoted myself

22   for the driver.

23                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any further questions
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 1   for Mr. Brown?  Okay.  Hearing no further questions, I'll

 2   entertain a motion.

 3                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

 4   move we grant the appeal and allow Mr. Brown to get his work

 5   card.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We a motion.  Do we

 7   have a second?

 8                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick, I second.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion, we

10   have a second.

11                All in favor say, "aye."

12                (Motion carries.)

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Motion passes.  They will get

14   in contact with you to get your work card.

15                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  Eric Caldwell.

17   Is Mr. Caldwell here?  Oh, that was postponed.  Okay.  Sorry.

18   I got two agendas.

19                Mr. Kajohenae Cannon.  Mr. Cannon, are you in the

20   audience?  Oh, yeah.  Okay.  We'll trail that one until the

21   end.

22                Nedra Chambers.  Nedra, good afternoon.

23   Investigator Saladino, why are we here with Nedra Chambers?

24                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for
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 1   the record.  The applicant was denied for failure to disclose

 2   1997 felony forgery out of California.  There was no

 3   disposition listed on the fingerprint report.

 4                2007, there was a misdemeanor out of California

 5   for possession of narcotics, forgery, driving without a

 6   license.  She was convicted of the driving without a license

 7   and received 24 months probation.

 8                2009 misdemeanor conviction -- or misdemeanor

 9   possession of a controlled substance.  There was no

10   disposition either on her fingerprint report for this one.

11   The applicant was requested to gather the court docs regarding

12   this arrest.  As of this report, no reports have been

13   received.

14                2018, out of California, driving on a suspended

15   license, DUI with priors.  Again, the applicant was requested

16   to gather court documents and no court documents have been

17   received.

18                I called this applicant on February 15th of '22

19   to have her disclose her arrest and provide court documents.

20   The applicant stated the arrests are old, they should be off

21   my record and then she hung up.

22                When she submitted her appeal, she listed the

23   case numbers, did not provide any dispositions for the

24   history.  She's here to appeal.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any questions for

 2   Ms. -- yeah, Chambers?

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  Hi,

 4   good afternoon.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Hi.

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Let's hear it, Ms. Chambers.

 7                THE APPLICANT:  At the time, I didn't do the time

 8   for the crime.  And at the time, I didn't know that due to the

 9   case being misdemeanors and dismissed, I was unaware that the

10   misdemeanor cases were needed.

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  So you've -- why did you

12   fail to list your criminal history?  Let's start there.

13                THE APPLICANT:  Why did I fail not to?

14                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Why did you not list it on the

15   application?

16                THE APPLICANT:  Because I was unaware about it.

17   I was just trying to get a card to go to work.

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Understood.  Are you aware that

19   it specifically states to list everything?

20                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, now, and we did list.

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Perfect.  Thank you.  No further

22   questions.

23                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.

24                Ms. Chambers, why the attitude with our
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 1   investigator?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Because at the time I was going

 3   through a lot with my family and myself.  But my attitude is

 4   different and better now.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So -- and I'm sorry if

 6   there's a follow-up to that, but my question would be:  We

 7   have no documents.  What do you expect us to do here?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  I'm sorry?

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have no documents.

10                THE APPLICANT:  Because when I contacted the

11   courts, they said there was nothing there, and where I work,

12   they said there's nothing.  I work for the Plaza Casino and

13   they said I don't see anything.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So, you know, I guess

15   we probably should have had some documents just saying that

16   they were closed out or they don't find anything.  But

17   according to your fingerprints, we do have actual stuff.  So

18   it's -- you know, you're asking us for a work card.

19                THE APPLICANT:  (Nodded head.)

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You're asking for us your

21   trust, right?

22                THE APPLICANT:  (Nodded head.)

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So the expectation is that

24   you do some of the follow-up.  They're doing their
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 1   investigation, they come to you, they ask for the information.

 2   So the very least that you could do is provide the

 3   documentation that it's closed out.  So that's my two cents.

 4                But are there any further questions?  Okay.

 5   Hearing no further questions, I'll entertain a motion for

 6   Ms. Chambers.

 7                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick.  I move that we

 8   uphold the denial based on the nondisclosure.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we have a motion.  Do we

10   have a second?

11                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

12   will second.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

14   second.

15                All in favor say, "aye."

16                (Motion carries.)

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So your work card will

18   not be granted.  My suggestion is you have the opportunity to

19   come back in a year.  Please provide all the documents that

20   are requested and just do some of that backup work.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.

22                MEMBER CORTEZ:  You have everything here, so you

23   have all of it if you're going to reapply.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.
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 1                Agenda Item Number 56, Trevon Conner.  Is Trevon

 2   here?  Sorry.

 3                Okay.  Agenda Item Number 57, Shardae Davis.

 4   Shardae.  Okay.  Good afternoon, ma'am.

 5                Investigator Saladino, why are we here with

 6   Ms. Davis?

 7                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

 8   the record.  The applicant was denied for a nondisclosure of a

 9   2004 felony burglary conviction out of California, a 2006

10   felony transport or sale of a controlled substance out of

11   California.

12                And let's see.  The applicant was made

13   provisional, but was not added to any company's roster.  The

14   applicant was requested, again, to gather court documents for

15   these cases.  However, as of this date, we do not have them

16   and she wishes to appeal.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Board, are there any

18   questions for Ms. Davis?

19                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

20                Ms. Davis, do you have any court papers with you

21   today?

22                THE APPLICANT:  No, ma'am.  I didn't even realize

23   that I was supposed to bring court documents.  I've never done

24   any security or anything like that.  I've done a whole bunch
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 1   of other jobs since then.

 2                So when I applied for this, it was like, girl,

 3   you can do it, it's Burger King.  I applied, you know, I had

 4   money tax time.  I'm like, you know what, let me try something

 5   different.  And so I'm just coming to see --

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Understand.

 7                THE APPLICANT:  -- what the process is and

 8   whatever I need to do to get in.

 9                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Understand.  I do appreciate all

10   your efforts in at least trying.

11                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Ms. Davis -- this is Gronauer.

13                Ms. Davis, do you understand the process now?

14                THE APPLICANT:  Yep, I surely do.

15                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And what will be

16   expected of you?

17                THE APPLICANT:  I'm assuming I reapply with

18   documentation and all proof of whatever I need to bring next

19   time.

20                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Yes, ma'am.

21                MEMBER GRONAUER:  That's great, you know, and

22   this is the only two that are listed here that we found, and

23   it might be only two that are at risk.  If it is, check with

24   the investigators -- not today, check with investigators and
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 1   redo that application if that's what happens at the end of

 2   this meeting, okay?

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Oh, okay.

 4                MEMBER GRONAUER: (Microphone not on.)  We have

 5   made --

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

 7                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are there any other questions

 9   for Ms. Davis?  Okay.  Hearing no further questions, I'll

10   entertain a motion.

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I make a

12   motion to uphold denial of Shardae Davis who applied for a

13   work card because she never reported past history.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.  Do we

15   have a second?

16                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I'll

17   second, and add that, Mr. Gronauer, we are still having a very

18   difficult time hearing you.

19                (Discussion off the record.)

20                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Mr. Brown, I got it.

21   Thank you.  I left my seat a long time ago.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So do we need to redo the

23   motion then?

24                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I
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 1   will redo the motion and second the motion to grant the

 2   appeal.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  Okay.  Thank you.

 4   So we have a motion, we have a second to uphold the denial.

 5   You are absolute -- oh, we have a motion, we have a second.

 6                All in favor say, "aye."

 7                (Motion carries.)

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So you are -- thank

 9   you.  You're absolutely correct.  Come and see us in a year.

10   You have the application, you can use the same documentation

11   to fill out your new one.

12                THE APPLICANT:  All right.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And then, you know, you

14   should be in a good place when you come back here.

15                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay?  So thank you very

17   much.  Good luck to you.

18                MEMBER BROWN:  Madam Chair?

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yes?

20                MEMBER BROWN:  Could I request a break for the

21   north.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yes.  Absolutely.

23                MEMBER BROWN:  Thank you.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So ten minutes.  Thanks,
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 1   guys.

 2                (Recess.)

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We're going to move

 4   on, Agenda Item Number 58, Ms. Grayson.  Thank you so much.

 5   Good afternoon.

 6                Investigator Saladino, why are we here with

 7   Ms. Grayson?

 8                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

 9   the record.  The applicant was denied for a nondisclosure of a

10   1983 felony out of Minnesota for attempt theft by false

11   representation, convicted, received a suspended jail sentence

12   and 18 months probation.  1984, aggravated forgery out of

13   Minnesota, felony.  Received five years probation, 15 months

14   prison and six months jail and restitution.

15                1987, felony, financial transaction card fraud,

16   convicted, received 17 months in prison, again, out of

17   Minnesota.  2015, out of Oklahoma, felony, obtain or attempt

18   to obtain controlled substance with false pretense or forged

19   prescription.  Convicted, received a deferred sentence for one

20   year and then the case was reduced.

21                2006, misdemeanor out of Ohio for domestic

22   violence.  This was an arrest only as there was no charges

23   filed.  The applicant is here to appeal.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we have -- do we
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 1   have any questions for Ms. Grayson?

 2                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.

 3                Ms. Grayson, good afternoon.  Why didn't you

 4   disclose this stuff?  You already knew it.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Well, I don't want to sound like

 6   a repeat broken record in here.

 7                MEMBER GRONAUER:  That's okay.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  When they say ten years, I

 9   thought that's exactly what they meant, too.

10                MEMBER GRONAUER:  When they said what?

11                THE APPLICANT:  Only go back ten years.

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Where did that come at?

13                THE APPLICANT:  I don't know.  That's just what

14   the piece of paper says.

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  It does not say that.

16                THE APPLICANT:  When you said it then, I said,

17   okay, I heard it too many times.  So it got to be correct.

18   But that's the reason why.

19                MEMBER GRONAUER:  The paper does not say ten

20   years.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I mean, you know, again, I

23   honestly have to say this for the people that weren't here

24   before.  A lot of things are long ago, okay?  No matter what
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 1   their crime or whatever the crime or arrest was for, right?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum.

 3                MEMBER GRONAUER:  It was long ago.  If you just

 4   disclose it, there's a good chance -- there's a better chance

 5   that you're going to get your work card.  It's up.  How can I

 6   speak up anymore?  Stop.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We're getting.  We're getting

 8   signals.

 9                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Well, I can't help it.  It's

10   there.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Got you.

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  I can't even get any closer.  I

13   need to lose another 20 pounds.

14                Here's the deal, okay?  What I'm saying is just

15   for benefit of everyone here, that, you know, there was a good

16   chance you could have gotten your work card without any

17   hassle.  I'm not saying you didn't get it yet because we have

18   to vote.

19                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum.

20                MEMBER GRONAUER:  But please, everyone, list

21   whatever your history is.  I don't care if you need three

22   pages.  You can clip it all together and give it to the

23   investigator.  He'll be happy.

24                THE APPLICANT:  I understand.  I was a nurse for

Capitol Reporters



Page 186

 1   15 years and they never looked at things like that.

 2                MEMBER GRONAUER:  What are you doing now?

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Well, right now, my husband is a

 4   vet and his daughter just came and took power of attorney over

 5   him when he had COVID and I had it, too.  So he's gone and I

 6   have a couple jobs lined up, but I can't work because I don't

 7   got the card.

 8                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you, ma'am.

 9                THE APPLICANT:  (Nodded head.)

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any further questions

11   for Ms. Grayson?  Okay.  Hearing there's no further questions,

12   I'll entertain a motion.

13                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

14   move that we uphold the denial for failure to disclose.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.  Do

16   we have a second?

17                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

19   second.

20                All in favor say, "aye."

21                (Motion carries.)

22                THE APPLICANT:  One year?

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yes.  Please reapply in one

24   year.  You have all the information, they'll help you get
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 1   through that, okay?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  All right.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  All right.  Thank you.

 4                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Good luck.

 6                We can hear you now.  Agenda Item Number 59, John

 7   Howard.

 8                Investigator Saladino, why are we here with

 9   Mr. Howard?

10                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

11   the record.  The applicant was denied for a nondisclosure,

12   misdemeanor, possession, manufacture, sale of dangerous weapon

13   out of California.  He was convicted and received 24 months

14   probation.

15                The applicant stated he had been working security

16   in California and forgot to secure his firearm when he had

17   gotten pulled over.  The applicant has had a California guard

18   card since 1984.  1990, out of California, there was a

19   misdemeanor for possession of a controlled substance.

20                The applicant completed a diversion program and

21   the case was dismissed.  These were not disclosed.  He was

22   made provisional, but was not added to any licensees roster

23   and now he's here to appeal.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Board, are there any
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 1   questions for Mr. Howard?

 2                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.

 3                Mr. Howard, why did you fail to disclose these?

 4                THE APPLICANT:  It was my mistake that I didn't

 5   disclose the issue.  I guess at the -- I was assuming that the

 6   time period and that main felony was my mistake.

 7                MEMBER BROWN:  I mean, the time period is, you

 8   know, something that we consider here.  Had you disclosed

 9   these, this would have been a real easy thing to deal with.

10                THE APPLICANT:  I understand.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  What company did you work for

12   in California?

13                THE APPLICANT:  I worked for Hughes Aircraft

14   company.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  And you worked for

16   them for how long?

17                THE APPLICANT:  Seven years.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  And how long have you

19   been in Nevada?

20                THE APPLICANT:  I've been in Nevada four years.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Have you been working

22   in security for those four years?

23                THE APPLICANT:  No, I've been caring for my

24   elderly parents.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

 2                THE APPLICANT:  My dad has Parkinson's and my mom

 3   had congestive heart failure.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  And so now you're

 5   going back into the work force?

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Hopefully, yes.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions from

 8   the Board?  Okay.  Hearing no further questions, I'll

 9   entertain a motion.

10                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick.  I move we uphold

11   the denial based on nondisclosure.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.  Do we have

13   a second?

14                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I will

15   second.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion, we

17   have a second.

18                All in favor say, "aye."

19                (Motion carries.)

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we've upheld the ruling,

21   okay?  This is a really hard one for us because -- I know for

22   me personally, because it has been so long ago.  It would have

23   been really easy for us to say yes to you.

24                You seem like a nice guy and it's been a long
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 1   time.  So please reapply and, again, we have all the

 2   information that you give to us and, again, provided to us,

 3   but thank you.

 4                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

 5                (Motion carries.)

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Lashawn -- Agenda Item

 7   Number 60, Lashawn Logan.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Good morning.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Good afternoon.

10                Investigator Saladino, why are we here with

11   Lashawn?

12                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

13   the record.  The applicant was denied for a 1992 felony

14   conviction out of California for a robbery, second degree, was

15   convicted and received an 8-year prison sentence, served four.

16   The applicant was made provisional, but was not added to any

17   licensee roster and is here to appeal.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any questions for Ms. Logan?

19   Can I ask one question, are you under oath?

20                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am, I am.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  All right.  Hearing

22   there are no questions, I'll entertain a motion.

23                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick.  I move we uphold

24   the denial based on nondisclosure.

Capitol Reporters



Page 191

 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do I have a

 2   second?

 3                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I'll

 4   second.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

 6   second.

 7                All in favor say, "aye."

 8                (Motion carries.)

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So, again, this is a real

10   hard one for us because this was so long ago.  Had you just

11   put it on your application, we wouldn't deny it.

12                THE APPLICANT:  I did.  The problem was -- okay.

13   The young lady at the office gave me two applications as she

14   did everyone prior to in case you mess up.  I was in a hurry

15   because I had to get to work.

16                I did put it on the application, but when I

17   looked at the application, it was just sloppy.  It wasn't me.

18   I rewrote it and I just -- I missed it.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We can only go by what we

20   have.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Right.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.  So please come back

23   and see us in a year and then we'll definitely consider the

24   application, okay?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Fair enough.  Thank you so much.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.

 3                Agenda Item Number 61, Michael Mann.  Good

 4   afternoon, sir.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Good afternoon.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Have you been sworn in?

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, I have.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Investigator Saladino,

 9   why are we here for Mr. Mann?

10                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

11   the record.  The applicant was denied for a 2000 felony

12   conviction out of Colorado for burglary where he received 18

13   months prison sentence.  2006, out of Colorado, for a felony,

14   possession of a controlled substance.  Received 90 days

15   suspended and 90 days probation.

16                2006, misdemeanor conviction out of Colorado for

17   theft of a motor vehicle.  He was convicted of the lesser

18   charge, which is the misdemeanor and continued on with

19   probation for the previous conviction from February.

20                2011, felony, possession of a controlled

21   substance.  Convicted, received two years probation, again,

22   out of Colorado.

23                2018, felony, possession of a weapon by prior

24   offender.  This was actually dismissed by the TA out of
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 1   Colorado.

 2                The applicant was also a habitual traffic

 3   offender in Colorado and has had numerous traffic offenses and

 4   failure to appear.  The applicant disclosed his arrest history

 5   after he was denied.  He was made provisional and was added to

 6   a licensees roster and now wishes to appeal.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are there any questions for

 8   Mr. Mann?

 9                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

10                Mr. Mann, why did you fail to disclose any kind

11   of criminal contact -- law enforcement contact?

12                THE APPLICANT:  Well, I just moved up here from

13   Colorado.  So Colorado law is just a little bit different from

14   Vegas.  So in Colorado --

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Sir, can I stop you there?

16   You moved up here from Colorado to Nevada.

17                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And you're a resident of

19   Nevada.

20                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, now I am.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So now you have to follow

22   Nevada rules.

23                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  And then you read the
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 1   application, right?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So the application

 4   says anytime, anywhere, any -- any, anything, right?

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So basically you just

 7   disregarded it and went back to Colorado?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  No.  I went down to metro first.

 9   So the system at metro, when I went down there and applied,

10   they told me just go off of what I can remember.  A lot of

11   stuff is old, 2000 -- a lot of stuff when I was a kid.

12                So I really couldn't remember everything.  So I

13   tried to go off of the dates and times as much as possible.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  But when you made the initial

15   application, did you put any of this information down?

16                THE APPLICANT:  The best I can do.  I didn't know

17   it was going to go back to 2000.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  No, sir, it says in your

19   application that you did not put anything down.  You put it

20   down after you were asked about it, after your finger --

21                THE APPLICANT:  See, I didn't know.  That's what

22   I'm saying.  So I asked them, so they gave me what I needed to

23   put on the application because I was confused with the

24   application.  So I sat there and talked to the investigator.
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 1   He's like, this is what you have -- this is what you put on

 2   the application.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any further questions?

 4   Okay.  Hearing no further questions, I'll entertain a motion.

 5                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

 6   move that we uphold the denial based on failure to disclose

 7   and criminal history.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we have a motion.

 9   Do we have a second?

10                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

11   I'll second that motion.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

13   second.

14                All in favor say, "aye."

15                (Motion carries.)

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You're in Nevada.  Read the

17   applications.  It's very clear.  It says anytime, anywhere,

18   any -- any interaction, okay?  They have all your information

19   there.  You can utilize that application as a reference.  If

20   you wish, we can see you back in one year.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.  Thank you.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.

23                Item Number 62, Deonte Marshall.  Good afternoon.

24   Are you under oath, sir?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  (No audible response.)

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

 3                Investigator Saladino, why are we here with

 4   Mr. Marshall?

 5                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

 6   the record.  The applicant was denied for a nondisclosure of

 7   2010 felony conviction out of California for theft from a

 8   person.  He was convicted and received 36 months probation,

 9   which was revoked and he was sentenced to two years in prison.

10                Once denied, the applicant did provide us 1203.4

11   dismissal paperwork from California.  That -- the first one

12   was in April of 2010.

13                The second one, August of 2010, felony possession

14   of a controlled substance.  This was the cause of his

15   probation to be revoked in the first case.

16                2011, felony possession of a firearm, was again

17   convicted and those were those two years in prison for that.

18   2014, out of California, misdemeanor, carrying a concealed

19   weapon in a vehicle.  He received 36 months probation and,

20   again, once he was denied, he provided us 1203.4 paperwork.

21                2015, felony out of California for assault with

22   force, causing great bodily injury.  Received three years

23   probation and, again, provided us 1203.4 documentation after

24   it had been denied.  Now he's here to appeal.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So can I ask, in the 2010 and

 2   the 2011, are those stacked or is it -- they're separate

 3   incidents?

 4                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  The -- both ones in 2010

 5   were separate incidents, but what they did was they revoked

 6   the probation from the first case and that's where they got

 7   the two years of prison from to include the August 4th felony

 8   possession of a firearm.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  Are there

10   any questions for Mr. Marshall?

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

12                Mr. Marshall, why did you fail to disclose any of

13   your criminal history until you were asked?

14                THE APPLICANT:  Like I said earlier, I was fresh

15   from California.  I've only been here four months.  I know I

16   did the dismiss stuff out there.  And I was moving fast, I

17   just got here.

18                I was trying to hurry up and get a job since I

19   had just moved out here.  So I didn't do it.  So then when it

20   came -- when the denial letter came in, I just got all my

21   paperwork together and run it again.

22                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Understood.  Again, just

23   for those reading the minutes, Page 6 of 14, the arrest

24   history is actual one whole page.  It's an entire page of the
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 1   application.

 2                And it specifically says to list all arrests,

 3   citations, orders to appear in court and all felony, gross

 4   misdemeanor or misdemeanor charges, regardless of how long

 5   ago, regardless if it occurred in another state or if you were

 6   not placed in handcuffs, if it was expunged, dismissed or

 7   denied, or if under California PC 1203.4.  No parking listed.

 8                So I have an issue when we're bypassing --

 9   literally a 14-page packet, we're bypassing Number 6, which is

10   probably the most important one in the entire packet.

11                That's all.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions from

13   the Board?  Hearing no further questions, I'll entertain a

14   motion.

15                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick.  I move that we

16   uphold the denial based on nondisclosure.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.  Do

18   we have a second?

19                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

20   will second.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

22   second.

23                All in favor say, "aye."

24                (Motion carries.)
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So you are not going to get

 2   your work card.  Like everyone else, you have the information

 3   at the actual PILB now.  Please feel free to apply in one

 4   year.  Good luck to you, sir.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  All right.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Robert Marshall, Item --

 7   Agenda Item Number 63.  Good afternoon, sir.

 8                Investigator Saladino, why are we here for

 9   Mr. Marshall -- oh, another Marshall.  Got it.  Oh, okay.  I

10   got you.

11                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.

12   The applicant denied for a nondisclosure of a felony case out

13   of California for statutory rape, any person over 21 who

14   engages in sexual intercourse under 16.  He was convicted and

15   received three years probation, DV and sex offender classes.

16                After being denied, he did provide his court

17   documents showing after the completion of probation and the

18   classes, the case was dismissed under 1203.4.  It was

19   dismissed on 7/23 of '12.

20                2006, it was a misdemeanor for domestic violence

21   out of California.  This was just an arrest only.  This was

22   dismissed by the Court.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Was Mr. Marshall ever

24   granted a provisional card?
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 1                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Yes, he was made

 2   provisional.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any questions for

 4   Mr. Marshall?

 5                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez,

 6   asking Mr. Marshall the same thing:  Why did we fail to

 7   disclose until after you were asked by the investigators?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Well, I never applied for a work

 9   card before.  So I had to go -- I didn't really know how far

10   it went back.  So I had to go to California to get all the

11   documentation, which I have right here.

12                Whenever I had to go get expungements and stuff

13   that I have.  So, again, I got denied, but I was already

14   working.  I haven't been in trouble since 2005.

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Right.  But my question was why

16   you failed to disclose it, and what I heard was you were just

17   kind of going a little too fast and did not read the fine

18   print.

19                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, yeah.  I didn't.

20                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Got it.  Understood.  Thank you.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Sir, just one quick question,

22   are you under oath?

23                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You were sworn in?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  All right.  Just want to make

 3   sure.  Any other questions for Mr. Marshall?  No?  Okay.  Any

 4   questions up north?  Okay.  Hearing there are no further

 5   questions, I'll entertain a motion.

 6                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.

 7                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member --

 8                MEMBER BROWN:  Go ahead.

 9                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Go ahead, Mr. Brown.

10                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

11   move that we uphold the denial based on failure to disclose.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.  Do

13   we have a second?

14                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

15   I'll second that motion.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

17   second.

18                All in favor say, "aye."

19                (Motion carries.)

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So, again, sir, you're

21   being denied again because of nondisclosure.  You can work

22   with the PILB Board at another time to get all of your

23   information and please make sure you disclose everything so we

24   are able to consider the application.
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  All right.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  All right.  Thank you.  Good

 3   luck.

 4                Agenda Item Number 40 -- I'm sorry, 64, Edward

 5   Mesa.  Good afternoon.  Investigator Saladino.

 6                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

 7   the record.  Madam Chair, I'm not going to go ahead and read

 8   through the arrest history.

 9                Mr. Mesa is returning from last year's September

10   board meeting where he was -- the Board upheld his denial

11   because there was some confusion regarding a case out of

12   California from 2000 where it was a misdemeanor conviction for

13   domestic violence.  He had listed a coercion and there was

14   some -- or insufficient funds case.

15                Since his last denial and the Board upheld when

16   we -- the applicant reapplied, came into the office, sat down.

17   We went through his entire arrest history so we have

18   disclosure on all his arrest history.

19                Since then, he has had no contact with law

20   enforcement and, you know, did everything the Board had asked

21   him.  He's here now for his appeal.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any

23   questions for Mr. Mesa?  Okay.  Hearing there are no

24   questions, I'll entertain a motion.
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 1                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.

 2                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board --

 3                MEMBER BROWN:  I move that we grant the appeal

 4   and allow Mr. Mesa to get his work card based on the fact that

 5   he did what we asked him to do and returned in a year.

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez, I'll

 7   second that motion.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

 9   second.

10                All in favor say, "aye."

11                (Motion carries.)

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So the motion passes.

13   They'll get in touch with you and you can move forward with a

14   work card, okay?

15                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you very much.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah, congratulations.  Thank

17   you for coming back.

18                Okay.  Julian Oates, Agenda Item Number 65.

19   Julian Oates.  Okay.  We will trail that.

20                Clementtee Reed has withdrawn, so Agenda Item 66

21   has withdrawn, Clementtee Reed.

22                Agenda Item Number 67, Jajuan Rodgers.

23                THE APPLICANT:  Jajuan.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Jajuan.  Good afternoon, sir.
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 1   Have you been sworn in?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Investigator Saladino,

 4   why are we here with Mr. Rodgers?

 5                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

 6   the record.  The applicant was denied for a nondisclosure of a

 7   2021 misdemeanor conviction out of California for carrying a

 8   concealed weapon and possession of a controlled substance

 9   without a valid prescription.  He was convicted and received

10   one year probation.

11                Once the applicant was denied, he did provide

12   court documents and the police report for this arrest.  The

13   police report stated that Rodgers was pulled over while

14   driving, refused to follow commands to stay in the vehicle and

15   exited.

16                Once Rodgers complied with officers, he was

17   patted down and the officer found a loaded handgun in his

18   front pocket.  A controlled substance was found in his

19   backpack with approximately $1500.

20                The application -- the applicant is now here to

21   appeal.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So the applicant did

23   not disclose.

24                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Correct.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Was he ever granted a

 2   work card -- or a provisional?

 3                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  He was made provisional

 4   and was added to our roster.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Okay.  Any questions

 6   for Mr. Rodgers?

 7                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I'll

 8   ask the question of the day:  Why did you fail to disclose

 9   this, Mr. Rodgers?

10                THE APPLICANT:  When I was filling out the

11   application, I honestly remembered them asking me about --

12   because usually they say, have you been convicted of a felony?

13   So I didn't put anything.  All I remember it saying was about

14   a misdemeanor.  I would have put it.  I always keep it real so

15   if I would have seen it, I would have put it in.

16                But that's why I didn't put it down.  I only

17   remember applying for that job.  I was just applying to a

18   whole bunch of different jobs.  That's the first one that

19   called me back and that's why I started working there for the

20   temporary.

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  So this is Board Member Cortez.

22   I do have a question.  Tell me the circumstances regarding

23   when you got pulled over and you failed to comply with officer

24   requests.
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, that's when I was living in

 2   Sacramento, California.  Sacramento crazy, so, you know, if

 3   you don't got a gun on you, you end up dead.  So that's really

 4   why I moved to Vegas with my mom and my dad.  This was a

 5   better decision to move out here.  So that's why --

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Time out.  You had an

 7   attitude with an officer because you live in Sacramento?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  I didn't have an attitude.

 9                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Because there's officers out here

10   that probably will act the same way in your opinion.

11                THE APPLICANT:  I didn't have an attitude.

12                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Well, according to the

13   police report, it indicated that you were pulled over while

14   driving, refused to follow commands to stay in your vehicle

15   and yet you exited.

16                So my concern is, especially in today's day and

17   age, this happened in 2021.  You, being your stature, come

18   out, you're not following officer command and you have a

19   weapon on you.  Do you see where I'm going.

20                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, but --

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Not -- and you said where you

22   live, if you don't have a weapon, you'll get killed.  Vegas

23   ain't too far behind.  In fact, it's a little more

24   disorganized.

Capitol Reporters



Page 207

 1                THE APPLICANT:  But I don't know nobody in Vegas.

 2                MEMBER CORTEZ:  So I'm a little concerned.  Are

 3   you going to be driving around with a weapon out here, fail to

 4   follow the instructions?

 5                THE APPLICANT:  I'm trying to do everything

 6   legal.  That's why I moved out here, fresh start.  I got --

 7   I'm getting my license, my Nevada driver's licenses.  So like

 8   I say, even if I don't get a work card, I'm trying to get my

 9   CDL license.

10                So either way, this is going to be a little

11   temporary job just to save up some money.  But they actually

12   called me.  I was working at Allied Security.  Matt and Chris

13   Brew, they were going to make me a supervisor, then I got the

14   email saying that my work permit was denied.  So it was just a

15   bad time, but I understand.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So it -- so that this is

17   clear, this is not a job that you're applying for, right?  The

18   PILB Board, the license is for you to work.

19                THE APPLICANT:  Right.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Right.  Okay.  So then when

21   you get the card, then you go work for a company and

22   apparently you've worked for Allied Universal.

23                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And had you a job.
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  You can't work unless

 3   you have the card.

 4                THE APPLICANT:  Right.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You didn't put all the

 6   information needed on the card -- on the application for the

 7   card.  So it's kind of the chicken before the egg.  You

 8   started working, you didn't quite hatch the egg, now the egg

 9   is gone so now you can't work, okay?

10                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So I don't have any

12   further questions.  Does anybody else?  Okay.  Hearing no

13   further questions, I'll entertain a motion.

14                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I'm

15   going to motion to uphold the denial based on time and

16   distance.  The incident just occurred in 2021.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.  Do

18   we have a second?

19                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

21   second.

22                All in favor say, "aye."

23                (Motion carries.)

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So you would have to
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 1   wait one year to come back and apply for the actual work card

 2   so that you can work for a security company.

 3                When you apply for the work card, make sure you

 4   indicate everything on that.  Your job may not ask you those

 5   questions, but the work card will.  So make sure you put

 6   everything on there so that we can reconsider your

 7   application, okay?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Yep.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  Good luck.

10                Okay.  Agenda Item Number 68, Dejona Savoy.

11   Dejona, good afternoon, ma'am.  And you have been sworn in?

12                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Investigator Saladino,

14   why are we here with Ms. Savoy?

15                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  The applicant was denied

16   for a disclosure of a gross misdemeanor out of Nevada for a

17   conspiracy to commit burglary where she received 12 months

18   probation and a suspended jail sentence.

19                The applicant disclosed this arrest as a petty

20   theft misdemeanor.  The applicant was sentenced on 7/20 of

21   2022.  Currently the applicant is on probation until 7/20 of

22   '23.

23                The applicant did disclose her arrest as a

24   misdemeanor petty theft.  However, she was convicted of a
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 1   gross misdemeanor and received 12 months probation.  Court

 2   documents show that the applicant must stay away from TJ Maxx,

 3   Marshalls, Sierra Home Goods and HomeSense for one year.

 4   Currently, the applicant is on probation.

 5                The applicant was mistakenly made provisional and

 6   now is here to appeal.  She was not added to any roster.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any questions for

 8   Ms. Savoy?

 9                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.

10                Ms. Savoy, are you still on probation or has that

11   expired?

12                THE APPLICANT:  I'm still on probation for a

13   couple more months.  I just started -- it's 7/20 of this year,

14   July, so a few months ago, two months ago.

15                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any more questions for

17   Ms. Savoy?  Okay.  Hearing no further questions, I'll

18   entertain a motion.

19                I'll go ahead and make the motion.  I motion that

20   we uphold Ms. Savoy's denial based on the fact that she is

21   still on paper on probation.  No, ma'am, wait until I'm done.

22                We have a motion.  Do we have a second?

23                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I'll

24   second.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion, we

 2   have a second.

 3                All in favor say, "aye."

 4                (Motion carries.)

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Once you're off probation and

 6   everything is cleaned up, then please reapply.  You will have

 7   to wait for the one year and then they can help you work

 8   through your actual application, okay?  Thank you.

 9                All right.  Agenda Item Number 69, it's finally

10   your turn.

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  We were all waiting.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Agenda Item Number 69 is Kyle

13   Shakesnider.

14                THE APPLICANT:  Shakesnider.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Shakesnider.  Investigator

16   Saladino.

17                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

18   the record.  The applicant was denied for a nondisclosure of a

19   felony conviction out of California for forgery where he

20   received five years probation.

21                There was also a misdemeanor, embezzlement,

22   property value less than 650 in Nevada where he was convicted

23   and received 60 days suspended jail, community service,

24   restitution and counseling.
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 1                All court requirements were completed on 5/16 of

 2   '22.  The applicant did not disclose his arrest history, he

 3   was made provisional and was added to our roster for a

 4   license.  He's here now to appeal.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any questions?

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

 7                Mr. Shakesnider, why'd we fail to disclose

 8   actually in 2019?

 9                THE APPLICANT:  2019?  2019, I disclosed and went

10   back in '19 is when I didn't disclose.

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  I've got two, a 1996 and a 2019

12   that were not disclosed.  However, our investigator did see

13   that the court requirements were completed in May of this

14   year.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I didn't.

16                MEMBER CORTEZ:  According to our investigative

17   notes, you did not disclose your criminal.

18                THE APPLICANT:  Well, I think I actually -- I

19   disclosed.  I didn't disclose the one in 2019 in which I just

20   forgot that one.  But, yes, I did it.  It was a family member

21   that did this to me.  They didn't pay me my wage.

22                They had filled the check out, did not sign the

23   check.  I picked the check up and signed it myself and I

24   cashed it to pay myself.  I wound up paying that family member
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 1   back, did the probation, got off probation.  I haven't been in

 2   trouble since then.

 3                This thing that happened here in Las Vegas got

 4   broken down to a misdemeanor and the issue has been thrown

 5   out.  So that's my defense.  It was my fault.  I forgot the

 6   '19, so it is what it is.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So, Investigator Saladino,

 8   the 2019, was it disclosed?

 9                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  I believe it was

10   disclosed on the application.

11                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

12                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  My mistake on that one.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  And then the only one

14   that wasn't was the one from 2000 --

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  1996.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Or 1996.

17                THE APPLICANT:  1996, correct, ma'am.  And that

18   was strictly because it was so long in between me getting in

19   trouble, I just forgot, plain and simple.  I just forgot.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any further questions from

21   the Board?

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Again, good afternoon, sir.

23                THE APPLICANT:  Good afternoon.

24                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  What do you
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 1   plan on doing with your work card if you so get one?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Go to work as a guard.  I already

 3   work at Fremont Experience.  They've already promised me the

 4   job.

 5                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Who has?

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Fremont Experience downtown.

 7                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Oh, okay.  All right.  All

 8   right.

 9                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.  I've been there a couple

10   years now.  I'm retired, been retired since I was 62.  I'm 75

11   now.

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Is it armed or nonarmed?

13                THE APPLICANT:  I beg your pardon?

14                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Armed or unarmed?

15                THE APPLICANT:  Unarmed if possible.  I don't --

16   I'm not particular about carrying a gun.

17                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Sounds good.  Thank you.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any further questions

19   from the Board?  Hearing no further questions, I'll entertain

20   a motion.

21                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I make a

22   motion to grant the appeal on Mr. Kyle Shakesnider for his

23   work card, and the reason for that is he reported the one in

24   1996.  He didn't report, but I feel like that time and

Capitol Reporters



Page 215

 1   distance long gone.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  All right.  We have a motion.

 3   Do we have a second?

 4                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

 5   I'll second that motion.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

 7   second.

 8                All in favor say, "aye."

 9                (Motion carries.)

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Anyone denied?

11                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I say

12   nay based on consistency.  We've been denying people who have

13   failed to disclose felonies all day.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So thank you.  The

15   motion passes, I'm reading my math 4 to 1.  When you come back

16   and do a provisional license -- or when -- if you have to come

17   back and do a renewal, be sure you list all of them.

18                THE APPLICANT:  No worries.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So you don't get caught up.

20                THE APPLICANT:  Not a problem.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Okay.

22                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you very much.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  All right.  Thank you and

24   congratulations, sir.
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 1                Okay.  Agenda Item Number 70, Vincenzio

 2   Spalatrio.

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Spalatrio.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Spalatrio.  Okay.

 5                Investigator Saladino, why are we here with

 6   Mr. Spalatrio?

 7                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

 8   the record.  The applicant was denied for a 1986 misdemeanor,

 9   carrying a loaded firearm in public out of California where he

10   was convicted and received 12 months probation.

11                There was also a 2010 out of Nevada for a gross

12   misdemeanor, aiming, discharging a firearm -- or discharge a

13   weapon where persons might be endangered.  This charge was

14   reduced to disorderly conduct.  The applicant did not

15   disclose.

16                He was made provisional and was working for a

17   licensee and he's here now to appeal.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any

19   questions?  Okay.  I'll ask the question of the day:  Why did

20   you not disclose?

21                THE APPLICANT:  I thought that I had disclosed

22   the one that was in Henderson.  The one in '86.  Yeah, my

23   head's like an Etch A Sketch, full of information, but a clean

24   slate.  I just completely spaced it.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Do we have -- can we confirm

 2   that the one in 2010 was --

 3                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

 4   the record.  I don't believe it was disclosed.  However, when

 5   it was ran, it would come up as disorderly conduct.  So it

 6   wouldn't be something that we would contact the applicant for

 7   because it -- you know, disorderly conduct is not something

 8   that is going to deny him.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So it shows up as disorderly

10   conduct, a gross misdemeanor for 2010?

11                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  I'm sorry.  It should

12   show up as a disorderly conduct, misdemeanor.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

14                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Out of Henderson.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Oh, not gross misdemeanor.

16                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Correct.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Got you.

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

19   Mr. Spalatrio, where was this incident in 2010, the discharge?

20                THE APPLICANT:  It actually happened at Sunset

21   '95.  I had a gentleman -- I was on my Harley, ran into the

22   debris field on the side of the highway and when we both

23   exited on Sunset, I was sitting along side of him, looked at

24   him, shook my head.
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 1                He started yelling profanities at me out the

 2   window, got out of his truck, reached in the bed of his truck

 3   and pulled out a four-foot solid steel breaking stake.

 4                I stepped off my Harley, drew my .45, put it

 5   alongside my leg, pointed at him with my left hand and told

 6   him, if you come at me with that stick, I will shoot you where

 7   you stand.

 8                MEMBER CORTEZ:  And you discharged it?

 9                THE APPLICANT:  No, ma'am.  He was smart enough

10   to get back into his car and leave.

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Got it.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any further questions?

13   Okay.  Hearing no further questions, I'll entertain a motion.

14   Are you able to carry a firearm now?

15                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.  I actually worked

16   armed security at Station Casinos as we speak.  I still have

17   my CCW and all of that stuff was -- I was actually given my

18   gun back by the sergeant who arrested me.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

20                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board -- sorry.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Oh, yeah.  Yeah, if there's

22   no further questions, I'll entertain a motion.

23                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I'm

24   going to motion that we overturn the denial and grant
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 1   Mr. Spalatrio a work card.  And I understand we have denied

 2   those for failure to disclose.

 3                The 2010 incident was a little sketchy.  It

 4   wasn't a charge, wasn't something that we follow up with that.

 5   The 1986 time and distance, I'm okay with overturning that

 6   denial because of the time and distance.  So with that, I am

 7   motioning to grant the work card.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.  Do

 9   we a second?

10                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick, I'll second.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

12   second.

13                All in favor say, "aye."

14                (Motion carries.)

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Opposed?

16                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I say

17   nay based on the failure to disclose.  I appreciate your

18   explanation and the way that you handled yourself on that, but

19   I'm going to say nay based on the failure to disclose.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So the motion passes

21   four to one.  You do -- you will get your work card.  You'll

22   work with the office to do that and then they'll contact you.

23                THE APPLICANT:  I'd like to say in leaving, you

24   guys are awesome.  I said earlier if we had people like you at
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 1   DMV, life would just go easy.  Thank you.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Agenda Item Number 71,

 3   Sabrina Tunstill-Hill.  Is there a Sabrina Hill?  Okay.  We'll

 4   trail that.

 5                Agenda Item Number 72, James Williams.  Good

 6   afternoon, sir.  Have you been sworn in?

 7                THE APPLICANT:  I don't think so.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

 9                MS. HARRIS:  Please raise your right hand.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Is there anyone else -- yeah,

11   that one.

12                MS. HARRIS:  Please raise your right hand.

13                (Prospective people sworn.)

14                MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Investigator Saladino,

16   we have Mr. Williams here.  Could you let us know why we're

17   here with Mr. Williams?

18                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  This is Investigator

19   Saladino for the record.  The applicant was denied for a

20   nondisclosure of a 2018 felony, carrying concealed firearm on

21   a person.  He received 36 months probation, work program and a

22   fine.  The applicant did not disclose.

23                Once denied, he did provide court documents.  The

24   Court documents show the charge as a felony and it shows that
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 1   it was not reduced.  The applicant completed probation on 5/17

 2   of '22.  The applicant was made provisional and was working

 3   for a license company and is here now to appeal.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any

 5   questions for Mr. Williams?

 6                MEMBER BROWN:  Mr. Williams, this is Board Member

 7   Brown.  Have you completed your probation?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 9                MEMBER BROWN:  Thank you.

10                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.

11                Mr. Williams, why didn't you disclose?

12                THE APPLICANT:  I didn't know what that was.

13                MEMBER GRONAUER:  It wasn't that long ago.  What

14   do you mean?  You didn't know what?  I don't understand your

15   explanation.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Do you know what "disclose"

17   means?  Why didn't you tell us?  Why didn't you write it in

18   your application?

19                THE APPLICANT:  I thought I did.  I put

20   possession of a firearm.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  In your work card

22   application?

23                THE APPLICANT:  It was like five boxes.  Tell you

24   like what you did in the past.  But I filled that out.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Did you do it online or on

 2   paper?

 3                THE APPLICANT:  On paper.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we have your paper

 5   application and it's not there.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  It's not there?

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  No, sir.  That's why you're

 8   here today.  It's not on there.

 9                THE APPLICANT:  I swear, it was like five boxes

10   that tell you, like, what you did, what he did was the thing,

11   possession of a firearm.  And I remember like I didn't have

12   enough space and I put the little date on the side like the

13   boxes.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Do we have the --

15   you're looking at the application, right, Mr. -- Investigator?

16                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  I'm going to get it right

17   now.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  And you got done with

19   your probation in this year, May?

20                THE APPLICANT:  Well, I've been done.  I just

21   like -- I didn't have no transportation to keep going back and

22   forth to LA to Vegas, you know.  So once I was able to pay my

23   restitution, I guess that's when they dropped the case.  They

24   said they did drop the -- because I had got it expunged for
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 1   it, too, but...

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah, you still have to put

 3   it on the paperwork.  So he's looking --

 4                THE APPLICANT:  But I had brought the paperwork

 5   that say I had got it expunged and everything.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  He's going to look at

 7   your app.  He's having them look at your application right

 8   now.

 9                THE APPLICANT:  Oh, okay.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Just to confirm.

11                MEMBER BROWN:  Mr. Williams, this is Board Member

12   Brown.  Were you on a compact, a probation compact with the

13   State of Nevada?

14                THE APPLICANT:  No.

15                MEMBER BROWN:  So you said that you moved to

16   Nevada and you didn't have transportation to go back and forth

17   to Los Angeles for probation.  You didn't report to --

18                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.

19                MEMBER BROWN:  Hang on a second.  You didn't have

20   to report to a Nevada probation officer?

21                THE APPLICANT:  No, no, I haven't.

22                MEMBER BROWN:  Did you have permission to leave

23   the State of California and reside in Nevada while you were on

24   probation?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, because my case wasn't

 2   like -- I had a summary probation.  So all I had to do -- like

 3   do was finish school and my community service and I did that,

 4   so...

 5                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Because I was like --

 7                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  It was weird, like...

 9                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Mr. Williams, this is Board

10   Member Cortez.  When did you say you moved up here?

11                THE APPLICANT:  7 years, 8 years ago.

12                MEMBER CORTEZ:  You moved out here eight years

13   ago?

14                THE APPLICANT:  Like 2015.

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  So you moved out here in 2015,

16   but in 2018 --

17                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, I did.

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  -- you got charged in California

19   and you got placed on probation for three years?

20                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.

21                MEMBER CORTEZ:  In those three years, where were

22   you living?

23                THE APPLICANT:  I was in --

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  In California?
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  No, no, I was in Vegas.  Well, I

 2   had the community service.  I would stay with my auntie like

 3   for a couple --

 4                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Hold on one second.  While

 5   you were on probation from 2018 to your three-year -- 36-month

 6   probationary period, where were you living?

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Oh, I was out there until I was

 8   done with my community service and stuff when I had --

 9                MEMBER CORTEZ:  No, when you finished probation

10   and then you moved to Vegas, or were you here in Vegas during

11   your probation period?  I understand you have conditions to

12   do.  When you were on active probation, were you in the State

13   of Nevada, living here?

14                THE APPLICANT:  No, I probably wasn't really

15   because it was -- at that time, there was a lot going on,

16   like --

17                MEMBER CORTEZ:  So -- and I understand that and

18   it was 2018.  But the matter is that it's still pretty fresh.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So --

20                MEMBER CORTEZ:  It's not too long.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yeah.  And, sir, we did look

22   at your application there.  They have it.  They were able to

23   look it up and nothing's written in there.  So you didn't, you

24   know, note that on your application.
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 1                So with that being said, are there any other

 2   questions from the Board.  Okay.  Hearing there's no further

 3   questions, I'll entertain a motion.

 4                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I'm

 5   going to motion to uphold the denial based on the

 6   nondisclosure and -- based on the nondisclosure.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.  Do

 8   we have a second?

 9                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick, I'll second.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

11   second.

12                All in favor say, "aye."

13                (Motion carries.)

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So, sir, we denied your

15   appeal.  So you will not be able to work -- or get an actual

16   work card.  You are welcome to try again in one year.  Okay?

17   And they'll have your information.  Thank you.

18                Agenda Item Number 73, Sean Wilson.  Is Sean

19   Wilson in?  Good afternoon, sir.

20                Investigator Saladino, why are we here with

21   Mr. Wilson?

22                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

23   the record.  The applicant was denied for nondisclosure of a

24   2005 felony conviction out of California from -- for grand
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 1   theft from a person, was convicted and received a 16-month

 2   prison sentence.

 3                The applicant had multiple parole violations.

 4   March 20th, '08, was arrested for possession and sale of

 5   marijuana.  2008, out of California, second-degree burglary

 6   and a violation of parole.  He received three years prison

 7   sentence for that one as well.

 8                2013, misdemeanor out of California for

 9   possession of a controlled substance, convicted and received

10   four days of jail, credit for time -- credit for two days

11   served.

12                2016, misdemeanor out of Nevada for DUI.  This

13   was disclosed.  He was convicted and received a suspended

14   driver's license for one year and DUI school.  The applicant

15   did not disclose his arrest history from California until he

16   was denied.  He was made provisional, but was not added to any

17   licensee's roster and is here now to appeal.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any questions from the Board

19   for Mr. Wilson?

20                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.

21                Mr. Wilson, why did you fail to disclose some of

22   your arrest history, particularly the felonies?

23                THE APPLICANT:  I thought it was so many years

24   back that you had to go.  I didn't know until today everything
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 1   and I was stuck in San Francisco.  I didn't even like

 2   remember.  I tried to contact San Francisco to get my criminal

 3   history record and it was a little bit hard for me to do it

 4   without going there.

 5                And any of the DUIs, I didn't think it was like

 6   concerning to the position I have, wasn't driving.  But I did

 7   find out there is some drive positions.  I just didn't

 8   disclose it.

 9                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  You did disclose the DUI,

10   but you didn't disclose others.  So thank you.  No further.

11                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any further questions

13   for Mr. Wilson?  Okay.  Hearing there's no further questions,

14   I'll entertain a motion.

15                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

16   move that we uphold the denial on the basis of failure to

17   disclose.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we have a motion.  Do we

19   have a second?

20                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick, I'll second.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

22   second.

23                All in favor say, "aye."

24                (Motion carries.)
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Again, yours is a

 2   little bit different than, you know, the guy that got a felony

 3   or a misdemeanor in 1980 something, right?  Yours are more

 4   recent.  So time and distance on those, the expectation is

 5   that you would remember to put those on there and they are

 6   felonies, okay?

 7                Just like all the rest, you're more than welcome

 8   to come back in one year.  Make sure you document everything

 9   on your application.  Everything needs to be included, okay?

10                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you and good luck to

12   you.

13                Agenda Item Number 74, Jared Winters has been

14   postponed, right?  Okay.  Agenda Item Number 75, Dion Stanley.

15   Dion.  Okay.  We'll trail that.

16                Agenda Item Number 76, Robert Coleman.  Okay.

17   Oh, he withdrew.  Sorry.  Just to be clear on the record,

18   Agenda Item Number 76, Robert Coleman withdrew.

19                Agenda Item Number 77, Varaya.

20                THE APPLICANT:  Varaya Fechner.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  How do you say your last

22   name, ma'am?

23                THE APPLICANT:  Fechner.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Oh, you're in Reno.  Sorry.
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 1                Okay.  Investigator Saladino, why are we here for

 2   Ms. Fechner?

 3                (Discussion off the record.)

 4                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  This is Investigator

 5   Saladino for the record.  The applicant was denied for a

 6   nondisclosure.  In 2021, misdemeanor out of Nevada for destroy

 7   or injure a person's property and trespassing, was convicted

 8   and received a 90-day suspended for 12 months, anger

 9   management classes as well.

10                The applicant did not disclose.  The case started

11   off as home invasion and at the time she applied, the case was

12   ongoing.  Classes were completed on 8/15 of '22.  No contact

13   with the victim and suspended jail term expires on

14   December 15th of this year.

15                2020, there was a misdemeanor, disturbing the

16   peace and resisting a public officer out of Nevada where she

17   received anger management classes and 15 days jail suspended

18   for one year.

19                The case started out domestic battery and was

20   reduced in the courts.  The case was closed on December 21st

21   of '21 and the applicant was made provisional and was working

22   for a licensee at the time and now wishes to appeal.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So, ma'am, I just have to

24   confirm because I did see you up north earlier.  Are you under
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 1   oath?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You are?  Okay.  Board, are

 4   there any questions for Ms. Fechner?

 5                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.

 6                Ms. Fechner, why did you fail to disclose your

 7   arrest?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  I did not fail to disclose my

 9   arrests.  I did turn in two applications at one time.  I'm not

10   sure which one she filed, but one was not filled all the way

11   out.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I didn't hear.  What was

13   that?

14                MEMBER BROWN:  Investigator Saladino, is there

15   any way to confirm that?  Would there be a file that might

16   have the second application?

17                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Yes.  Board's indulgence,

18   I'll get that right now.

19                (Brief pause in proceedings.)

20                MEMBER BROWN:  Madam Chair, this is Board Member

21   Brown.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yes?

23                MEMBER BROWN:  I don't know how long this is

24   going to take.  Should we trail this for a little bit and move
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 1   on for time saving?

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yes.

 3                MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  So we're going to trail

 4   this.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Investigator Saladino, are

 6   you able to have Investigator Swarthout look at that because I

 7   know you're on the next one, too.

 8                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  It'll just take a few

 9   minutes for me to get that information.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Do you want to take a

11   two-minute break?  All right.  Thank you.  We're in a good

12   place now time wise.

13                (Recess.)

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Is Ms. Fechner still

15   with us?

16                MEMBER BEZICK:  Yes.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So, Ms. Fechner, we

18   did look at your application.  Originally you applied in July

19   of 2022, right, or 2021?

20                THE APPLICANT:  '22.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  '22.  Okay.  In your

22   application in '22, you did not disclose your arrest, right?

23   So then you were given -- I'm sorry, in May, when you applied

24   in May.  In July when you received the second application,
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 1   that's when you were -- you provided the information; is that

 2   correct?

 3                THE APPLICANT:  No.  In July, that's when I

 4   received the letter to appeal.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I'm sorry.  Could you put --

 6   can you put -- can you get closer to the mic?  I'm having a

 7   hard time hearing you.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  In July, that is when I received

 9   the letter to appeal.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So -- and is that when

11   you put your --

12                THE APPLICANT:  No, ma'am.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  -- arrest information in

14   there?

15                THE APPLICANT:  No.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we have your

17   original application and that was done -- I'm sorry,

18   Mr. Saladino, when?

19                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  The application was

20   turned in on May 26th of '22.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  At that time, ma'am,

22   it did not have any -- at that time, it did not have any

23   information disclosed on there about your arrest.

24                THE APPLICANT:  I returned two applications that
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 1   day.  One, I had messed up on, checking one of the boxes.  So

 2   when I went in to pay for it, I had her -- both of them for

 3   her to shred one.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So unfortunately we

 5   can only go off of what we have.  And if you handed her two,

 6   then that's something that, you know -- I don't even

 7   understand how we would be held accountable for that.  But

 8   unfortunately the one that we have, the one you were denied on

 9   was the one that did not have the disclosures on it.

10                Are there any further questions from the Board?

11   Hearing there's no further questions, I'll entertain a motion.

12                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

13   move to uphold the denial based on the failure to disclose and

14   the recency of the crimes and the suspended jail term that is

15   still in effect according to our investigators.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  I have a motion.  Do I

17   have a second?

18                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we have a motion, we have

20   a second.

21                All in favor say, "aye."

22                (Motion carries.)

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So, Ms. Fechner, your

24   work card is being denied at this point.  You are more than
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 1   welcome to apply again in a year, just make sure at that time

 2   that you can work with the Board -- or I'm sorry, the staff on

 3   disclosure of all items, okay?

 4                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

 7                MEMBER BROWN:  Sorry, Ms. Fechner.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Item Number 78, Lisa Bass.

 9   Good afternoon, Ms. Bass.  You've been sworn in?

10                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, ma'am.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Investigator Saladino,

12   why are we here with Ms. Bass?

13                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino for

14   the record.  The applicant was denied for disclosing a

15   misdemeanor carrying a concealed weapon out of Nevada where

16   she pled guilty and received a $55 fine and 29 hours of

17   community service.  This happened in 1993.

18                Also, in 1993, there was a misdemeanor domestic

19   violence where she received $100 fine and a work program out

20   of Nevada.

21                2001, in October in Nevada, misdemeanor domestic

22   violence.  She received a $599 fine, 60 hours of community

23   service.  The applicant did disclose her arrest history at the

24   time she applied.  The only arrest that was listed on her
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 1   fingerprints was a 2001 domestic battery.

 2                The applicant was not made provisional and is

 3   here now to appeal.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So just for my

 5   understanding, she did disclose the 1993 conviction -- she did

 6   all of them.

 7                INVESTIGATOR SALADINO:  Correct.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Fantastic.  Are there

 9   any questions for Ms. Bass?  Okay.  Seeing there's no

10   questions, I'll entertain a motion.

11                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer, I make a

12   motion to -- thank you, overturn the denial and grant the

13   appeal -- and grant the appeal due to the -- she did disclose,

14   she did all the right things.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.  Do

16   we have a second?

17                MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown, I will second.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

19   second.

20                All in favor say, "aye."

21                (Motion carries.)

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations.  You'll get

23   your work card.  The team will get in contact with you.

24                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  On the next steps, okay?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.  Have a good day.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You're very welcome.  Thank

 4   you.  Disclosure, that's what we needed.

 5                Okay.  Agenda Item Number 79, do we have Justin

 6   Austria.  Sir, are you under oath?  Okay.  Investigator

 7   Swarthout, why are we here with Mr. Austria?

 8                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  The applicant was denied

 9   for a felony conviction out of Nevada in 2015, November 10,

10   for a burglary.  The applicant did disclose this one.  He

11   listed it as a gross misdemeanor on his app.

12                The applicant also had an August 18th, 2021,

13   battery domestic violence.  That was a DA denial.  That was

14   non-disclosed.

15                A June 22nd, 2018, out of Arizona, felony case

16   that started out as a drug paraphernalia, possess/use, that

17   appears to still have an active warrant as of 1 o'clock today.

18                2018, February 3rd, out of Nevada, use/possess

19   drug paraphernalia.  He is guilty.  There is two counts of

20   this one and there's still a warrant for this case.

21                An August 23rd, 2015, out of Nevada.  This one

22   was disclosed for the purpose of engaging in drug activity,

23   use/possess drug paraphernalia.  He was guilty on all counts.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any questions for
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 1   Mr. Austria?

 2                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  Are

 3   you aware you have the active warrant?

 4                THE APPLICANT:  I am not aware.  And that's in

 5   Arizona?

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  According to our investigator,

 7   that's --

 8                THE APPLICANT:  No, I'm not aware.  They had told

 9   me that they had dropped it because they picked me up in

10   Arizona and then they held the charge, and then they told me

11   they had dropped it and then they had transferred me here to

12   Las Vegas.

13                MEMBER CORTEZ:  So, FYI, your warrant is active.

14                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.  Thank you for letting me

15   know because I had no idea, like, and it's been years, so...

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any further questions

17   from the Board?  Okay.

18                Hearing no further questions, I'll entertain a

19   motion.

20                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer, making a

21   motion to deny the appeal of Justin Austria for his work card

22   because of nondisclosure, also active warrant in Arizona that

23   we can tell apparently.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.  Do we have
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 1   a second?

 2                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

 3   I'll second that motion.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

 5   second.

 6                All in favor say, "aye."

 7                (Motion carries.)

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Looks like you have a

 9   little bit of clean-up to do.

10                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you so much.  Apologies for

11   wasting any of your guys' time.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  Have a good day.

13                Agenda Item Number 80, Latrice Bogan.  Ma'am, are

14   you under oath?  You've been sworn in?  Okay.

15                Investigator Swarthout, why are we here with

16   Ms. Bogan?

17                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  The applicant was denied

18   for a felony conviction, a conviction of illegal use of

19   possession of a dangerous weapon, failure to disclose.

20                The applicant has -- was arrested on

21   October 26th, 2013, in Nevada for carrying a concealed weapon,

22   a misdemeanor offense.  She was -- pled guilty to that one.

23   She did disclose that arrest.

24                Out of California, there was an August 12th,
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 1   2005, arrest, felony level, petty theft with prior jail

 2   specific offenses.  She was sentenced to 16 months prison for

 3   that.

 4                A November 22nd, 2014, Nevada arrest for petty

 5   larceny.  She was found guilty on that one.

 6                May 24th, 2013, out of Nevada a misdemeanor false

 7   statement to obstruct a public officer.  She pled guilty for

 8   that one.

 9                In Nevada, March 7th, 2012, battery.  That one,

10   she was also guilty on.

11                An April 12th, 2003, out of California,

12   misdemeanor, grand theft, money, labor property $400.  Guilty,

13   three years probation.

14                And then a July 23rd, 2001, out of California,

15   misdemeanor theft.  Guilty, three years probation.

16                And then August 25th, 1997, out of California,

17   misdemeanor petty theft and she would have been a minor at

18   that time.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Just so that I'm

20   clear, all of those she disclosed?

21                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  No.  She disclosed the

22   carrying a concealed weapon and that was the only one.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So the felony?

24                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  It was a misdemeanor.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any questions for

 2   Ms. Bogan?

 3                MEMBER BROWN:  Ms. Bogan, this is Board Member

 4   Brown.  Why did you fail to disclose, and in the

 5   investigator's notes, it says that you failed to disclose even

 6   after he told you about this and you were given a chance to

 7   disclose everything again?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  That's not true because I took

 9   the printout from metropolitan courthouse and they gave me all

10   the printout and I gave them the printout for my application,

11   stating the arrest and everything that I did.  I put on my

12   application.  Plus, in 2005, when I was arrested, when I was

13   paroled, I was shot.

14                In August -- May, Mother's Day, I was shot four

15   months after, which I was put under a medical induced coma.

16   So my parole officer came to see me, told me he was going to

17   give me my life back if I got out of California.  I left, went

18   to Texas.  Supposedly those charges was supposed to be dropped

19   and I guess there wasn't, because I came here.

20                In 2018, I applied for a sheriff card at

21   Metropolitan Police Department.  I put those charges down.

22   They told me don't put them anymore because they don't exist.

23   So I don't know how they pulled them up.  But I would have put

24   them on there if they would have been visible when I did the
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 1   work card the first time in 2018.

 2                The officer told me they see that I put it on

 3   there, being compliant, but they couldn't find it, so not to

 4   put them on there, on any applications.

 5                But I do know -- I've got memory loss, but my

 6   memory not that good, but I do know about the charge in 2013.

 7   It wasn't a -- it was a bail that, I guess, was a brass

 8   knuckles.  I didn't know that.

 9                It was still put together on the bail, but the

10   cop was being an A-hole and charged me with it.  I pled guilty

11   because it was in my possession.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So if I can just stop there.

13   So she did the initial application, nothing was noted on

14   there?

15                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  On her initial

16   application, she listed the 2013.  She did list it as the

17   brass knuckles.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  And then the --

19                THE APPLICANT:  I gave the printout to the clerk.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  To what clerk?

21                THE APPLICANT:  The -- at the PLI investigation

22   officer.  He handed me the application and she stapled it to

23   my application supposedly.  I'm not sure.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And this is with your initial
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 1   application?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Or with the application

 4   after?

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Because I wasn't sure what my

 6   arrest was, the date.  So I went to the courthouse the same

 7   day and came back and gave her the application with the

 8   printout.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Do we have any ancillary

10   paperwork with her application?

11                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  Not that I have with me.

12   Would that have been printed out by LVPD?

13                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum, at the --

14                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  So would that have been

15   a copy of your SCOPE?

16                THE APPLICANT:  It was just the brass knuckles.

17   That was only thing that was on the paper.

18                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  Yeah.  If it's a copy of

19   SCOPE, that's just a local arrest history.  We cannot take

20   that form from you.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.  I tried.  Because they

22   told me they would give me a -- I asked for like all the

23   arrests here in Vegas and all -- everything they dismissed

24   except for that one.  So that's why it wasn't on there.

Capitol Reporters



Page 244

 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And the other ones are out of

 2   California?

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, years ago.

 4                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  Four are out of

 5   California and four out of Nevada.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Are there any other questions

 7   from the Board?  Okay.  Hearing there are no other questions,

 8   I'll entertain a motion.

 9                How -- I'm sorry, how long have you been in

10   Nevada again?

11                THE APPLICANT:  Since my mom passed away in 2011.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And what have you been doing?

13                THE APPLICANT:  I've worked every year, but it's

14   like -- since, I told you, I got shot, it's kind of hard on my

15   body, you know.  So I try to do something easy, like security

16   is not that much.

17                And I have seven kids to support, so I don't want

18   to be one of those people that don't work.  So I have worked

19   ever since I've been here, just not in security.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Just not in security.

21                THE APPLICANT:  (Nodded head.)

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And you came here in 2018 and

23   you said you got a sheriff's card.

24                THE APPLICANT:  Well, I came here in 2011 and I
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 1   went to the -- I applied in 2018 for the sheriff's card.

 2                (Discussion off the record.)

 3                THE APPLICANT:  And then I would have been -- my

 4   sheriff card just expired.  So I'll be going down there again

 5   because I had got the card and everything.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  What work do they do with a

 7   sheriff's card?

 8                THE APPLICANT:  Work at like gaming.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Oh, gaming.  Okay.

10                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  So on her SCOPE, it

11   lists that she has a sheriff's card for a 24/7 Mini Mart for

12   an on-premise employee.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Okay.  I've been the

14   one with questions, so sorry.  Are there any other questions?

15   Okay.  I'll entertain a motion.

16                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

17   move that we uphold the denial for failure to disclose.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.  Do I have

19   a second?

20                MEMBER BEZICK:  Bezick, I second.

21                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  I have a motion, and

22   have a second.

23                All in favor say, "aye."

24                ((Motion carries.))
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we're going to deny

 2   your appeal, right?  But you can come back in a year, work

 3   with the office.  They will have your information and they can

 4   help you with that, okay?  So they're really good about

 5   helping you.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Good luck to you, ma'am.

 8                Agenda Item Number 81, Dee Cagle or Cagle.  Okay.

 9   We'll trail that one.

10                Agenda Item 82, Owen Dumas.  Mr. Dumas, are you

11   under oath?

12                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, I am.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Sounds good.

14   Investigator Swarthout.

15                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  The applicant was denied

16   for a felony conviction, April 14th, 2016, out of North

17   Carolina, a felony conviction for sales schedule -- was that

18   for controlled substance, convicted six months to 17 months

19   and 18 months supervised probation.

20                This case appears to have an active warrant.  The

21   applicant did provide court documents for it.  We have tried

22   reaching out to the courthouse ou in North Carolina it was out

23   of and still have not gotten any word back on the status of

24   that potential warrant in that case.
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 1                And then there is a November 4th, 2014, out of

 2   Nevada, domestic battery.  He was convicted of that one.  Both

 3   of those cases were disclosed.  As of the other day, we

 4   received additional information from the Clark County justice

 5   court that the applicant was working for a licensee, serving

 6   convictions.

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Do I get to speak now?

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  No, sir.

 9                THE APPLICANT:  All right.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So they were both disclosed.

11   Got it.  But one has an active warrant and we have not been

12   able to get in contact with the court.

13                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  That is correct.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any

15   questions from the Board?

16                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  For

17   Investigator Swarthout, just to confirm, you just recently

18   discovered unlicensed activity?

19                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  He was working for a

20   licensee, serving convictions.  The licensee did not verify

21   that he had a work card or anything.  They have been issued a

22   violation for that.

23                MEMBER BROWN:  Thank you.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  If there are no other
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 1   questions -- so I had one for legal counsel.  If we haven't

 2   heard back from the courts yet, this was 2016, so that's how

 3   many years ago?

 4                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Six.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I mean, or maybe our law

 6   enforcement guys?

 7                MEMBER CORTEZ:  What's the question?

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  It said that he had an active

 9   warrant from --

10                MS. HARRIS:  Yes, Chricy Harris for the record.

11   There needs to be something substantiated from the courts at

12   least established that that's been dealt with unfortunately.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So if anybody wants to

14   make a motion that once it's -- so that he doesn't have to

15   come back in a year, especially since they have reached out to

16   the courts, can we put that in a motion if the Board desires.

17                MS. HARRIS:  Okay.  So if the Board is willing

18   to -- if anyone is willing to create a motion, possibly

19   approving with the contingency that that paperwork is

20   provided, that those court matters had been addressed, then

21   that's proper.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Or that -- could we also do

23   one that he comes back in -- at the next board meeting instead

24   of waiting one year?
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 1                MS. HARRIS:  Yes.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I'd

 4   like to motion that we pass or trail the matter to the next

 5   board meeting to allow more information for a criminal history

 6   or any kind of active warrant status.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So do you understand?  So

 8   we're -- so we can deny you right now, okay?

 9                THE APPLICANT:  Um-hum.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  And if we deny you, you have

11   to wait one year to come back.  The reason we're doing this is

12   because we don't have the information from --

13                THE APPLICANT:  North Carolina.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  -- North Carolina, right?

15   Well, we don't want to deny you and have you wait for one

16   year.  So the motion is that we trail you to next meeting,

17   which in December, right?  So you're only waiting a couple

18   months versus a whole year.  By then, hopefully you'll have

19   the information from North Carolina.

20                THE APPLICANT:  Well, that's the thing.  I had

21   the -- I don't know how I have a warrant if I went to court.

22   They gave me probation and I did the compact and switched it

23   to Nevada and completed my probation out here, and that was --

24   I finished that in 2018.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So then get with the state

 2   out here or whoever you finished with your probation with and

 3   get the paperwork, and then that way, we can make a vote on it

 4   because we don't want to -- if we deny you, we have to wait a

 5   whole year.

 6                And you did what you're supposed to, you

 7   actually, you know, admitted to -- disclosed the information.

 8   So we don't want to deny you, right, because you did the right

 9   thing.  But just get to the people that you finished your

10   probation with and then, that way, we can trail you to the

11   next meeting.

12                Does that make sense.

13                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, that makes sense.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Yeah, just get a

15   letter or something from them so we can close this out, and

16   then we can move --

17                THE APPLICANT:  Who do I get it from, Las Vegas?

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  If that's who you finished

19   your probation with, right?  Then you would get it from Las

20   Vegas.

21                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  I would assume that

22   they would have that documentation if they transferred it here

23   and he completed his probation.  They would probably have that

24   access.
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 1                If not, reach out to the other state and get

 2   something to show that you do not have a warrant there,

 3   provide that to board staff and we can do that.

 4                THE APPLICANT:  I sent all the documents that

 5   they were willing to even send me.  It's even harder getting

 6   those.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Hold on.

 8                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Investigator Swarthout, who's the

 9   agency that issued the warrant?  If it's a warrant, you're

10   going to need to contact the DA of that jurisdiction because,

11   at some point, you're going to have to get it placed back on

12   calendar for quashing.  That's how that's going to work.

13                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  It's the courthouse out

14   of North Carolina.  It gives me an address of 7900 -- or 790

15   Rowen.

16                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  So it's issued out of the

17   District Court, I would imagine.  So what you're going to need

18   to do is call them, tell them that you have an active warrant

19   that's coming up in your record.  We need to know how to get

20   it on there.  They may refer you to an attorney, but at least

21   you -- there's your starting point.

22                THE APPLICANT:  All right.

23                MEMBER CORTEZ:  How to get that quashed.

24                THE APPLICANT:  All right.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So we're not done yet.

 2                MEMBER CORTEZ:  We have to make a motion.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Let's -- so --

 4                MEMBER BROWN:  Madam Chair, this is Board Member

 5   Brown.  If I could just offer Mr. Dumas some information.  If

 6   you were here on a compact, you would have been with the state

 7   Parole and Probation, the Nevada Department of Public Safety's

 8   Parole and Probation.  They have an office on Bonanza.

 9                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.

10                MEMBER BROWN:  If you go down there, and you

11   completed your probation with them, they should have court

12   documentation also, okay?  So try both.

13                THE APPLICANT:  All right.

14                MEMBER BROWN:  You may be able to get it through

15   Nevada easier, okay?  But try both.  Thank you.

16                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  All right.  So we have a

18   motion.  Do we have a second?  Does -- did everybody hear the

19   motion?

20                MEMBER BROWN:  Our stenographer is stating, no,

21   she did not hear the motion.

22                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I'm

23   motioning to trail the matter to the next board meeting to

24   allow confirmation of an active warrant or not.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Do we need to make a vote?

 2   Okay.  So we have a motion.  Do we have a second?

 3                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I'll

 4   second.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So we have a motion, we have

 6   a second.

 7                All in favor say, "aye."

 8                (Motion carries.)

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So try to close that

10   out.  The next meeting is in December.  Work with this team,

11   make sure you get all that information to them and then we'll

12   be able to make -- take a vote on it then, okay?  All right.

13   So you don't have to wait the year.  Thank you.

14                So Agenda Item Number 83, Rontiera Dunmore.

15   Hello.  Are you under -- are you under oath?  Okay.

16                Okay.  Investigator Swarthout.

17                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  The applicant was denied

18   for conviction of possession of a dangerous weapon and failure

19   to disclose.  January 18th, under Nevada in 2014, a

20   misdemeanor conviction of carrying a concealed weapon without

21   a permit.  She was convicted to six months of jail, but it was

22   suspended sentence and 39 hours of community service and a

23   fine of $500.

24                When the applicant first applied, she did not
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 1   disclose this and she was denied.  She did disclose it on her

 2   appeal letter.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any questions for

 4   Ms. Dunmore?  Okay.  Hearing there's no questions, I'll

 5   entertain a motion.

 6                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

 7   move we uphold the denial based on the failure to disclose.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a -- we have a

 9   motion.  Do we have a second?

10                MEMBER BEZICK:  This is Bezick, I second.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

12   second.

13                All in favor say, "aye."

14                (Motion carries.)

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.

16                THE APPLICANT:  I don't get a chance to speak?

17   I'm the only one that hasn't spoken and I came to the mic.

18                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Well, this is Board Member

19   Cortez.  I'll ask you:  Why'd you fail to disclose?

20                THE APPLICANT:  The reason I didn't disclose it

21   is because due to my court record sealed documents, it tells

22   me that any inquiry -- I'm legally able to answer to any

23   inquiry recounting the charges, that they legally did not

24   occur.  So when I had just received my records sealed earlier
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 1   this year, that was my initial idea was already to go straight

 2   for the guard card.

 3                And when I did that, I did not know that those

 4   sealed records counts it as anything to list because of the

 5   court paperwork on the documents.

 6                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Understood.  Understood.  And I

 7   just want to remind you that I did read Page 6 of 14 in the

 8   entire application that lists that you are to list everything.

 9                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah.

10                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Regardless of disposition,

11   regardless of expungement, regardless of --

12                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, but it does not --

13                MEMBER CORTEZ:  One second, ma'am.  You failed to

14   disclose.

15                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

16                MEMBER CORTEZ:  So there really isn't discussion

17   here.

18                THE APPLICANT:  Yeah, but it does not state

19   anything about the sealed record at all.

20                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Okay.  Ma'am, I really need you

21   to relook at the application and read it.

22                THE APPLICANT:  It states nothing about a sealed

23   record.

24                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Ma'am.
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 1                THE APPLICANT:  I've already had an executive

 2   board member call me and tell me I was absolutely correct

 3   about that.  It states nothing about a sealed record.  So I

 4   was just confused about the letter --

 5                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Ma'am.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  -- the wording on the paperwork.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Ma'am, ma'am, we've

 8   made our decision.  Thank you.

 9                THE APPLICANT:  Understood.

10                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  We've made our

11   decision.  You're more than welcome to apply again in a year.

12   Make sure that you document all that information.  If you have

13   any questions, you can contact the Board later.  Thank you.

14                MEMBER CORTEZ:  You have the application -- or

15   the information needed.  So contact the office and then they

16   will help you.  They will -- they have been overly diligent in

17   helping applicants.  So just give them a call.  But as of

18   right now, you've been denied, failure to disclose.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We voted.

20                THE APPLICANT:  I mean, why do I have disclose?

21   My -- the Court records tell me I don't have to disclose --

22                MEMBER CORTEZ:  I understand that.  But the

23   application --

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Everybody, stop.
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 1                Ma'am, ma'am, you're going to be asked to leave

 2   now.  It's been voted on.  You've been denied.  Please leave.

 3   Thank you.  Thank you.

 4                Okay.  Agenda Item Number 84, Christopher Garcia.

 5   Thank you, sir.  Are you under oath?

 6                THE APPLICANT:  No, I was never put under oath.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Is there anybody else

 8   that just walked in?  Okay.  Okay.

 9                THE APPLICANT:  I don't want to be wasting your

10   time, though.  I didn't disclose anything.  I apologize.  I

11   didn't know anything of this.

12                MEMBER CORTEZ:  You have to be under oath in

13   order to say anything.  But don't worry about it.

14                THE APPLICANT:  Okay.  Okay.

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Just get under oath first.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So anybody that has not

17   been -- who's just walked in, if you're going to testify, we

18   need you to stand up and swear under oath.

19                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Do we have anybody in

20   the north?

21                MEMBER BROWN:  No, sir.  They've all left.

22                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Thank you.

23                MS. HARRIS:  Please raise your right hand.

24                (Prospective people sworn.)
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 1                MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.

 2                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Garcia.

 3                Investigator Swarthout, could you tell us why

 4   we're here?

 5                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  The applicant was denied

 6   for conviction of illegal use or possession of a dangerous

 7   weapon and for failure to disclose.  The applicant has an

 8   August 7th, 2008, out of Nevada, conviction for a misdemeanor,

 9   carrying a concealed weapon.  He did not disclose that one.

10                A February 26, 2007, out of Nevada misdemeanor,

11   possession of drug paraphernalia.  He was convicted on that

12   one.

13                February 17th, 2006, out of Nevada, another

14   misdemeanor, carrying a concealed weapon.  He was convicted on

15   that one and sentenced to 50 hours of community, a fine of

16   $500 and forfeiture of the weapon.

17                An August 5th, 2005, out of Nevada, possession of

18   marijuana, one ounce or less, convicted and had to pay a fine

19   of $500.

20                An October 27, 2004, conviction out of Nevada for

21   a minor in consumption of liquor -- I mean, dismissed what --

22   he was told to stay out of trouble.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any questions for Mr. Garcia?

24                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.
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 1                Mr. Garcia?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Yes.

 3                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Three years in a row, 6, 7

 4   and -- 2006, 2007, 2008, concealed weapon.  Do you have a

 5   weapon on you now?

 6                THE APPLICANT:  No, sir.

 7                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Why didn't you disclose

 8   it?

 9                THE APPLICANT:  I didn't know what to disclose.

10   I'm like, I'm apologizing.  Like I was -- if I knew what, the

11   need of disclosing everything to you guys, I would have right

12   off.

13                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  That's good.  Thank you.

14                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Fair enough.

15                MEMBER CORTEZ:  That's what we want.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Well, thank you.  That

17   gives us something to work off and remember going forward.  So

18   are there any questions -- any further questions for

19   Mr. Garcia?  Okay.  So no further questions, I'll entertain a

20   motion.

21                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I make a

22   motion to uphold the denial for Mr. Christopher Garcia for

23   failing to disclose.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  I have a motion.  Do we have
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 1   a second?

 2                MEMBER BEZICK:  Bezick, second.

 3                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion, we

 4   have a second.

 5                All in favor say, "aye."

 6                (Motion carries.)

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So, Mr. Garcia, we

 8   encourage you to come back.  Make sure you list everything

 9   that you've ever been -- you know, ever been -- had an issue

10   with.

11                Once you do that, you can come back in one year

12   and go through the process again.  You'll probably be denied

13   and then you'll come in front of us.  If you disclose, if you

14   tell us everything that's happened, we're more than happy --

15   we want to help you guys.

16                THE APPLICANT:  I was --

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  No, you're --

18                THE APPLICANT:  I just didn't know.  Like before

19   when they told me that, like the lady said -- when I was

20   writing down my application, they told me that wouldn't be

21   considered as any type of crime.  So now that they lie to me,

22   you know, during the time that --

23                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Misinformation.

24                THE APPLICANT:  Misinformation, I apologize.
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 1                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Yeah.

 2                THE APPLICANT:  Because I wouldn't have even

 3   brought myself today.

 4                MEMBER CORTEZ:  Yeah.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  But now that I came, I know what

 6   I need to do.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Perfect.

 8                THE APPLICANT:  And I'll be here next year.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yep.  We look forward to

10   seeing you.

11                MEMBER CORTEZ:  So will I.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Yep.  Look forward to seeing

13   you.

14                Agenda Item Number 85, Khalif Golphin.  Okay.

15   We'll trail that.

16                Agenda Item Number 86, Angelina James.  Okay.

17   We'll trail.

18                Agenda Item Number 87, Denise Johnson.  Hello.

19                Investigator Swarthout, why are we here for

20   Ms. Johnson?

21                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  So the applicant was

22   denied for a conviction of a felony.  September 29th, 1994,

23   out of California, a felony for petty theft with prior

24   convictions.  The applicant obtained a PC 1203.4 in this case
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 1   on July 9th 2021 -- or 2001.

 2                December 23rd, 1992, out of California, felony

 3   for petty theft with prior conviction and false impersonation.

 4   This one, she also provided documents showing that she got a

 5   PC 1203.4 reduction on this one on also that same July 9th,

 6   2001.

 7                Another California conviction for January 26,

 8   1987, for a felony forgery, convicted, sentenced to six months

 9   in jail, three years probation.

10                An April 12th, 1984, out of California, felony,

11   trespass on government reservation.  Four months confinement

12   in a federal woman's prison.

13                September 20th, 1983, out of California, give

14   false information to a peace officer.  She would have been 18

15   at the time.  The prints didn't state whether she was

16   convicted of that or what the sentence was.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  And then this was

18   disclosed?  It was disclosed?

19                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  All of it was disclosed.

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Perfect.  Okay.  Any

21   questions for Ms. Johnson?

22                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good afternoon.

23                THE APPLICANT:  Good afternoon.

24                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  All I'm
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 1   trying to do is just make a statement to you because we have a

 2   lot of people come from California and say the 1203.4, so they

 3   didn't have to disclose it.  Your 1203.4 says you have to

 4   disclose it if required.  You did, I want to commend you for

 5   that.  You did a great job.

 6                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any questions?  Okay.

 8   I'll entertain a motion on Ms. Johnson.

 9                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.  I

10   am motioning to overturn the denial and grant Mrs. Johnson her

11   work card.

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion.  Do

13   we have a second?

14                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown, I'll

15   second.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

17   second.

18                All in favor say, "aye."

19                (Motion carries.)

20                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations, ma'am.

21                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you so much.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Agenda Item Number 88,

23   Corey Mathis.  Good afternoon, sir.

24                Okay.  Investigator Swarthout.
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 1                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  The applicant was denied

 2   for a conviction of a felony and illegal use or possession of

 3   a dangerous weapon.

 4                The applicant has a December 16th, 2009, out of

 5   California, felony for assault, force with a deadly weapon,

 6   not a firearm GPI likely, convicted three years prison.

 7                March 4th, 2009, out of California, felony,

 8   robbery second degree.  Convicted, probation 36 months and

 9   365 days jail suspended.

10                December 31st, 2006, out of California

11   misdemeanor, threat with crime, intent to terrorize.

12   Convicted 24 months probation and 27 days in jail.

13                November 25th, 2004, out of California, robbery.

14   This one is unknown.  He would have been a minor at the case.

15                And then October 18th, 2002, out of California,

16   burglary.  He was released to his parents or guardian also.

17                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So if I understand

18   correctly, the applicant originally denied in 6/25/2021 and

19   did not disclose the denial.  This time, the applicant

20   applied, he disclosed all arrests.

21                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  Yes.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Okay.  Any questions

23   for Mr. Mathis?  Okay.  Hearing no questions, I'll entertain a

24   motion.
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 1                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  I

 2   move that we grant the appeal and allow Mr. -- sorry,

 3   Mr. Mathis to get his work card based on the fact that he did

 4   what we asked.

 5                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

 6                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  We have a motion and

 7   we have -- do we have a second?

 8                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, second.

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

10   second.

11                All in favor say, "aye."

12                (Motion carries.)

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Congratulations, sir.

14                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

15                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  They'll work with you to get

16   that.  Okay?

17                THE APPLICANT:  Appreciate it.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.

19                Okay.  Agenda Item 89, Muhammad Matthews has been

20   postponed.

21                Agenda Item Number 90, Anthony Villarreal.  Good

22   afternoon, sir.

23                THE APPLICANT:  Good afternoon, Board.  How are

24   you?
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Good.

 2                Investigator Swarthout, can you tell us why we're

 3   here?

 4                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  The applicant was denied

 5   for a felony conviction and for failure to disclose arrest

 6   history.  September 1st, 2011, out of Illinois, felony,

 7   aggravated battery with a weapon.  He did disclose this

 8   arrest, convicted to two years probation and 156 days

 9   imprisonment.

10                October 15th, 2010, out of Illinois, felony,

11   possession cannabis, 30 to 500 grams.  Convicted, sentenced to

12   two years probation, 60 days imprisonment.  That one also was

13   disclosed.

14                May 30th of 2013, out of California, misdemeanor,

15   possession of controlled substance.  Convicted to 36 months

16   probation and nine days jail.  That one was not disclosed.

17                July 9th, 2007, out of Illinois, misdemeanor,

18   retail theft, display merch, less than $150.  Convicted,

19   sentenced to 24 months supervised and that one ran concurrent

20   with the April 5th, 2004, out of Illinois, disorderly conduct,

21   reckless conduct, casual delivery of cannabis.

22                This one appears to be a juvenile arrest.  But

23   there was one listed as an adult probation, so his probation

24   most likely continued as he was an adult.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Just so I understand, let me

 2   just ask:  The 2007 was not -- which one was --

 3                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  The 2013, the May 30th

 4   out of California.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  That was not

 6   disclosed.  All the rest were disclosed.

 7                INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:  Yes.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Are there any

 9   questions for the Board?

10                THE APPLICANT:  If I could just say one thing.

11                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Hang on one second.

12                THE APPLICANT:  Sure.

13                MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member Brown.  Why

14   did you fail to disclose the most recent of your charges?  You

15   disclosed all the others, but failed the one that's most

16   recent.

17                THE APPLICANT:  I guess I got overwhelmed with

18   everything I was writing on there, and I just did it to my

19   best of my ability and my remembrance.  You know, I've been to

20   church and I gave my life back to God and, you know, for me,

21   I'm wiped clean and -- you know, in the eyes of the Lord, I am

22   wiped clean as well.  And, you know, I apologize for not

23   disclosing.  I disclosed as much as I could at the time.

24                I have two little daughters in my custody.

Capitol Reporters



Page 268

 1   They're in CPS right now and it's just been really hard for

 2   me.  And, you know, my mind's been really jumbled up right now

 3   and I'm just trying to get to work so, you know, I can get

 4   into society and do the right thing in life and, you know,

 5   contribute to Las Vegas and bring my daughters up, take to

 6   them to church and do everything I'm supposed to do as a

 7   father and just show them the right thing to do.

 8                I mean, they're even here now and they're -- I

 9   explained to them that this is -- you know, if somebody does

10   something wrong, that we come up here, we confess to what

11   we've done and, you know, we ask for forgiveness.

12                So I'm here for forgiveness and a second chance,

13   and I'm sorry for the nondisclosure.  It was not intentional.

14   I disclosed as much things as I can remember at the time.

15                I remember filling out this application.  It was

16   about 1:30 a.m. when my daughters finally, you know, gave me a

17   second to breathe, and we've just been going through a lot.

18                So, you know, I'm just here, putting it all out

19   there and just letting you guys know that I'm sorry for my

20   past and I just really want a second chance so I can give

21   these girls a really good life.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.

23                THE APPLICANT:  You're welcome.  Thank you.

24                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  Sir, if you
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 1   get a card, what will you do with it?

 2                THE APPLICANT:  I'm going to be a repossession

 3   agent.  The job is already there, waiting for me.  I've done

 4   this in Los Angeles, so I'm good at it and --

 5                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Who's the job with?

 6                THE APPLICANT:  In Los Angeles?

 7                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  No, here.

 8                MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, the one that's waiting for

 9   you.

10                THE APPLICANT:  Speedy Recovery and the owner is

11   Peggy.

12                MEMBER GRONAUER:  How did you hook up with them?

13                THE APPLICANT:  I hooked up with them through an

14   owner in Los Angeles and his name is Paul.

15                MEMBER GRONAUER:  And I believe they're licensed

16   here.  I believe they are.  I know most of the repos.  Okay.

17   Well, it's honorable what you're doing with your children.

18   That's nice.  Thank you.

19                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you, sir.

20                MEMBER GRONAUER:  And yourself, getting your life

21   together.

22                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you.

23                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Any other questions from the

24   Board?  I know this is unusual, but I have someone with their
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 1   hand up over there.

 2                Would you like to come and say something?  Okay.

 3   Come on.

 4                THE DAUGHTER:  We think like he could have the

 5   job because he takes good care of me and my sister, and my

 6   sister, she is always happy with him and I'm happy with him

 7   either way.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  You guys

 9   will make us cry.

10                MS. HARRIS:  Was she sworn in?

11                (Laughter.)

12                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Any other questions?

13   Okay.  If there's no other questions, because we need tissue,

14   can someone please make a motion?

15                MEMBER BROWN:  Yes, this is Board Member Brown.

16   I'm going to go against my usual practice here.  I believe

17   that this was an honest mistake and I am going to move that we

18   grant the appeal and allow him to get his work card.

19                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.  Do we have

20   a second?

21                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer, make the second.

22                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  You went over the two

23   toughest guys over here.  Okay.  So we have a motion, we have

24   a second.
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 1                All in favor say, "aye."

 2                (Motion carries.)

 3                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you very much.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  So you'll be granted

 5   your work card.  Congratulations.

 6                MEMBER BROWN:  Mr. Villarreal?

 7                THE APPLICANT:  Yes, sir?

 8                MEMBER BROWN:  You need to take those girls out

 9   for an ice cream.

10                THE APPLICANT:  I will.

11                MEMBER BROWN:  That was very brave of her to come

12   up here in front of all of us.

13                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  They're giving a

14   thumbs up to you.

15                THE APPLICANT:  Thank you, Board, very much.

16                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.

17                THE APPLICANT:  I won't let you guys down.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thank you.  We appreciate

19   you.

20                Okay.  Now that we've cleaned out the audience,

21   was -- okay.  So the other two were postponed.

22                Do you guys have anybody in the audience?

23                MEMBER BROWN:  We do not.

24                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.
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 1                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Okay.  So I'm going

 2   to go ahead and read through the trailed items so the Board

 3   can do a block vote on those.

 4                The first item is Item Number 36, Justin

 5   Bipialaka.  The next one is Deana Manning, Item Number 41.

 6   Item Number 46, Jennifer Goston.  Item Number 48, Rafael

 7   Martinez-Castillo.  Item Number 54, Kajohenae Cannon.  Number

 8   65, Julian Oates.

 9                Number 71, Sabrina Tunstill-Hill.  Number 75,

10   Dion Stanley.  Number 81, Dee Cagle.  Number 85, Khalif

11   Golphin.  Number 86, Angelina James, and I believe that is all

12   of the trailed items.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  So can I just ask for a block

14   vote on that?  Okay.  So I would entertain a motion on a block

15   vote for the items listed by the executive director.

16                MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I'll make a

17   motion for denial of the following work card appeals.

18                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Oh, hang on.  Is somebody

19   here or --

20                MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Once again, I'll make a

21   motion for denial of the following work card appeals and the

22   reason for it will be no show.  Number 36, Number 41,

23   Number 46, Number 48 Number 54, Number 65, Number 71,

24   Number 75, Number 81, Number 85, and Number 86.
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 1                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion.  Do we have

 2   a second?

 3                MEMBER CORTEZ:  This is Board Member Cortez.

 4   I'll second the motion.

 5                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  We have a motion, we have a

 6   second.

 7                All in favor say, "aye."

 8                (Motion carries.)

 9                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Agenda Item Number 93, Board

10   comment and future agenda items for possible action.

11                Is there anything from the Board?

12                MEMBER BROWN:  Yes.  This is Board Member Brown

13   for Director Ingram.  I haven't had a chance to look at them

14   all today, but it appears that we have several different

15   versions of applications written that it looks like there's

16   two different or maybe three different online.

17                Is there a way that -- without too much cost,

18   that we could streamline this to one version or at least -- in

19   the versions that I've seen, the language says, list all

20   arrests regardless of outcome.

21                I know we shouldn't have to, but could we list

22   the outcomes so that these people say, wait a minute, you

23   know, it was sealed, it was expunged.  We could actually list

24   those words?  I mean, not that they're going to read them, but
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 1   at least we've made the effort if it's not too much money to

 2   do something like that.

 3                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Yes, and that's

 4   something we've been working on.  There are some old

 5   applications floating around that licensees hand out that they

 6   already have printed out and are providing to them.

 7                I think that's where most of this is coming from

 8   because the online application is updated.  The applications

 9   in our office, we update probably weekly based on the approved

10   fingerprint companies.  But there are some older versions

11   floating around at other places other than the Board, and I

12   think that's where those are coming from.

13                You've probably noticed on the licensing

14   applications, those are a little different, too.  All the new

15   application that we send out are the newest version, but there

16   are people who had started the application process eight

17   months ago, 12 months ago, and they're still sending those old

18   ones in.

19                In fact, during our last meeting in the office, I

20   instructed the licensing specialist that if she receives old

21   versions of the licensing apps, to have them complete the new

22   one.  So hopefully that will take care of itself in

23   transition.  We're seeing the same thing and we're just as

24   concerned.
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 1                Does that help address --

 2                MEMBER BROWN:  -- yes, sir, it does.  Thank you.

 3                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Thank you.

 4                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Is there a way -- do you guys

 5   have email -- I'm sure it's to companies put out that, you

 6   know, we will no longer except old applications.

 7                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Yeah, we can

 8   definitely send out a notice to all qualifying agents,

 9   registered and individual license holders and just say,

10   please, use the new apps, old ones will be required to be

11   resubmitted.  Yeah, I can take care of that this week.  Thank

12   you.

13                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Okay.  Anything else for

14   board comment or future agenda items?

15                Okay.  This is the section for public comment.

16   Members of the general public may make comment on matters on

17   the agenda and may bring up matters not appearing on the

18   agenda to the attention of the Board.  The Board may discuss

19   the matters not appearing in the agenda, but may not act on

20   the matters at this meeting.

21                At this point, there's no general public so we're

22   going to make assumption that there's not going to be any

23   public comment.

24                So a motion to adjourn.  We're done.  I don't
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 1   have a gavel anymore.  So thanks, guys.  I appreciate you.

 2   Sorry we were difficult on the mic this morning for you.

 3                MEMBER BROWN:  Thank you.  Have a good evening.

 4                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INGRAM:  Thanks, Shellie.

 5   Thanks, Board, and again, thank you on behalf of the entire

 6   staff for the pay increase.  I'm sure they will be elated.  So

 7   appreciate it.  Take care.

 8                CHAIRPERSON NIXON:  Thanks, guys.

 9                (Proceedings concluded at 3:06 p.m.)
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 1   STATE OF NEVADA, )
                      )  ss.
 2   CARSON CITY.     )
 3
 4             I, Shellie Loomis, Official Court Reporter for the
 5   State of Nevada, Private Investigator's Board, do hereby
 6   certify:
 7             That on September 13, 2022, I reported the Private
 8   Investigator's Board proceedings to the best of my ability
 9   under the circumstances;
10             That the foregoing transcript, consisting of pages
11   1 through 276, inclusive, includes a full, true and correct
12   transcription of my stenotype notes of said public meeting to
13   the best of my abilities.
14
15             Dated at Carson City, Nevada, this 29th day of
16   September, 2022.
17
18
19
20                                //Shellie Loomis//
                                  Shellie Loomis, RPR
21                                NV CCR #228
22
23
24
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